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Viera East 
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219 East Livingston Street, Orlando, FL 32801 

Phone: 407-841-5524 – Fax: 407-839-1526 

 

September 15, 2022 

 

Board of Supervisors 

Viera East Community  

Development District 

 

Dear Board Members, 

 

The Board of Supervisors of the Viera East Community Development District will meet on 

Thursday, September 22, 2022 at 7:00 p.m. in the Multi- Purpose Room, Faith Lutheran 

Church, 5550 Faith Drive, Viera, FL.  

 

 

I.     Roll Call 

II.    Pledge of Allegiance 

III.   Public Comment Period 

IV.   Approval of Minutes of the August 25, 2022 Board of Supervisors Meeting                           

      V.    New Business 

                                A. Discussion of Draft Easement Regarding Drainage Canal 

      VI.   Old Business 

       A. Action Items List 

      VII.   Staff Reports 

       A. General Manager’s Report 

       B. District Manager’s Report 

    i.    Ratification of Requisition No. 124- 132 

       C. Lifestyle/ Marketing Report 

       D. Restaurant Report 

       VIII.   Treasurer’s Report- Consideration of Financial Statements 

        A. Approval of Check Register 

        B. Balance Sheet and Income Statements 

        IX.    Supervisor’s Requests 

  X.   Organizational Matters 

                         A. Acceptance of Resignation of Dave Bedwell 



                         B. Appointment of Individual to Fulfill the Board Vacancy with Term  

                              Ending November 2022 

                         C. Administration of Oath of Office to Newly Appointed Supervisor 

                         D. Consideration of Resolution 2022-04 Electing Officers 

      XI.     Adjournment 



MINUTES 
  



MINUTES OF MEETING 

VIERA EAST 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

 

 The regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Viera East Community 

Development District was held on Thursday, August 25, 2022 at 7:00 p.m. at Faith Lutheran 

Church in the Multi-Purpose Room, 5550 Faith Drive, Viera, Florida. 

 

 Present and constituting a quorum were: 

 

 Rob Dale Chairman 

 Pete Carnesale Vice Chairman 

 Steve Colasinski Treasurer 

 Paul McCarthy Assistant Secretary 

 David Bedwell Assistant Secretary 

 

 

 Also present were: 

 

 

 Jason Showe District Manager 

 Jeremy LeBrun GMS 

 Chris Game Golf Pro 

 Ines Campo  Golf Course Administrator 

 Michelle Webb Marketing Director 

 Jeff Spencer Restaurant Manager 

 Residents 

 

 

FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS Roll Call 

 Mr. Showe called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. All Supervisors were present. 

 

SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS Pledge of Allegiance 

 The Pledge of Allegiance was recited.  

 

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS Public Comment Period  

Mr. Showe: The next item we have on the agenda this evening is the public comment 

period. We will note that both in the rules and rates hearing and in the budget hearing, there will 

be an opportunity, separately, for all public comments for specific items to be heard in specific 

sections. That's how they are conducted under the State of Florida Statutes. So, what we can do 
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at this time, is to take any other public comment, anything outside of the budgets or the rules and 

rates. This would be the time to make those comments. We will note that with all public 

comments, this is not necessarily a question-and-answer session of the Board and they may or 

may not choose to answer any questions that are asked. We would ask that you state your name 

and address and please keep your comments to three minutes. Again, this would be for public 

comments. Comments on the budgets and rules and rates will be heard specifically in those 

sections. Are there any general public comments this evening? Okay. Hearing none,  

 

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Approval of Minutes from the July 28 

2022 Board of Supervisors Meeting 

Mr. Showe: We can go to the approval of the minutes of the July 28th meeting, which are 

included as part of your agenda package. We can take any corrections or changes at this time. 

Mr. Colasinski: I'd like to correct that I was actually in attendance at that meeting. It 

indicates that I was not. I think it's a cut-paste error because I was not at the June meeting. 

Mr. Showe: I’ll get it corrected. 

Mr. Colasinski: Thank you. 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Carnesale seconded by Mr. McCarthy with 

all in favor the Minutes of the July 28, 2022 Board of Supervisors 

Meeting were approved as amended. 

 

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS New Business 

A. Ratify D. Bell General Contracting, LLC Proposals 

Mr. Showe: The next item is the ratification of the Dave Bell proposals that we talked 

about at the last workshop. We have one for the cart path extensions in the amount of $79,000 

and the culvert repair in the amount of $256,000. We just need the Board, if they're still 

amenable, to ratify those. They probably already started. 

Mr. Colasinski: Do you want a motion for each one or one for both proposals? 

Mr. Showe: You could do a motion to ratify them both. 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Colasinski seconded by Mr. Carnesale with 

all in favor the proposals for D. Bell General Contracting, LLC. for 

the cart path extensions in the amount of $79,000 and culvert 

repair in the amount of $256,000 was ratified.  
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SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Public Hearing 

A. Rules and Rates Hearing 

i. Consideration of Amendments to Attachment A to Chapter IV 

of the Rules of Procedure 

ii. Consideration of Golf Course Rates for Fiscal Year 2023 

Mr. Showe: The next item are the public hearings. In discussion with the Chair, we want 

to be as courteous to people's time as we can. Is there anyone here specifically for the budget and 

the notice that you received in the mail? How many are here specifically for the rules and rates of 

the golf course? How do you want to handle that, Chair? Do you want to do the rules and rates 

first? 

Mr. Dale: Let's stick with the agenda. 

Mr. Showe: Alright. Perfect. So, we will go into the public hearing for the rules and rates. 

Chris is here and he's prepared a presentation for the proposed rules and rates. We will note that 

the Board discussed this over the last several months and this is a combination of those 

discussions. Once Chris is done, we'll have the Board discuss the rules and rates and then we'll 

open it up for audience comments.  

Mr. Game: First, I will go over the proposed rates for Fiscal Year 2023. We are looking 

at the public rate increasing $8 across the board and then the respective discounts for the Loyalty 

Program. We are thinking about changing the name of Associate Program to something more 

like a Loyalty Program for Viera East. Then the CDD resident rate is increasing from a 25% 

discount to a 30% discount against the public rate going up $8 across the board. Then there are 

the respective discounts of 20% for the Loyalty Program and 30% for the CDD residents. 

Mr. Dale: Chris, could you just expound on the 30%? That's important. I want that in the 

minutes. 

Mr. Game: The 30% instead of the 25%. Right now, CDD residents that play golf at our 

golf course, get 25% off of the base going rate. We're proposing that we increase that to 30% 

with talks of changing the membership and the dollar per round for the golf course and CDD 

residents. 

Mr. Dale: What's the 30% for? 

Mr. Game: 30% off of greens fees. Nothing has changed in relation to merchandise or 

range balls. It would just be 30% off of greens fees. This is the range of rates. Nothing has 
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changed here since the last time we met in this room. I am providing just some basic 

information. 

Mr. Colasinski: Are these the proposed rates? 

Mr. Showe: Well, this is the range.  

Mr. Game: The big thing is the highlighted section that has to do with our Prepaid 

Program. The last thing that we discussed at the last Board meeting, was basically a 25% 

increase on the prepaid fees and then changing the Gold Program from Monday to Friday to 

Monday to Thursday. Those rates are in accordance to that increase and the change in the 

timeframe for the Gold Prepaid Program. 

Mr. Dale: Actually, I'm going to clarify that. I believe what we discussed was everything 

across the board would be 25%. 

Mr. Game: Yes.  

Mr. Dale: Not just the Gold Program. 

Mr. Game: I'm sorry. It's 25% across the board, but changing the Gold Program from 

Monday to Friday to Monday to Thursday. 

Mr. Dale: Right. 

Mr. Game: But all fees would have a 25% increase. That is about it for me. 

Mr. Showe: Okay. Does the Board have any questions before we open it up for public 

comments? We actually don't have any changes to Attachment A for the rules. So, we don't 

really need to have any consideration. Those rules will just stay the same. That's the section of 

the dialogue. The rates were separate. We didn't make any specific changes. 

Mr. Dale: With regard to the four golf carts out on the course at a time? 

Mr. Game: Tim and I spoke about that and I believe at the last meeting, Tim had 

basically said, “Let's just let it sit for another year. There's no need to address it at this current 

time.” 

Mr. Dale: Okay. 

Mr. Game: Other than that, it's just what we talked about previously. 

Mr. Showe: We typically do this once a year, but if there's a problem that comes up, Tim 

has flexibility to enforce rules that aren't listed here. David, I think you have a question. 

Mr. Bedwell: Since we're going to Monday through Thursday, I want to make sure that 

people who bought the Gold Plan as a couple to play on Friday, will have to play a day late or 
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have to move up to the Platinum Plan. Does everybody understand me? I don't want there to be 

any surprises on what was proposed. We have quite a few people; singles and couples that play 

on Friday. I don't know if they're all Platinum Members. I just want to make sure everybody 

understands. 

Mr. Dale: But that's just what's proposed right now. I do think we're going to be 

discussing that a little bit further, because Chris made me aware after the meeting, that the 

majority of those memberships are Platinum, so that comes into the mix. 

Mr. Bedwell: I just wanted to make sure that they understood what the significance of 

that was. 

Mr. Dale: Right. 

Mr. Showe: Are there any other questions or comments from the Board or do you want to 

open it up? 

Mr. Dale: For public comment? 

Mr. Showe: Yeah. 

Mr. Dale: Let's do it 

Mr. Showe: We'll open it up for public comment. Again, please state your name and 

address and keep your comments to three minutes. I'm going to take the Request to Speak Forms 

in the order they were received, if you submitted any. Mr. Shiffrin had the first one. You have 

three minutes. 

Resident (Gary Shiffrin, Parkstone): Mr. Gary Shiffrin, 4770 Parkstone Drive. I was in 

attendance at the last CDD workshop, and needless to say, I found the discussion about the 

Prepaid Membership to be very interesting, although very concerning. Let me start by saying, I 

understand the business model and making a profit on the dollar. Through the meeting, it was 

stated in order for the golf course to be maintained, it would cost approximately $500,000 a year 

to put in reserves to afford any capital needs in the future. A further statement in the meeting 

indicated that we made $490,000 last year. I would say that's pretty close. With the current 

projects of irrigation and the renovations of the Clubhouse and the range, that will go a long way 

in preserving the infrastructure of the golf course. So, my presentation wants to focus on the 

human aspect of what is being proposed. I and many of my golfing buddies purchased our 

homes, with the intention of being able to play as often as we can during our retirement years. 

Viera East has offered a Prepaid Program for many decades and the attraction of moving here 
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was in fact because of this opportunity. For decades, the Prepaid Members have literally invested 

hundreds of thousands of dollars in the golf course. Currently, there are 82 of us prepaids, who 

had been given this golf course over $300,000, just this year, for the opportunity to continue to 

play a game that we love on a golf course that we also love. Based on the average rate of $50, it 

would take 6,000 rounds to cover what the prepaids have invested. Aside from that, I want to 

reiterate the massive amounts of money that these prepaids invested into this golf course over the 

decades. That should mean something and I hope it does. Prepaids every year continue to support 

this golf course. Do we feel that there should be a reasonable increase with the opportunity to 

play? Yes, we do. That should be reasonable. I would like to appeal to your desire to be fair. 

Most of those prepaids worked hard during our careers to have the opportunity to play golf at a 

wonderful golf course like Viera East. Knowing that there has not been a rate increase for 

prepaids in 2017, there should be the expectation that one should occur. A fair rate increase 

certainly would be the proposed 24%, but when you start adding this proposed surcharge, the 

expectation has now become extreme. All of us retirees are on fixed incomes and a 24% increase 

and additional thousands in surcharges, doesn't seem fair. As much as I would never interfere 

with your lifestyle, I would hope you would do the same for us. Doing away with the prepaids 

will, for the most of us, prevent us from playing as many rounds as we've enjoyed playing. I 

understand you hold the power, but I hope you understand how much you would negatively 

impact the lifestyle of many by eliminating the program. Please do the right thing for all of us 

who have given back so much to the success of this golf course. (Applause) 

Mr. Showe: The next one I have is from Ms. Kopliner. 

Resident (Sonya Kopliner, Woodhall Circle): Are these the proposed rates that you’re 

working on? 

Mr. Showe: Yes. 

 Resident (Sonya Kopliner, Woodhall Circle): I don't see anything here about surcharges 

included in these proposed rates. Is that correct? Is that off the table? 

Mr. Colasinski: That was one of the options. 

Resident (Sonya Kopliner, Woodhall Circle): Okay. So, you're still considering 

surcharges?  

Mr. Colasinski: I think that's one of the options. Yes. 
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Resident (Sonya Kopliner, Woodhall Circle): Thank you. My comments are regarding 

increasing the golf rates for Prepaid Members and possible surcharges. So far this year, you have 

comped $70,000 worth of rounds. This number of free rounds, equates to 21% of the member 

paid rounds. By the end of the year, it will be $85,000. There's your proposed $1,000 per 

member increase. Your comp round should be listed under expenditures, since it really is a loss 

to golf course profits. We're not gaining anything from those comp rounds. It's not revenue, it's 

an expenditure. I think you need to revisit your comp rounds compared to what you're trying to 

charge us as rates. If you're going to be charging the surcharge, then these comp rounds should 

have surcharges as well. 

Mr. Showe: Mr. Maher? 

Resident (William Maher, Worthington Circle): Mr. Bill Maher, 4930 Worthington 

Circle. Number one, I don't see any of the proposals that we're talking about. Is there a reason 

why we don't have them? 

Mr. Showe: We brought 30 copies of them. 

Mr. Colasinski: They are on that table. 

Resident (William Maher, Worthington Circle): Let me address one part of what Gary 

said. We as residents live in a golf course community and we purchased our homes for that 

reason. Some of you on the Board do not live in the golf course community. I consider the golf 

course community, 12 sub-divisions in Viera East that are on the golf course. So, with that being 

said, we did this for the amenities that Gary spoke about. We've invested in golf carts and 

supported the golf course for many years. At one point, there were over 200 Prepaid Members, 

and now it’s down to about 80, which is a small percent of that pie that we're talking about. Like 

Gary said, we want to be able to go out and play golf, enjoy ourselves and live our lives 

comfortably. As far as the increase in the membership, I don't have any problem with that. I wish 

it would've been done in increments, but the 24% seemed reasonable with everything that’s 

going on. That 10% surcharge for golfers, especially those of us using our own carts, seems to be 

unwarranted. It’s going to put an undue burden on us. We're paying for a membership, but now 

you're going to tell me that if I play 100 rounds, it’s going to cost me $100,000, when I'm using 

my own vehicle and putting wear and tear on that vehicle. By the way, when the snowbirds come 

down, this golf course has had problems not having enough carts. So, in essence, we are helping 

the golf course, but just barely. So, if the proposal is to increase the membership, I think we're all 
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in agreement with that. What I don't agree with is that surcharge. I don't know who came up with 

it or why they came up with it. 

Mr. Showe: Thirty seconds. 

Resident (William Maher, Worthington Circle): It seems it's very irresponsible to the 

people who have their carts and are members of the golf course, who frankly, when the off-

season is here, are still here. We live here. I'd like to address one more issue. 

Mr. Showe: Ten seconds. 

Resident (William Maher, Worthington Circle): The range. You're doing quite a bit of 

work to it, which looks good. That seems to be that that's what brings them around. Am I right? 

Mr. Showe: That is your three minutes. 

Mr. Dale: Do we have any other speakers? 

Mr. Showe: Is there anybody else? Please raise your hand, state your name and address 

and keep your comments to three minutes. 

Resident (Warren Powell, Stratford Place): Mr. Warren Powell. I live at 4897 Stratford 

Place. There are some intangible benefits of the prepaids or what I call members. We take 

ownership for this place. We go out and play on Mondays and Tuesdays and check the divots, 

the holes, the greens and so forth. All of us that are prepaids that go out there, go through a 

bucket or two of sand every Monday, Tuesday and Wednesday, just taking care of this golf 

course, because we feel that we have some ownership to it. I just thought that I would pass that 

on to you. The last thing that I'll say is, we paid a premium for those lots that are on the golf 

course. I just thought I'd bring that to your attention. I think the intangible benefits are a very 

important aspect of some of the prepaids or most of the prepaids that play out here. 

Mr. Dale: Thank you.  

Mr. Showe: Are there any other public comments on the rules and rates? 

Mr. Bedwell: What Chris presented, there was no surcharge. It was just a 25% increase. 

Resident (Warren Powell, Stratford Place): Thank you, Dave 

Mr. Dale: What I prefer to do, because I don't want this to turn into a free-for-all, if we're 

done with public commentary, let's close it out and have Board discussion. I want clarify a few 

things. 

Mr. Showe: Is there any other public comment? Okay. Then we will return it back to the 

Board for discussion and consideration of the proposed rules and rates that have been presented. 
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Mr. Dale: Just for clarification, I've heard a couple of questions and I think that they 

deserve answers. I think there were probably about five or six proposals floated that night at our 

workshop and I want to remind everybody that the only chance that the Board gets to talk is at 

the workshops. We don't collude or do things on the side. So, a lot of times when we sit at those 

Board workshops, that's the first time we've had a chance to talk about anything. So, with that 

said, the Golf Course Manager brought three proposals before us. The first proposal was that the 

Golf Course Manager wanted to get rid of season passes altogether. The second proposal was to 

do a percentage increase. One of the problems that we discovered in looking at the numbers of 

the 82 season passes, is we've got a lot of people that are nominally golfing three times a week, 

150 rounds a year. We also have a lot of people that are golfing 260 times a year at an equivalent 

rate of about $11 per round. So, that was the concern brought forward by the Golf Course 

Manager, and the Board is going to listen to that. That's where the potential surcharge idea came 

from. Above a certain amount, perhaps one of the ways to curtail whatever you want to call it, 

overuse of the season passes, was to charge $10 per round. That was one of the things that the 

Board looked at. I believe the last thing that the Golf Course Manager brought forward, was a 

straight flat fee increase. Then moving forward, there was a lot of dialogue. Correct me if I'm 

wrong on any of this. This is my memory of it, but I'm sure if we were to listen to the recording, 

that's pretty much how it went down. Next, we got into a spirited dialogue about all of those 

different rates. I believe that Paul and Dave presented proposals, if I'm not mistaken. Where we 

left it, was there seemed to be consensus for a 25% across the board increase. I'm going to be 

blunt, but I was under the assumption that most of those memberships were Gold Memberships 

and this is where I want to continue that discussion. In talking to Chris afterwards, I guess most 

of these memberships are Platinum Memberships. The purpose behind what we're trying to do, 

we're also trying to make the golf course appealing to businesses and corporations and increase 

the profitability of the golf course, while at the same time try to keep prices at a fair price point. 

Mr. Colasinski: Not only that, but we also have a lot of people who work during the week 

that want to play golf. A lot of technology people get Fridays off. 

Mr. Dale: Right. 

Mr. Colasinski: So, we want to keep tee times on Friday, Saturday and Sunday available 

for residents who work during the week. 
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Mr. Dale: Correct. Where my issue with the Platinum is, and I'm bouncing this around in 

my head and I've heard a few things from Chris over the past couple of weeks, I do think there 

needs to be more of an increase on the Platinum end of things. The gist of what I would like to 

do, is make that Monday through Thursday as attractive as possible. 

Mr. Colasinski: I think with Monday through Thursday, if we look at the Gold 

Membership and the CDD rate for the Gold Membership, if we kept Monday through Thursday 

and use that same price tag, if you look at that, instead of Monday through Friday, you're cutting 

off one day. So, that would actually accommodate a 20% increase to cover our costs. If you did a 

single with daily cart fee of $1,900 on Mondays and Thursdays and a single with a cart fee of 

$3,600 from Monday through Thursday, the single cart fee would be $3,100 Monday through 

Thursday. That would be mostly for the people over age 60 or what I call a senior rate. We can 

actually provide some relief to some of the people that have been here a long time and are on 

fixed incomes. I'm trying to find something where we're not really raising the rate, where we 

would have one day to play, but it's not really pushing it. 

Mr. Dale: Sort of like what we did with the Associate Membership awhile back. We kept 

the price the same, but just did away with the free round. Are you talking about that for the 

CDD? 

Mr. Colasinski: That would be primarily for CDD residents, 60 and over. 

Mr. Bedwell: The main impact going from Monday to Thursday, is the rate goes up on 

Friday. So, CDD residents pay more and outside people pay more. It increases the revenue and 

you get the same number of rounds. It doesn't do much for the prepaid since both of them are 

flat, but you're going to get more revenue. If you do the same number of tee times next year that 

you did this year, that's what the big difference is. I'm a day rate player and I play on Friday, so 

I'm going to be paying more than what I paid this year with the increase with Friday being the 

weekend rate. Do you know what I'm saying?  

Mr. Colasinski: Then you would get the resident rate off of that. 

Mr. Bedwell: Yeah. The CDD rate is going to go up because Friday is a weekend. 

Mr. Colasinski: Yes, that is correct.  

Mr. McCarthy: I would like to throw something in there and run that by the Board. 

Mr. Dale: Just throw them all out. 

Mr. McCarthy: First of all, the four-to-six-month membership… 



August 25, 2022 Viera East CDD 

11 

Mr. Dale: It's not so much really a four-to-six-month membership. What it does is they 

rebate back. That is my understanding of it. Correct? In other words, you have to purchase... 

Mr. McCarthy: Four months or six months. 

Mr. Game: Four to six consecutive months from date of purchase. 

Mr. Dale: Perhaps I was looking at the wrong section. The six-month plan is available at 

70% of the annual rate. I guess I was reading that late at night and I took that as, if you buy the 

plan, then you get a rebate. 

Mr. Bedwell: The golf course has implemented that for snowbirds. I bought a six-month 

membership when I was down here for six months out of the year. That was my first year here. 

Mr. McCarthy: Basically, for the 12-month plan, there are 88 people and for the four-to-

six-month plan, there are 25 people, for a total of 113 people. What I'm concerned about is that 

we have a cost per round issue. The membership as of this date, from the detailed Golf Report 

from May, the membership had 6,561 rounds. The total revenue was $188,230, which equates to 

a fee of $28.68 per round. When we get into the CDD rounds, there are about 700 more rounds 

for a total of 7,328 with revenue of $245,303 and a cost per round of $33.47. We have come to a 

consensus on giving a 5% discount from that. So, assuming that we're going to have the same 

number of rounds, the same number of revenues, if you take 5% from $33.47. That brings the 

CDD rounds down to $31.80. 

Mr. Dale: It makes them almost comparable. 

Mr. McCarthy: Alright. So, my proposal would be, we have revenue for this time period 

of $188,230. If you were to increase the rates all through the system by 15%, that would generate 

$28,234. That would bring up the cost per round to $32.99 with a 15% increase in the rate. If we 

go to 20%, that will increase the revenue by $37,646 and that would bring the cost per round up 

to $34.42, which is less than the $31.80 that the CDD residents are paying. So, actually, we're 

paying more money than CDD residents as members. 

Mr. Dale: I didn't have time to compare these numbers. We're talking fiscal year to date. 

Mr. McCarthy: No, this is just May. 

Mr. Dale: Just May. 

Mr. McCarthy: No, from September to May. 

Mr. Dale: I'm not quite clear where you got the $28. 
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Mr. McCarthy: Well, the membership was 6,561 rounds. We made $188,230, which 

equates to $28.00. Divide the rounds into the revenue. 

Mr. Dale: Right, but I’m not seeing the $188,230. 

Mr. McCarthy: I tried to highlight it in yellow. 

Mr. Showe: It's down there at the bottom. 

Mr. Dale: I got you. I was looking on the actual revenue. 

Mr. McCarthy: The membership rounds are at the bottom. So, that's something to think 

about, something to talk about. I think it's not something that's going to happen instantaneously. I 

think it's going to go over 18 months. If a person bought a membership two weeks ago, it’s good 

for 52 weeks. So, everything is going to be at a state of fluctuation for a long period of time. It's 

kind of like what Jim said to me when I asked him, “What is the benefit of the irrigation 

system,” and he said two years. This will fall off for about 18 months. 

Mr. Dale: Just a quick observation. I think because this is as of May, it doesn't include the 

summer, which obviously would then have a lower price round. It would probably get us back to 

the numbers you said. So, if we're talking about during the course of the year, we're probably 

talking mid-20s. 

Mr. McCarthy: The fiscal year ends on September 30th. 

Mr. Dale: I know. 

Mr. Bedwell: This sheet, Rob, with the 25%, $1,000 increase, is $82,000, if they were all 

flat for the year, because the increase is $1,000. On this sheet, there's about six Gold 

Memberships left. Just so everyone understands, the Gold Membership is going up under this 

proposal, from 25% to $731. Under this proposal, the family's going up $1,000. That's what 

we're talking about. 

Mr. Dale: For me, it's multifaceted. Yes, profit is important. It's one of the Top 2, if not 

the most important. 

Mr. Colasinski: We're really trying to recover the increases that we're experiencing with 

maintenance. There’s a 21% increase for the fiscal year. 

Mr. Dale: That's 20% right there. 

Mr. Colasinski: Well, just this last calendar year, it went up 21% over the last year and 

last year it went up as well. That's really what we're trying to do, maintain a revenue stream that 

will keep us even with inflation. 
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Mr. McCarthy: We want the best revenue. I think the proposal that I'm suggesting would 

be more satisfactory and increases the rounds and revenue for the membership and so forth. The 

20% increase is about $37,000. 

Mr. Bedwell: To address your issue, Rob, this doesn't free up tee times. If the prepaid all 

play the same number of rounds, there should be more tee times than we have now. 

Mr. Dale: Right. 

Mr. Bedwell: It's just that we get more money.  

Mr. Dale: In this scenario. That's kind of what I'm saying. 

Mr. Bedwell: Some of those may quit because of the increase. 

Mr. Dale: Yeah. Some might quit. 

Mr. Bedwell: If you implement the surcharge, there will be more people quitting because 

it's a much bigger increase. But I understand the theory behind, “The more you play, the more 

you pay.” 

Mr. Dale: Right. Which is essentially the one proposal that Chris brought forward. 

Mr. Bedwell: But that 4,300 plus 10 %, is way off. 

Mr. Dale: I don't think that. 

Mr. Bedwell: The trouble with the surcharge, is we check 20 to 30 people in at 7:00 a.m. 

and we can't even get them out the door at the start-up time. 

Mr. Dale: Was the surcharge a serious issue? 

Mr. Bedwell: I recommend the 25% increase. 

Multiple Voices Speaking 

Mr. Bedwell: They can’t even check them out at the front office in time. 

Mr. Dale: I would like to focus the conversation on what Paul is proposing. At the same 

time that I’m listening to you, I'm trying to do some math in my head. 

Mr. Colasinski: One option is the senior rate. 

Mr. Dale: For me, yes the money is important. I'm not going to lie. We have to stay in 

business, but we have to consider the timing and making it available. We talked about 

corporations and the corporate packages and drawing in some of those folks. 

Mr. Colasinski: And people who work during the week. 

Mr. Dale: That work during the week. If we can get a higher rate at that time off of some 

of those people, based on the daily rate that he's talking about, then that Monday through 
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Thursday rate becomes appealing to them. I don't care how we package it, whether we call it a 

senior rate or whatever. 

Mr. Colasinski: A senior rate has a stipulation of an age on it.  

Mr. McCarthy: Maturity range. 

Mr. Bedwell: At the last workshop, I recommended a 25% discount Monday to Thursday 

and a 30% discount on the CDD rate. I thought we had consensus on that. 

Mr. Dale: Right, the 25% discount, but where it became an issue was the Platinum thing. 

Perhaps the way we can make this fit in, is what I'm hearing from Steve is if we do a senior 

rate... 

Mr. Colasinski: Right. That's really a 20% increase. If you took the Gold Membership 

rates and then you froze them at that… 

Mr. Bedwell: No increase, but they only get Monday through Thursday. 

Mr. Colasinski: Monday through Thursday, right. 

Mr. Dale: So, there’s effectively no increase price-wise and you lose Friday. 

Mr. Colasinski: It's enough. 

Mr. Dale: This is the part that I've been thinking about over the week. If we were to raise 

the Platinum significantly, it wouldn't impact the people presently that are under that Gold or 

Platinum Plan, other than they wouldn't be able to play weekends, other than at the senior rate 

less 30%. But they would be able to buy the Senior Discount Plan at the current Gold rate 

effectively. The plus is for the general public, if we were to increase Platinum by 50%, the 

people that would be buying that then would be the people outside of the community. Even at a 

50% increase, we are still $100 less than Duran’s rate. 

Mr. Bedwell: A 50% increase? 

Mr. Dale: On the Platinum. But that doesn't have to impact anybody here, if they're going 

to play Monday through Wednesday. 

Mr. Bedwell: No, they play seven days a week. I'm not for it, but if you want to free-up 

tee times on Friday, Saturday, and Sunday, just eliminate the Platinum Plan and only sell Gold 

Memberships. 

Mr. Dale: That's another option. 

Mr. Colasinski: If you do a senior rate... 
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Mr. Bedwell: I'm not for that, but if you want to increase tee times, that's a way to 

increase it, not seniors and this and that. 

Mr. Dale: That's kind of the objective. I like simplicity. 

Mr. Bedwell: Here's the elephant for that, Rob. If you go back to 2001 or 2004 when you 

first came here, Duran wasn't open. So, there's a lot of spaces that we have. Sometimes I don't 

buy into when people say, “I can't get a tee time.” Maybe you're not educated well enough on 

how the system works. That may be a problem. Maybe we can do a better job. There are a lot of 

spaces out there.  

Mr. Dale: I agree with you. I see as our primary mission for the next year, to market the 

whole package from that perspective, but there are things that have happened in the interim. 

There are a whole bunch of golfers out there now. 

Mr. Bedwell: Brevard County is exploding, Rob 

Mr. Dale: That's exactly it. We are exploding. Actually, I heard an interesting one from a 

School Board member this week. Brevard County is the only county, according to the Florida 

Chamber, that is not expected to experience recession in the next 20 years. You can take it for 

what it’s worth, but there’s still an interest. They're looking at some demographics apparently 

that show things really taking off here, I guess. 

Mr. Bedwell: I thought we were in a recession. I'm going to go back to my proposal for a 

25% or $731 increase for a single Platinum Membership and $2,075 per family. With each year, 

as these people get older, they are going to play less and less and there are going to be free tee 

times. There are going to be less people, less playing. I guarantee you next year you will have 

more free tee times because we have no new memberships. We went from 200 down to 82. 

Mr. Carnesale: The only way that works is if we freeze entry into that program. 

Mr. Bedwell: People move when they hear that. 

Mr. Carnesale: Well, it doesn't make any difference. I'm just saying, but we physically 

have to freeze that program. 

Mr. Bedwell: If you freeze it. 

Mr. Carnesale: Okay. I'm just saying. If nobody can go into the program and we only 

have 82 people in it now, then year after year, the number will decrease regardless of the reason.  

Mr. Dale: That's an option. We can look at freezing, correct. There's nothing illegal about 

that. 



August 25, 2022 Viera East CDD 

16 

Mr. Dale: Yeah, you would essentially need to do that as part of the rules and rates.  

Mr. Carnesale: There would be basically no new people allowed into that system. 

Alright? 

Mr. Dale: It's on the table. 

Mr. Carnesale: Then you could look at those people as a separate entity and try to get a 

fairer and more systematic rate. Yes, we have to cover inflation. Inflation alone is like you said, 

25%, because we haven't had an increase since 2017. 

Mr. Dale: Let's clarify that. 

Mr. Carnesale: They should’ve basically raised the rate every year by the amount of 

inflation, but they didn't do it. 

Mr. Dale: I think what he means is it is cumulative. 

Mr. Carnesale: Okay, but it wasn't made to the people. They are the people out here in 

order to understand why we're looking at that number. It sounds like a big number, but if you 

were getting the right increases at the time frames when you should have, which is every year, 

you wouldn't have this major increase. We're trying to play catch up in order to stay in business. 

Mr. Dale: Dave, here's where I'm at. We can finesse this. I like your idea, but I think that 

would be my number two choice. My number one choice would be a give and a take based on 

your idea, which would be to get rid of the Platinum Plan, but we create what Steve is talking 

about, some kind of a Senior Plan based on the current Platinum rates. That would keep things 

low. It wouldn't be a price gouge. It wouldn't be a price bump for everybody. 

Mr. Showe: Be careful. I want to make sure that I understand what you're saying. You're 

saying Platinum rates. 

Mr. Dale: I meant Gold. I'm sorry. 

Mr. Bedwell: Do you think you'd have a day rate they would pay based on something or 

what are you saying? 

Mr. Dale: No, no, no. It would just be basically the Gold Plan as it is right now, only they 

can just do it Monday through Thursday. 

Mr. Bedwell: What if they play on Friday, Saturday and Sunday? 

Mr. Dale: They pay the rack rate less the CDD discount. 

Mr. Bedwell: Which is what? 

Mr. Dale: 30% less whatever Chris is putting together.  



August 25, 2022 Viera East CDD 

17 

Mr. Carnesale: I'm not going to use the word, “Rack” anymore. Okay? It is whatever the 

standard rate was that was established for the day for outsiders, which would be less 30% for 

people that live within the CDD. The reason for that is because they're paying part of their fees 

through their taxes, so their rate should be less. 

Mr. Bedwell: I was just saying if you want to free up tee times, eliminate the Platinum 

Plan. 

Mr. Dale: Oh, I get it.  

Mr. Bedwell: I'm not for that. 

Mr. Dale: I understand. 

Mr. McCarthy: What would the membership be for a Gold Member under that proposal? 

Mr. Dale: We would do the 25% increase for a Gold Member. 

Mr. McCarthy: What are we basing the 25% off on? 

Mr. Dale: It’s a 25% increase of the current Gold rate. 

Mr. McCarthy: Okay.  

Mr. Bedwell: $2,075 for a family. 

Mr. Dale: Right. But that's not going to impact any of the people that we're talking about 

here because they can climb onto the Senior Plan. 

Mr. Bedwell: I don’t understand the Senior Plan. 

Mr. Colasinski: Take away the word, “Senior” for a moment and just say, “Monday 

through Thursday with the existing Gold Membership.” 

Mr. Bedwell: The Platinum people would switch to Gold Membership, is what you're 

saying. 

Mr. Colasinski: No, I'm not saying that. I'm saying there's an option. 

Mr. Bedwell: Is that what he's proposing? 

Mr. Colasinski: I don't know. 

Mr. Bedwell: Platinum Members would switch to the Gold Membership. 

Mr. Dale: Well, we would just do away with the Platinum Plan and do whatever they 

want. Just for the record, I am one year away from the Senior Plan, so I wouldn’t be able to do it 

myself. 

Mr. Bedwell: The issue you have there is again, we get screwed up pricing. That’s why 

there are so many Platinum people. To go from Gold to Platinum, would only cost $300 more. 
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Mr. Dale: That is the most shocking thing on this Rate Sheet. I was like, “You got to be 

kidding me. Who the heck wouldn't go to Platinum.” It's an extra $200. 

Mr. Colasinski: You're paying 9% more for 28% more golf. 

Mr. Bedwell: Yeah. 

Mr. Colasinski: That's what you meant. 

Mr. Bedwell: Yeah. I don't remember who came up with that one. 

Mr. Dale: Yeah, that's horrible. 

Mr. Bedwell: Anyway, if there was no Platinum, I'm trying to get it down to numbers so 

these people understand. If the Platinum went away and the people who wanted to join… 

Mr. Colasinski: Or if they want to join. 

Mr. Bedwell: If they decided to join the Gold Plan. Before tax, under the new plan, the 

Platinum, they would be paying $62.50. If they switch to Gold, they would then go from $60.50 

to $58.12. 

Mr. Dale: I'm comparing everything on the single rate. I don't think we can compare 

apples and oranges. 

Mr. Bedwell: A lot of these players are on the family rate. 

Mr. Dale: Yeah. 

Mr. Bedwell: I don't know what they'll do. We need to decide if that's what you want to 

do.  

Mr. McCarthy: We have 46 people on the Family Plan and 42 people on the Single Plan.  

Mr. Colasinski: With the Family Plan, we’re really giving away a lot, because we're not 

charging much more on the Family Plan. We charge 47 % more after the first-person. Duran 

charges 77% more. 

Mr. Bedwell: Well, people are going to have to make a decision with what we do. The 

more options the better. I don't think we have consensus.  

Mr. Dale: We had our discussion and at a certain point, I'm going to ask for a motion  

Mr. Colasinski: Well, we have to walk through these in order to get a motion. 

Mr. Dale: Right. 

Mr. Colasinski: You're proposing a 25% increase. 

Mr. Bedwell: We should keep the same thing with 25% increases in Platinum and Gold 

Memberships. I didn't worry about increased tee times because these people are getting older like 
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me. I went from four times a week to two. So, I gave you more tee times and I'm spending the 

same amount of money. This is going to happen to a lot of these people. 

Mr. Dale: Chris, what are the numbers for existing pass holders? Just the ballpark 

percentage-wise that are golfing more than 150 rounds a year? 

Mr. Colasinski: That’s kind of hard to get again. 

Mr. Game: In the analysis we did of the 38, I believe it was 150. 

Mr. Dale: Over 150. 

Mr. Game: Over 150. Out of that 38, it was probably in the 20s. Out of the total, we're 

probably looking somewhere in the 50s, 45 out of the memberships. 

Mr. Dale: So, basically about half of the people are golfing. 

Mr. Game: I would assume. 

Mr. Dale: I know we have several that were doing the 260 rounds. 

Mr. Colasinski: Three times a week. 

Mr. Dale: 260, five times a week. That's the moderate, middle of the road. 

Mr. Carnesale: What would happen if we eliminated the Platinum Plan and the people 

could go anywhere they wanted? They could go to the Gold Plan. They could go to the rack rate, 

if you want to call it that. They can do whatever they wanted as far as instead of. Alright? And 

we did just a flat 25% increase, to the remainder, and still raised the CDD discount from 25% to 

30%. Okay? That way you have to give and take. In that, you would have to go to the Monday 

through Thursday. We have to go to the Monday through Thursday sometime in this, in order to 

be able to make the availability down the road. Alright? But if we're talking about people that are 

golfing a lot that are off anyway, they can golf Monday through Thursday. It doesn't make any 

difference what day it is because they're not working. For the people that are working, then it is a 

big difference whether it's Monday through Thursday or Friday through Sunday. 

Mr. Dale: Effectively, what you're talking about is a variation of my proposal, except 

mine gives a little bit more, because of the fact that we're incorporating those seniors or whatever 

we want to call it. It freezes the rate. 

Mr. Bedwell: Twenty-six play more than 150 times.  

Mr. Dale: I don't know the exact number. 

Mr. Game: It's 31% 
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Mr. Dale: Well, do we have any other proposals on the table that we want to discuss? 

We've got three basically on the table, actually four. Yours is a straight 25% increase. 

Mr. Bedwell: A 30% discount. 

Mr. Showe: Yours is essentially what's been presented. 

Mr. Dale: I think all of them include the 30% discount. Is that a consensus that we all 

agree on? 

Mr. McCarthy: Yes. 

Mr. Colasinski: For CDD residents.  

Mr. Dale: Then we'll just assume all of them have the 30% discount. 

Mr. Bedwell: I think you have to give a bigger discount if you're eliminating Platinum 

and people play on the weekend. 

Mr. Colasinski: I agree. 

Mr. Bedwell: I think we'll have to give something more than a 30% discount. 

Mr. Dale: That's why I like what Steve was talking about. 

Mr. Carnesale: We're all in agreement that we should be giving more of a discount to the 

people that are paying the taxes. 

Mr. Bedwell: On Friday, Saturday, and Sunday, if we eliminate the Platinum and those 

people want to play, I think there should be more than a 30% discount, because in-season, they 

would be paying $52 to play a round of golf. That's a CDD discount. That's the proposed rate. 

Mr. Colasinski: What are you thinking? 

Mr. Bedwell: 35% or 40%. 

Mr. Colasinski: Okay.  

Mr. Dale: But that's in season, Dave. 

Mr. Bedwell: Well, yeah, that's in season. The trouble with that is then you will find 

every CDD resident gets that. 

Mr. Dale: I'm going to be blunt. I asked a number of golfers over the past couple of 

weeks, whether they were a member. A couple of people would surprise you. It goes back to my 

original question that I started all of this with, how much should a round of golf cost? The 

standard answer that I got from all of them, was over the course of the year, $50 a round was not 

excessive. 

Mr. Bedwell: Who did you ask? 
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Mr. Dale: Several people at the golf course. I'm not going to name names. 

Mr. Bedwell: Based on the shape of the golf course, I wouldn't pay more than $40 a 

round. 

Mr. Dale: Well, with the shape that it is in right now, but it's not going to be that way in 

three months. 

Mr. Bedwell: If we don't fix the bunkers and we don't fix the cart path, I will not pay you 

more than $40 a round. 

Mr. Dale: But we are fixing those things. 

Mr. Colasinski: For the weekday, if we gave CDD residents a 40% discount, that would 

be $44, but that's on a weekday. 

Mr. Bedwell: Yeah. 

Mr. Dale: For the weekend, it really isn't much more. On the weekend, we charge $3 

more. So, it's still about the same. It would be $46 on the weekend. 

Mr. Colasinski: I don't see a 40% discount for Friday, Saturday and Sunday for a CDD 

resident unreasonable, 

Mr. Dale: I don’t either. 

Mr. Bedwell: A 40% discount, if you’re going to eliminate Platinum, is probably 

sufficient. 

Mr. Carnesale: Wait, you said 40%? 

Mr. Colasinski: Yes, because that actually gets it to the mid-40s for the rate for CDD 

residents. 

Mr. Bedwell: A CDD resident. 

Mr. Dale: All CDD residents. 

Mr. Colasinski: Yes. 

Mr. Dale: On weekends. 

Mr. Colasinski: Yes. 

Mr. Dale: A weekend is Friday, Saturday and Sunday? 

Mr. Colasinski: Yes. 

Mr. Bedwell: You may not get the people in, if you do what you wanted. 

Mr. Dale: I could live with that. 

Multiple Voices Speaking. 
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Mr. Colasinski: Sorry, but the public comment period is over. 

Mr. Dale: It is just Board discussion right now. 

Mr. Carnesale: Okay, so, if we were to offer a 40% discount on weekends for CDD 

residents and the weekend is Friday, Saturday and Sunday, I don't believe, and Steve will 

probably give me exact numbers, there would be much of a difference in the actual income. 

Mr. Dale: What's that? On a $50 scenario. 

Mr. Carnesale: A $50 rate is $6 less. 

Mr. Dale: It came to $46, is what you said. 

Mr. Colasinski: It depends. On weekdays, it would be $44 and on the weekend, it would 

be $46 per round, with a 40% discount for CDD residents on Friday, Saturday and Sunday. 

Mr. Dale: So, what are you saying? You would want less? 

Mr. Carnesale: Yes. What I'm saying basically is there would be a 30% discount on the 

day rate, which is already lower, and a 40% discount on the weekend, which has a higher rate. 

Mr. Dale: Yeah, but that’s effectively what he just said. 

Mr. Carnesale: Just to be clear. 

Mr. Bedwell: For these people who play year-round, if you give them a 40% discount, 

you would average $39.40, because you've got off-season and mid-season. It would be $39.40. 

Mr. Colasinski: That's what we were talking about before. Dave has a pretty good handle 

on the numbers. 

Mr. Bedwell: I'm thinking of what I would pay. 

Mr. Colasinski: You're very good in conceptualizing. 

Mr. Dale: Here's the other part. I do want to get us thinking in another direction too. I get 

loyalty in people who've have been with us for a long time and everything. Supposedly, how 

many CDD golfers do we have, Chris? 1,770?  

Mr. Game: That's what we have registered. 

Mr. Dale: That doesn’t mean they all golf? 

Mr. Game: Yeah. 

Mr. Dale: There are probably ones in there that go out once a year or something like that. 

But we're also designing a plan that's favorable or good for them also, the rest of the CDD 

golfers. You might look at it as a case in point because you don't have the membership. So, the 

discount works really nice for you. 



August 25, 2022 Viera East CDD 

23 

Mr. Bedwell: Well, I'd always thought there should be a 25% discount for CDD residents 

versus a 20% discount for associates.  

Mr. Dale: I never liked that. No.  

Mr. Colasinski: Dave is saying a 25% discount, but then the CDD resident Monday 

through Friday rate would receive a 30% discount on Thursday and a 40% discount on the 

weekend.  

Mr. Dale: Yes. 

Mr. Showe: The only thing left I heard as a point of discussion was essentially 

eliminating the Platinum Membership and everything else as presented. 

Mr. Bedwell: I threw that out.  

Mr. Showe: Well, that's what I've heard from the Board discussion. 

Mr. Colasinski: That’s not much of a discount. We're trying to make it so that we can get 

more tee times available for people who work during the week as well. 

Mr. Dale: Right. But we're also talking about, I assume, adding in again the senior rate or 

whatever. Are we talking about adding that in? 

Mr. Colasinski: You could add that as an option. 

Mr. Carnesale: No. 

Mr. Colasinski: I'll define it again 

Mr. Carnesale: No, there's not enough people that are involved. 

Mr. Colasinski: What I was talking about was Monday through Thursday, keeping it the 

same rates as the current Gold rates right now. So, it would be $3,600 Monday through Friday 

for a single, if you were 60 and over. 

Mr. Bedwell: 60 and over? 

Mr. Colasinski: Yeah. 

Mr. Bedwell: You'd keep the current membership rate now. 

Mr. Colasinski: The whole rate, but it would be limited to playing Mondays and 

Thursdays. 

Mr. Bedwell: Okay. 

Mr. Dale: The thing that I like about that is it softens the blow of doing away with the 

Platinum. It's basically beats, but we’re making it a little easier so that people aren't going to get 

a jacked-up rate. They're just not going to be available to golf on Fridays. 
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Mr. Bedwell: The 60 and over will get the current 2022 rate, not the 25% increase. 

Mr. Colasinski: Correct. 

Mr. McCarthy: But a person that has a Platinum Membership, would continue to play on 

the weekend until their membership expires. 

Mr. Showe: Yes.  

Mr. Colasinski: I think it's easier to manage. Right, Chris? 

Mr. Game: Very much so. 

Mr. Dale: You made an agreement with them.  

Mr. Colasinski: It's easier for Chris to manage as well as the operations people to 

manage. 

Mr. Dale: I think whatever we decide tonight, as of tomorrow, is the new rate schedule. 

Mr. Colasinski: If there's renewals next week, yeah. 

Mr. Dale: I don't want people lined up outside the door saying, "What happened to the 

Platinum Plan?" 

Resident (Not Identified): So, Platinum is off the table. 

Mr. Colasinski: What do you think?  

Mr. Bedwell: I’m all for getting rid of the Platinum. I think that's a good compromise. 

Mr. Colasinski: With the 40%. 

Mr. Bedwell: The 40% on the tail end of it. The other thing is they're getting five days, so 

that's good for four days. 

Mr. Dale: Right. Without an increase. They're just losing the day. 

Mr. McCarthy: What are you doing with the family one?  

Mr. Bedwell: It's the same thing. 

Mr. Colasinski: As far as the 25%? 

Mr. Bedwell: Oh, I don't know. I thought when you said keep the Gold the same, I 

thought all of it would carry over.  

Mr. Colasinski: With the family one, the differential between them is still lacking. I 

looked at the single rate. A family annual cart fee versus a single annual cart fee, when we add 

that, was only just under 50% of what it would be for single. So, it would 1.5% for having a 

family. I don't know. I think that other places are doing closer to 1.8%. 
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Mr. Bedwell: I agree. If you just look at the Platinum, a single pays $4,280 and for 

$2,000 more, a second person can play. 

Mr. Colasinski: Right. 

Mr. Bedwell: That's great if we were building homes. 

Mr. Dale: Right. That's effectively, I think, where that came from. It was probably back 

at the inception. 

Mr. Bedwell: That's exactly where it came from. 

Mr. Colasinski: Do we want to make that differential a little larger? 

Mr. Dale: We've got two choices then; you can make it larger or get rid of it. 

Mr. Colasinski: Getting rid of it would make it easier to manage. 

Mr. Dale: It would make it easier to manage and with the senior, that's no increase at all. 

Mr. Bedwell: That's 60 and older? 

Mr. Dale: Yeah. 

Mr. Bedwell: Okay. The senior applies to the Gold Membership only. 

Mr. Colasinski: The senior one would adopt the Gold Membership. 

Mr. Dale: The current Gold rates. 

Mr. Colasinski: It would adopt the Gold rates. 

Mr. Dale: Yeah. 

Mr. Bedwell: If you're under 60, you'd pay the 25% increase. 

Mr. Dale: Right.  

Mr. Bedwell: That's workable. 

Mr. Carnesale: It's a compromise that seems to fit into my guidelines, your guidelines and 

obviously, their guidelines. All we have to do now is just describe what we have done. 

Mr. Dale: That's why I just turned to the man over here. 

Mr. Colasinski: I'll make the motion that we start with what David indicated regarding 

the 25% increase across the board for the Gold rate. 

Mr. Dale: Doing away with family. 

Mr. Colasinski: Doing away with the Family Membership and introducing a senior rate 

for 60 and over that would adopt the current Gold Membership rates. 

Mr. Dale: Only for CDD members though. 

Mr. Colasinski: Only for CDD members. 
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Mr. Carnesale: Would we allow new people to join?  

Mr. Colasinski: Let me finish my motion please. The CDD discount rates would be 30% 

Monday through Thursday and 40% Friday through Sunday.  

Mr. Bedwell: When you said eliminate the family membership, what were you saying? 

Mr. Carnesale: The Gold Plan. 

Mr. Showe: Well, I think that's part of your motion too. 

Mr. Colasinski: Yes. We have such a small differential with the Family Membership right 

now and the management of it is very difficult. I just say that we eliminate it. 

Mr. Bedwell: So, a husband and wife both pay the single rate. 

Mr. Showe: A single rate. 

Mr. Dale: One of the other issues that we have with that is it's almost discriminatory. I'm 

surprised that we haven't gotten in on that one. 

Mr. Colasinski: What constitutes a family, is what you're saying? 

Mr. Bedwell: They have to live in the same house. I think that's all it said. 

Mr. Dale: But you see where we were hanging out there a little bit with that one. 

Mr. Bedwell: We didn't check marriage licenses. 

Mr. Dale: What if you have two people that live in different apartments, but they're 

family? I just don't want to go down that road. 

Mr. Colasinski: Is there a second to the motion or a modification? 

Mr. Dale: Let's read it back. 

Mr. Showe: So, you're making the motion to eliminate the Platinum Program. There will 

be no families on any of the Gold plans. There will be a 25% overall rate increase on the 

remaining Gold plans; however, we're going to create a senior rate for 60 and over plus the CDD 

resident rate will adopt the current Gold rates and CDD residents Monday through Thursday, 

will get a 30% discount and a 40% discount Friday through Sunday. 

Mr. Colasinski: That was my motion. 

 

Mr. Colasinski MOVED to adopt the Amendments to Attachment 

A to Chapter IV of the Rules of Procedure and the Golf Course 

Rates for Fiscal Year 2023 as amended, eliminating the Platinum 

Membership and the Family Membership, introducing a Senior 

Gold Membership at the current rate for CDD Members and a rate 

increase of 25%, with a 30% discount for CDD Members Monday 
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through Thursday and a 40% discount on Friday, Saturday and 

Sunday at the Golf Course Manager’s discretion and Mr. Carnesale 

seconded the motion. 

 

Mr. Showe: Is there any further discussion from the Board? 

Mr. Bedwell: I think that's too big of an increase for the Family Membership. That's an 

enormous increase. 

 

On VOICE VOTE with Mr. Dale, Mr. McCarthy, Mr. Colasinski 

and Mr. Carnesale in favor and Mr. Bedwell dissenting, adopting 

the Amendments to Attachment A to Chapter IV of the Rules of 

Procedure and the Golf Course Rates for Fiscal Year 2023, 

eliminating the Platinum Membership and the Family Membership, 

introducing a Senior Gold Membership at the current rate for CDD 

Members and a rate increase of 25%, with a 30% discount for 

CDD Members Monday through Thursday and a 40% discount on 

Friday, Saturday and Sunday at the Golf Course Manager’s 

discretion was approved. (Motion Passed 4-1) 

 

Mr. McCarthy: Chris, I would like for you to get together with Jason in a couple of days. 

Jason, will you forward it to the Board Members and have everything we approved in writing? 

Mr. Showe: I’ll send a draft to the Board to make sure we've recaptured it properly. 

Mr. Carnesale: And how that plays out in terms of what it becomes. 

Mr. Showe: Yeah. 

Mr. McCarthy: So, all of us will be on the same page. 

Mr. Dale: Do we run into any legal issues? I get that we just adopted it, but is he able to 

start selling at those rates tomorrow if he needs to? 

Mr. Showe: No. These would be for Fiscal Year 2023. But it sounds like there's more 

direction to no longer sell the Platinum. 

Mr. Dale: Right. 

Mr. Chris: Just Gold for the time being, at the rates that we have right now. 

Mr. Showe: Right.  

Mr. Colasinski: The other question I have has to do with what's currently the Associate 

Membership. We want to rename it, but are there any modifications that you wish to suggest for 

that?  
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Mr. Bedwell: I think Chris had a suggestion. What did you suggest we call the Associate 

Membership? 

Mr. Game: The Loyalty Program. 

Mr. Colasinski: It’s not the name as much as the dollar amounts. That's what I'm asking, a 

suggestion for a change in, for instance, the fee or anything like that. 

Mr. Game: Did we bring up no longer including the handicap within the Loyalty 

Program, starting on October 1st? 

Mr. Colasinski: I would make the motion that we eliminate handicap services from the 

Associate Membership Program because of the expense. It has gotten much higher. 

Mr. Dale: That is also my recommendation. 

Mr. Showe: That's on the rate sheet already. It says, “No handicap services.” 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Colasinski seconded by Mr. Dale with all in 

favor eliminating handicap services from the Loyalty Program was 

approved.  

 

Mr. Dale: You just got clarification on the Associate Member name change. I would also 

like to make sure we're clear on what we are calling the passes going forward.  

Mr. Showe: I understand. 

Mr. Dale: I'm fine with season passes. Does anybody have a different suggestion? 

Mr. Colasinski: Right now, that is what we call a season pass. 

Mr. Dale: I know it's semantics, but words have meaning. The reason why I think this is 

important is to this day, after all of the advertising that we've been doing for the past two years, 

and everything we have done to make it clear to people that we are not private, I still get asked 

during the month, “Are you a private golf course?” 

Mr. Bedwell: The golf course is the same name as the community. 

Mr. Carnesale: You see the big giant sign as you're coming in off of the main road. 

Mr. Dale: Calling it a membership. 

Mr. Carnesale: It says it's a club. 

Mr. Dale: I prefer to make sure that membership is restricted from everything. That’s 

why its private. 
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Mr. Colasinski: I want to get a point of clarification on here. Chris you are probably the 

best man to answer this. Are we currently offering four month to six month plans? 

Mr. Game: Yes. 

Mr. Colasinski: We are. And there’s a ratio associated with those right now, which is 

70%. 70 % is a reasonable amount. 

Mr. Game: Yes, 70% for six months. 

Mr. Colasinski: And then the four month one was 50%. 

Mr. Dale: What was that based off of? 

Mr. Game: It's just how the rate was calculated. 

Mr. Dale: Right, but we'd just done away with the Platinum Plan. So, what based off of? 

70% of what? 

Mr. Showe: The annual. Except for the Gold, it would be 70% of the annual for the six 

months. 

Mr. Colasinski: Right.  

Mr. Showe: They didn't want to do it right at that amount because then people would 

navigate the system. 

Mr. Dale: So, the Gold plus 25% is what it's based off of? 

Mr. Showe: Yes. 

Mr. Colasinski: I just wanted to clarify that we're still offering those timed passes, the 

four-month, six-month plans and that we understand what the ratios are. 

Mr. Dale: Yes. 

Mr. Colasinski: Okay. Perfect. Thanks. 

Mr. Dale: Do we need a vote on changing the season pass title? 

Mr. Showe: No. 

Mr. Dale: I just want to make sure we're clear. 

Mr. Showe: I think golf course management has sufficient direction for changing the 

name. 

Mr. Dale: Okay. 

Mr. Game: And just clarification on my end, programs that we have right now play 

through to their expiration date. 

Mr. Showe: Correct. 
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Mr. Colasinski: Yes. 

Mr. Game: Including Gold, has not changed to Monday through Thursday, yet. 

Mr. Colasinski: Correct. People need to play out their membership, whatever it is and 

when they wish to renew, they would get the new one. 

Mr. Showe: Yeah. 

Mr. Carnesale: So, if they have a have a Gold or Platinum Membership, that still has six 

months, eight months or whatever on it, then the rules that existed when they bought it or what 

they are following still exists until it expires. Alright? 

Mr. Bedwell: I just think that’s difficult.  

Mr. Carnesale: I'm just saying that's what they agreed to on both sides when they did their 

payment. You can't just cut the bottom out on the agreement. You can change the agreements 

going forward, but you can't change the ones that were already signed. 

Mr. Bedwell: If you walk up to the counter and you say, “I’m a prepay and it's Friday,” 

he's got to determine which prepay you are. If you are grandfathered in, how are you going to do 

that? 

Mr. Game: We're going to have to create a separate icon on our tee sheet basically. I don't 

know how we'll do it, but there's a way to have different programs, whether it literally just says 

old program (OP) on it, or new program (NP). We can work around that. 

Mr. Dale: It appears that we are now through with the rules and rates portion of the 

meeting.  

Mr. Showe: We'll get the budget now. 

 

B. Budget Hearing 

i. Consideration of Resolution 2022-02 Adopting the Fiscal Year 2023 

Budget and Relating to the Annual Appropriations 

Mr. Showe: Since a lot of folks are here, I'll do a quick overview of the assessments and 

how the budget works. I know a lot of you received a letter in the mail. It may have been a little 

confusing. One side says, “Increase” and the other side shows, “Decrease.” Actually, both are 

correct and I'll walk you through how that works. I'll just give you some history. The Viera East 

CDD is one of the larger CDDs in the State. To give you an idea, there are over 31 HOAs within 

Viera. To give you an idea of how the CDD breaks down, we've got let say 31 different 

subdivisions of communities. There are over 4,200 residential units in Viera East and 205 acres 
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of commercial properties. The CDD manages over a thousand acres of wetlands and 

conservation areas. We have a scrub-jay habitat. We maintain 84 ponds that are designed for 

retention. We have over five miles worth of sidewalks and bike paths. We have a restaurant. We 

also oversee Woodside Park, which has the dog park and the natural playground. There are lots 

of various other infrastructures. There are also natural trail areas, along with the championship 

golf course and over 50 CDD staff members. If you ever want to get information from the CDD, 

our website is Vieraeastcdd.com. It has all of the agendas and all of the minutes. Everything 

from the District is listed there. In terms of accomplishments that the District has made over the 

last year, the District performs fire line maintenance. The Board requested and we've put into 

place a program where we used to do about a third of the fire line every year. We now complete 

the entire fire line once a year for the safety of all the homes. We've also done some additional 

treatments on the Bayhill flow way to help with algae, which is one of the main ways water gets 

out of the District. We want to keep that open and flowing for all residents. We've added 

maintenance of the dog park and playground. We've added some Farmers Markets as well. Pete's 

headed up a program to test some lake bank plant materials for erosion properties, as well as 

some additional maintenance equipment that the Board purchased. In terms of the golf course 

operations, we've changed the restaurant to make it CDD owned and operated. We're also 

currently in the process of updating the irrigation system, as well as renovating the Clubhouse 

and driving range along with some other smaller scale projects throughout the District. When 

you get your Tax Bill in November, depending on whatever the Board approves tonight, if the 

budget is approved as the Board has proposed, under the non-ad valorem section at the bottom of 

your Tax Bill, you will see $504. How that breaks out is $139 per home for Debt Service, which 

is the new recreation bond, $236 per home for the General Fund for operation and maintenance 

(O&M) and $129 for the Recreation fund, which is the older recreation debt as well as a small 

portion of operations for the parks. That totals $504. Historically, in Fiscal Year 2019, your total 

assessment was $679. It was the same in 2020 and in 2021. Last year, because we were able to 

come to the end of one of our debt service terms, we were able to reduce the debt service portion 

by about $50. So, your Tax Bill in the current year was $50 less than the prior year. We see 

about a $125 decrease in your total Tax Bill in the Proposed Budget that's coming out. For 

purposes of those that received that letter, obviously, you see an increase in the O&M. That's one 

of the few funds that the Board has flexibility over. By Florida Statute, whenever there's an 
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increase in those O&M funds, the Board is required to send you a mailed notice, even if the total 

assessment is going down, which it is in this case. Just to show you in a pie chart how that breaks 

down, your General Fund is $235, the combined recreation bonds is $250, so that's 50% and then 

there's that small piece that's actually recreation operations up there. In your General Fund, this is 

where a lot of conservation and general activities happen. The General Fund is where that $100 

increase in O&M is going. It's important to note that none of that $100 is going for recreation or 

the golf course at all. It's strictly going to CDD General Fund operations. You've got general 

CDD Administration that includes our park maintenance, lake maintenance, fire maintenance 

and conservation area maintenance. This is where that $100 is really going. It's a transfer to 

capital reserves. As an example, we've got a large-scale culvert project going on right now that 

the Board ratified earlier. It's about a $250,000 project to fix some drainage pipes. The drainage 

system that the District maintains it's an integrated system. If you have a breakdown in one part, 

somebody's house can be getting flooded on the other end. So, it's important that we build those 

reserves up so that when things happen, we can clarify those and get those rectified for the 

benefit of all the residents. 

Mr. Dale: How many lakes do we have in the District? 

Mr. Showe: Eighty-four. 

Mr. Dale: How many culverts? 

Mr. Showe: I wouldn't even know. 

Mr. Dale: But at least 84. Right? 

Mr. Showe: Each one has probably two because typically there's an in and an out. If I had 

to guess how many culverts, you're probably around 200, plus there's some that go in and out of 

wetlands that aren't there. There are at least 200. 

Mr. Dale: How much does it cost for us to fix two culverts? 

Mr. Showe: $250,000. 

Mr. Colasinski: With engineering costs, it’s actually $261,000. 

Mr. Showe: There you go. That's all it costs. Obviously, our General Fund balances 

revenue and expenses. We also want to show you just the golf course. For Fiscal Year 2022, 

which is our current year, we budgeted a little bit of a loss in the golf course. Right now, we're at 

a $466,000 profit on the golf course. Based on our projected budget, its $560,000. Obviously, 

we've got three months to go from that point in the financials, so we'll have to watch where that 
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ends up, but those are the projections that we currently have. In your Golf Course Budget, for 

revenues and expenses, for Fiscal Year 2023, we project a small net income of $6,500. 

Mr. Colasinski: I want to clarify on that Jason. Where it says, “Golf Course Expenses,” it 

includes a certain amount, close to about $250,000 or a little more for the capital reserve for the 

Golf Course Fund. 

Mr. Showe: Correct. 

Mr. Colasinski: That income is after transferring well over $250,000 out into the golf 

course Capital Reserve Fund, which is entirely separate from the District’s Capital Reserve 

Fund. 

Mr. Showe: Correct. Some of the revenues and the categories that we have in the Golf 

Course Budget, we have Greens Fees, Gold Memberships, Associate Memberships and all of 

those revenues that are listed in the Golf Course Budget. 

Mr. Colasinski: Driving Range is actually much higher, which is wonderful. 

Mr. Showe: Absolutely. Regarding our expenses by department, the greatest expense we 

have is maintenance of the golf course. It's hugely expensive. On top of that, all of labor and 

chemical rates have been increasing and the District has been absorbing a lot of those costs as 

well. Then we've got two recreation debts. Again, your Recreation Fund total is about $268 per 

home. That brings in about $1.2 million and predominantly that goes to pay debt service. A small 

amount goes to Woodside Park as part of that Recreation Fund as well as to golf course 

operations and then we transfer out a large majority to capital reserves, which includes the 

excesses and profits made by the golf course. About 1.2 million goes to debt. We've got two 

different debt series; the 2012 bonds, which will be fully paid off in 2026 and the new series, 

2020, which will be paid off in 2038. 

Mr. Dale: Cumulative, are we looking at about $9.7 million right now with our total 

bond? 

Mr. Showe: Correct. Regarding the historical number of rounds of golf and effective 

income, we started 2016, with a loss of about $160 and then went to a profit of $30, $55, $23, 

$18. It was $452 last year. We are projecting right now about $560, depending on how we 

perform the last three months. 

Mr. Colasinski: Those were our highest expense funds? 
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Mr. Showe: Absolutely. Highest expense and lowest revenue. Those were when the 

tropical storms came through. 

Mr. Colasinski: We're actually not doing bad. 

Mr. Showe: The weather has been pretty good. That's obviously the driving factor. I think 

Chris will tell you that. 

Mr. Colasinski: Yeah. 

Mr. Showe: The Capital Projects Fund is used for large-scale capital projects throughout 

the District. At one point in 2016, we were down to about $290,000 and then down to about 

$260,000. We projected at the end of 2023, having about $1.3 million. Again, that's 

predominantly with another $400,000 with $100 increase on O&M. In terms of why we have a 

$100 increase on O&M, predominantly that is additional capital reserve for District operations. 

That will go to drainage, fire line, lake repairs and Woodside Park. We've also projected some 

inflation in all of our contracts. Anything that's driven off of fuel, chemicals and labor, we're 

seeing that in all of our Districts. There are increases proposed by those vendors as well as an 

increase in services. The District allocated $10,000 for midge control, so when we have issues 

with midges on the lakes, we can work to treat them quickly. Again, funds were allocated for the 

Bayhill flow way as well as the Woodside park maintenance. Those are all things that were 

added this year that were not in last year's budget. 

Mr. Dale: What do you see with some of your other CDDs, like Heritage Isles? 

Mr. Showe: We don't do Heritage Isles. Baytree just had a $200 increase, overall. They 

went from $2,000 to $2,200 this year. They provide different services. They have a 24-hour 

guard in the front. So, it's a different level of service. 

Mr. Colasinski: They have a pickup truck driving around on their property. 

Mr. Showe: Overall, almost all of our Districts have had substantial increases this year. 

Mr. Dale: 10% to 20%. 

Mr. Showe: Mostly due to contract costs. With that, I'll open up for any other questions 

of the Board and then we can open it up for audience comments on the Proposed Budget. 

Mr. Dale: I would like to hear from the audience. 

Mr. Showe: Okay. We'll open it up again. Please state your name and address and keep 

your comments to three minutes. 
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Resident Steve Bortner (Auburn Lakes): I live in Wingate Estates, 2107 Auburn Lakes 

Drive. The only question I have is regarding this emergency fund that you stated. Why do you 

need it? Because if there's an emergency, you have the authority to automatically issue another 

assessment, a special assessment. So, why not get that money back to the people in their taxes? 

Mr. Showe: If the Board wants me to address the process, I can. 

Mr. Dale: Let's assume we had six culverts go out, how much would that be? 

Mr. Showe: Obviously you can fix those. He's right, you can do a special assessment 

mid-year, but the process of collecting that type of special assessment is incredibly difficult. We 

would have to send out 4,000 individual bills to individual homes, actually about 6,000 because 

we have to bill the commercial properties too. When you don't bill on the Tax Bill, your chances 

of getting those collections without a lot of legal enforcement is much less. So, that's one of the 

benefits of being a CDD, which is that we can assess on the Tax Bill. This Board thought it was 

prudent to start collecting, obviously not to the level of a giant emergency, but the District also 

has insurance as well. So, depending on the type of emergency, obviously, we would seek a 

special assessment. 

Resident Steve Bortner (Auburn Lakes): Would you call that a Slush Fund? 

Mr. Showe: No. 

Mr. Colasinski: No. I would call it, “A temporary impact to residents on fixed incomes.” 

Mr. Showe: Yeah. Several years ago, the Board approved a Reserve Study. Reserves are 

still underfunded based on what the Reserve Study, given the amount of infrastructure that the 

District currently maintains. 

Resident Steve Bortner (Auburn Lakes): How much per homeowner? 

Mr. Showe: There's an increase in operations at $100 per home. Your overall assessment 

is still going to go down $125. 

Resident Steve Bortner (Auburn Lakes): How much of the $100 is going into this special 

fund that you're starting? 

Mr. Showe: Predominantly all of it, $420. 

Mr. Bedwell: Just to replace depreciable items. 

Mr. Showe: Correct. 

Mr. Dale: Right. 

Mr. Showe: $420,000 of the increase. 
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Mr. Bedwell: The other thing that you need to understand, is one of the first questions 

people ask when you move in an HOA or CDD, have you had any special assessments? It scares 

people away. You don't want to get into special assessments. 

Mr. Dale: The other point that hasn't been brought up is, it's an O&M increase. Any 

future Board can stop it at any time. So, once we get to a reasonable level on reserves, that's 

something a future Board will have to decide. 

Mr. Colasinski: Exactly. It does not intend to go on forever. 

Mr. Dale: Yeah. It doesn't go on forever. Do we have any other questions? Yes sir. Could 

you please state your name and your address? 

Resident Paul Lewis (Grand Isle): My name is Paul Lewis, L-E-W-I-S and I live at 1556 

Grand Isle Boulevard. I have a number of questions that I would like to address. On the Proposed 

Budget, I'm looking at several items that seem to be a little excessive as far as increases. The first 

one is salaries, which is an 8.8% increase. I don't know of many small or large businesses that 

are giving an 8.2% increase in salaries.  

Mr. Colasinski: It also accommodates an increased headcount as well. 

Resident Paul Lewis (Grand Isle): Why do we need more headcount? 

Mr. Colasinski: Because there's more work to do. 

Resident Paul Lewis (Grand Isle): Why? 

Mr. Colasinski: Why? We took on Woodside Park. 

Mr. Showe: Well, there's an additional factor as well and that's that the Florida State 

Legislature passed a minimum wage increase. Most of these employees are part-time and were 

under that minimum wage. So, every year we're going to have to factor in an extra dollar per 

hour. 

Mr. Colasinski: It's not just the wage. It's also the unemployment benefits, the FICA and 

health insurance 

Resident Paul Lewis (Grand Isle): Those are separate items within the budget. 

Mr. Colasinski: That is part of the cost increase. 

Mr. Showe: Correct. 

Mr. Bedwell: Are you looking at the General Fund, Paul, or the Golf Course Fund? I 

don't know which fund you're in. 
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Resident Paul Lewis (Grand Isle): I'm looking at the General Fund. The other question 

that I have is Other Contractual. There was a 60% increase. You're going from $7,500 to 

$12,000. On the first page. 

Mr. Showe: If you go to Page 6 of the budget, there's a full item detail of all of the items 

that go into that amount. 

Resident Paul Lewis (Grand Isle): I don't need to go to Page 6. I'm looking at Page 1. 

Mr. Showe: Page 6 is the narrative that breaks down all of the contracts that are 

associated with that cost. 

Resident Paul Lewis (Grand Isle): Why should there be a 60% increase?  

Mr. Bedwell: I don't know where you're at. Is he in the General Fund? 

Mr. Showe: Yes. 

Mr. Bedwell: Which account is it? 

Resident Paul Lewis (Grand Isle): Its Other Contractual under the admin section. Again, 

if you look at current expenses, we've already spent $11,900 in that account line. It looks like all 

last year's budget was just not where it should have been. 

Resident Paul Lewis (Grand Isle): No, we screwed up last year. Next is the Water 

Management System. 

Mr. Dale: Can we do this another time, because we've got a few other things that we need 

to get through and you are pretty much at the three-minute limit? 

Resident Paul Lewis (Grand Isle): Do you want questions from the general public or not? 

Mr. Dale: We are at your three-minute time limit, sir. What I am going to suggest is, you 

can get your questions answered right after the meeting. 

Resident Paul Lewis (Grand Isle): Forget it! 

Mr. Showe: Are there any other public comments?  

Resident (Sonya Kopliner, Woodhall Circle): 4275 Woodhall Circle. I strongly object to 

the special assessment that includes the $20,000 to maintain a FREE Woodside dog park and 

playground. If you had taken the time and researched how to build parks properly, you wouldn't 

have wasted tens of thousands of dollars on the build and now continuous maintenance. Instead 

of charging the CDD residents of which a vast majority, maybe 90% don't use the parks, charge a 

gate fee for the dog parks for non-CDD residents. Offer them a discount for annual and monthly 

pass and have them pay full price for the daily pass. Everyone has a swipe card to get in. This 
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way you can keep track of how many people actually use these parks. Let non-residents help pay 

for the high water and electric bills, the maintenance guy that we had to hire for the park and to 

stock the $3,000 worth of poop bags. Your sponsorship monies mostly cover the cost of the 

banners that are not appealing to the public. Every day during the week that I drive by the dog 

parks, they're empty and now the playground is empty as well. You could have built a beautiful 

park for half the money wasted on it and now a drain on the CDD residents. We have a public 

golf course that you have to pay to use now and now we have a public dog park that you should 

also have to pay to use. The Board wasted approximately $1 million of CDD resident monies in 

the past three years. Three Board members fought to reduce the 2020 bond money that we could 

be using right now. We're opposed to the extra money budgeted in the bond for the Clubhouse 

and restaurant reservations. It cost us $450,000 in legal fees and we've lost a few extra million in 

the bond. Now we can't afford to go after these this monies so we've lost it. You've wasted 

$230,000 by putting an overpriced poorly planned dog park ahead of the irrigation project and 

now you've taken budgeted monies away from other projects because you need to use it for the 

Clubhouse and restaurant. I find this Board to be imprudent in their fiduciary responsibilities and 

it's costing us more money each year because of their poor decision-making without planning 

and researching things properly before acting and wasting our money. The restaurant is another 

example of all the monies you cost us and the continuing loses. 

Mr. Dale: Anybody else? 

Mr. Showe: Is there anybody else with public comments? Hearing none, we can return 

back to the Board for discussion of the budget or consideration of the resolution. 

Mr. Colasinski: What are you looking for here? Additional discussion on the budget? 

Mr. McCarthy: On the budget. 

Mr. Showe: Or if the Board is amenable, you could just take a motion to approve 

resolution 2022-02 as presented. 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Colasinski seconded by Mr. McCarthy with 

all in favor Resolution 2022-02 Adopting the Fiscal Year 2023 

Budget and Relating to the Annual Appropriations was adopted. 
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ii. Consideration of Resolution 2022-03 Imposing Special Assessments 

and Certifying an Assessment Roll 

Mr. Showe: The second resolution we have to consider under the budget is resolution 

2022-03. This is a resolution that actually imposes the special assessments. Attached to this 

resolution will be the Adopted Budget that you just approved, as well as a 75-page spreadsheet 

that goes to the Tax Collector. If anybody who would like to inspect it, we have it. This lays out 

every property within the District and shows you the assessments that are levied on the tax bill. 

Again, we'll open it up for public comment, but the public comment would just relate to the 

imposition of special assessments. So, we'll open it up again for public comment should you 

have any. Hearing none, we can return back to the Board for a motion or a consideration of 

Resolution 2022-03. 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Carnesale seconded by Mr. McCarthy with 

all in favor Resolution 2022-03 Imposing Special Assessments and 

Certifying an Assessment Roll was adopted. 

 

Mr. Showe: With that, we need a motion to close the public hearings? 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Colasinski seconded by Mr. Dale with all in 

favor the public hearings for the rules and rates and the Fiscal Year 

2023 budget were closed. 

 

SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Old Business 

A. Action Items List 

Mr. Showe: The next item we have is a discussion of the Action Items List. I don't think 

there's a whole lot on here for Board consideration at this point. 

Mr. Dale: I don't think there's anything. 

Mr. Showe: Yeah. So, we can go past that. There's really nothing new there.  

 

EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Staff Reports 

A. General Manager’s Report 

Mr. Showe: We will go to the General Manager's Report. 

Mr. Game: I have nothing in relation to CDD maintenance, at the moment, that I am 

aware of for golf course maintenance. 
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Mr. Colasinski: Other than the update on where we're at with the park maintenance and 

getting the bridges updated. The latest information I have is the bridge reconstruction will be 

starting on September 3rd. I’m meeting tomorrow with the vendor about the maintenance. I talked 

with Ed about the scope of work and he wanted to expand it a bit more, so I'm bringing the 

vendor back to take a second look so he can get a price. I’m very thankful for that. 

Mr. Showe: Got you. 

Mr. Colasinski: It makes his job a lot simpler.  

Mr. Game: For golf course maintenance, right now, the irrigation project is currently on 

Hole 1, which is going to be going to be finished up today. It's going to be open as normal for 

tomorrow, so we’re back to a front-line, start there. Then they're going to start the driving range 

irrigation starting tomorrow. We're going to have the driving range closed through Wednesday, 

potentially Tuesday. They said Wednesday worst-case scenario. They're also going to start the 

driving range tee tomorrow as well. So, that's all I have for the porch renovations side. For golf 

operations rounds and revenue, last year in August of 2021, we were at $100,399.84, which was 

an average dollar per day of $3,238.70. As of right now, through August 24th, yesterday, we were 

at $79,536.41, which has an average dollar per day of $3,314.2. So, right now, we're slightly 

above the average dollar per day for last year. If we have good weather, we look to break that 

number as well. 

Mr. McCarthy: I find it astounding the number of people that are playing and the 

revenues are good for all of that equipment out there and all that stuff going on. Unbelievable. 

Mr. Game: It's amazing. 

Mr. Dale: That coupled with the restaurant renovations. We're hitting the same numbers. 

I'm going to be shocked once we're doing the interior repairs, if we're still hitting comparable 

numbers with just a patio. 

Mr. Colasinski: Will see.  

Mr. McCarthy: Time will tell. 

Mr. Game: Then one last thing. I have the numbers for the Hook & Eagle Tavern. Last 

year of August 2021, which was under Divots Grill, they did $17,413.03. As of today, excluding 

burger night, when Ines ran the report, it was at $34,258.44. So, with a few days left, we have 

broken the record by quite a large amount. That's all I have. 

Mr. Spencer: It’s about $45,000. 
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Mr. Dale: For the worst month of the year. 

Mr. Colasinski: The other thing Chris and I talked about, was Number 7. What's going on 

there? I guess it happened on Monday. 

Mr. Game: Yeah. They're fixing the culvert pipe on Number 7. On Monday they're going 

to start that whole process. So, we're just going to close the front line down because there's no 

way to properly get golf carts through while they're doing that. It's going to be the back nine only 

for this upcoming Monday. 

Mr. Bedwell: Next Monday? 

Mr. Game: Yeah. We're going to offer a discounted rate of $35 for the general public. 

Mr. Colasinski: We all have a much better chance of a hole in one on Number 7? 

Mr. Game: Yes. 

Mr. Bedwell: I love that lime green shot. 

Mr. Game: It's great. 

Mr. Colasinski: We had to do that for the safety of the workers. 

Mr. Bedwell: But I'm afraid it spoiled me, Steve. It's hard to move back. 

Mr. Colasinski: I played it yesterday and all I could get was birdie.  

Mr. Colasinski: Some other stuff too what's happening with activities with the 

Clubhouse. We're supposed to have the first section of Flora Don tomorrow.  

Mr. Dale: No.  

Mr. Colasinski: Did Joe talk to you? 

Mr. Dale: Yes. 

Mr. Colasinski: I assumed when you said no, it was because something came up with 

him. Because I didn't hear anything from him in last two days and I figured he was evading me. 

Mr. Dale: We're looking at Wednesday or Thursday of next week. We're doing our 

assembly on Monday at Joe’s suggestion. 

Mr. Colasinski: What are you assembling? 

Mr. Dale: All of the furniture is coming in. 

Mr. Colasinski: For the patio? 

Mr. Dale: For the patio. We have 56 chairs and stools and about 16 tables or something 

like that to assemble. What Joe shared was we can still continue on with our assembly party and 
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then store it in one of the breezeways. Then we can just move it over to the patio the day after 

they pour it. 

Mr. Colasinski: Other things that are coming up is the hood replacement in the restaurant 

and Jeff, can clarify it because it's incorrect. I believe that should be the 19th on Monday. 

Mr. Spencer: Yeah. The hood replacement and all the renovations are scheduled for 

Monday, September 19th. The movers coming in on the 19th. Joe's guys come in on the 19th. We 

will be moving out on the 19th to set up a mobile kitchen to service the new patio. In regards to 

the flooring, we have anywhere between now and the 19th to be able to get that done. We have 

leeway, if they happen to delay because of materials or anything else like that. Joe's done a really 

good job in keeping ahead of things. So, we're okay. 

Mr. Colasinski: So that's really kind of the major milestones that are coming up. With the 

Clubhouse renovation, the carpeting is done in the pro shop area. The next phase is our drywall 

and painting. Then there will be the installation of all of the new fixtures and the new counter in 

the pro shop. 

Mr. Dale: I have an addendum. There was supposition that at least prior to today, there 

was a drywall ceiling above the drop-down ceiling in the pro shop. If it was there, there was 

consideration that maybe we should just take it back to the drywall ceiling. Apparently, Joe got 

up there today and the drywall ceiling there is only in the office portion. There is no drywall 

ceiling over the drop-down ceiling in the pro shop. But what Joe did share with me is that there's 

plenty of batt insulation. He said it's in great condition and his recommendation was essentially 

just to leave the drop-down ceiling and not spend the extra money on putting in drywall. 

Mr. Bedwell: There are no stains in the drop-down? 

Mr. Colasinski: That’s the thing. I could get some new tiles. 

Mr. Dale: I don't know if there were one or two, but compared to the restaurant, it's not 

anywhere near as bad. 

Mr. Colasinski: But the thing is, if we could get into tiles to replace what's there. 

Mr. Dale: Absolutely. 

Mr. Colasinski: Because they can just yellow over time. 

Mr. Dale: That was one of his comments. He said, not only would you have to replace the 

ceiling and go to the drywall and all of that, but all of the track lighting and everything that's 

already installed, you would have to replace and do something. 
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Ms. Campos: Some of the light fixtures are broken. 

Mr. Dale: So, they need repair. 

Ms. Campos: They have been replaced at the ends to fit for LED lights, but they're 

missing glass or missing parts.  

Mr. Dale: Well, then we need to repair all of that. 

Mr. Carnesale: You have to look at them and see how bad they are and whether they're 

worth repairing. 

Mr. Dale: Exactly. That's what I mean by repair. Either repair or replace them. 

Mr. Colasinski: The other thing was the moving of the starter shack towards the number 

one tee, a little closer down there. There's some cart path work that would be done there too. We 

had people lined up to start on September 8th, but it looks like we're lacking a survey to be able to 

go get the building permit for that. Joe is working with the county right now to see if we can just 

do a smaller survey instead of having to do the entire property because that's a huge undertaking. 

The other one was the cart path extensions are going to start on September 22nd, but we're going 

to have to get in there a couple of weeks earlier. Chris, Dave Bell, Jim and I are going to meet on 

Monday to discuss the logistics because he has to fill in those holes on the front nine. We just 

have to figure out the impact on operations. Dave Bell used to work with the people on the golf 

course doing this work and I want to understand the protocol for keeping people safe, essentially. 

There are other things that are going on, but I won't go into all of the details on that. Ines, do you 

have anything you want to add? 

Ms. Campos: No. Jeff knows that I need to know about having to get new pods for when 

they have to move their things and I want to know at least the timing of delivery. 

Mr. Colasinski: We're also going to be having the bathrooms re-done next month as well. 

We're also going to be getting some portable trailers being moved in on the South end of the 

restaurant to accommodate that for a few days. I think there's more, but I think we got we got a 

handle on things. Things are evolving, but they're evolving quickly because they’re trying to get 

done by the end of first week in October. There was a lot to do, yet. Things are happening. That's 

it for the addendum to the General Manager’s Report. 

Mr. Dale: Thank you. Just for the record. I know we appointed Steve and everything, but 

that appointment didn't come with any extra money or anything. He has been in there every 
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freaking day working his butt off. On behalf of the Board, I just would like to say thank you for 

all of the time that you are donating. 

Mr. Colasinski: I’m happy to do it. I’ve done it before. 

Mr. Carnesale: I was there last week basically saying the same thing, direct to him. 

Mr. Colasinski: I think we're all just trying to help Time out and to keep things moving 

forward so that when he comes back, he picks up right where he normally would. 

Mr. Carnesale: Well, I believe everybody is chipping in to some extent, but the point is 

that you've been spending an abnormal amount of time on this, in terms of your donation of time. 

Mr. Dale: So, thank you, Steve. 

 

B. District Manager’s Report 

i. Presentation of Arbitrage Rebate Calculation Report 

Mr. Dale: Next is the District Manager’s Report. I'm really interested in hearing about the 

arbitrage. 

Mr. Showe: Good. I'll make it quick so you don't fall asleep. Essentially, this is a required 

test that we have to do annually. Because you have tax exempt bonds, there is a provision in 

there that says the District can't earn 2.8% interest on those bonds. It would be impossible for 

you to do it in the market any way, but we are required to make that test. If you go to Page 4 of 

that report, the bottom statement says that no rebate library exists and we’re in compliance. So, 

it's really just a presentation of that report. 

Mr. Dale: Along that line. I do have a quick question for you. I remember at one point in 

time, we said that when the 2006 water bond was paid off, there was a chance that there may be 

some leftover funds. 

Mr. Showe: Yeah. That actually was reflected in your budget. 

Mr. Dale: I just don't remember what the final number on that was. 

Mr. Showe: I'll track it down. If it's not in your budget, I'll track it down and get it to you.  

 

ii. Ratification of Requisition No. 118-123  

Mr. Showe: We have Requisitions #118 through #123. They are included as part of your 

agenda package and we can take any questions or comments on those or just a motion to 

approve. Those are all reimbursements to the CDD for expenses made for on behalf of those 

capital projects. 
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Mr. Colasinski MOVED to ratify Requisitions #118 - 123 as stated 

above and Mr. Carnesale seconded the motion. 

 

Mr. Carnesale: Those are things that we’ve discussed over and over again. 

 

On VOICE VOTE with all in favor Requisitions #118 - 123 as 

stated above were ratified.  

 

iii. Approval of Fiscal Year 2023 Meeting Schedule 

Mr. Showe: The final item is just the approval of the Fiscal Year 2023 meeting schedule. 

We are required under the Florida Statutes to announce an annual meeting schedule. We've kept 

it pretty much the same way as it is, with workshops on the 2nd Tuesday and meetings on the 4th 

Thursday at 7:00 p.m. in this building. Again, that doesn't mean you can't cancel them and that 

we can't have meetings, but we are required to advertise a meeting schedule. So, if the Board is 

amenable, you can approve that as presented or approve it with changes.  

Mr. Carnesale: My only question is how that goes with the holidays. 

Mr. Showe: We can actually rotate those up for November and December, if you'd like. It 

looks like she forgot to do that. 

Mr. Colasinski: I believe it's been historically the case. Right? 

Mr. Showe: Yes. Typically, we would do November 3rd and November 17th, if you'd like. 

That puts it out of the week of Thanksgiving. 

Mr. Dale: The 17th meets our requirement for our new Board Members to be sworn in?  

Mr. Showe: No, it would not. We can swear them in, in early December so they can 

participate in the workshops. We would just want to swear them in separately. I think it's two 

weeks after the election date. The election is on the 8th, so, I don't think they can swear them in 

until the 22nd. I'll double-check it. Otherwise, you're meeting was on Thanksgiving. 

Mr. Carnesale: So, my question was a good question. 

Mr. Showe: I'm pretty sure we're not going to get the Church on Thanksgiving. 

Mr. Carnesale: And Christmas? 

Mr. Showe: Yeah. My suggestion would be November 3rd and November 17th and 

December 1st and December 15th. 

Mr. Dale: Okay. 
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Mr. Bedwell: Is this schedule in our booklet inaccurate then? Is that what you're saying? 

Mr. Showe: Yeah, I think the November and December ones we typically move those up 

a month or week. 

Mr. Bedwell: The first week and the third week. 

Mr. Showe: Yeah. They didn't do that. 

Mr. Colasinski: Alright, but you got the dates. I make a motion to accept the meeting 

schedule with those modifications. 

Mr. Dale: I know it would be a pain in the butt, but I am going to ask that the two Board 

Members attend on November 17th as their final meeting. 

Mr. Bedwell: Yeah, that's fine. That's when they can be sworn in. 

Mr. Carnesale: They can't be sworn in on the 17th. 

Mr. Showe: I don't think they can.  

Mr. Carnesale: It’s on the 22nd or something like that. 

Mr. Showe: Yeah. 

Mr. Dale: We were sworn in on the 16th, but I believe election day was the 2nd. 

Mr. Showe: Correct. Election day is not until the 8th.  

Mr. Carnesale: Basically, they'll get sworn in on December 1st. 

Mr. Showe: Well, we can swear them in before the workshop. That way they can 

participate fully in the workshop without any issues, before the December workshop. 

Mr. Dale: On that date. 

Mr. Carnesale: On the date of the workshop. 

Mr. Dale: Because I'm not coming in during Thanksgiving weekend. 

Mr. Showe: No. Taking care of the oath is easy. We can do that outside of a Board 

meeting. 

Mr. Dale: Okay. 

Mr. Showe: I'll double-check the swearing in date. 

Mr. Colasinski: While discussing that, for the sake of clarity, I want to keep the golf 

course closed again this Thanksgiving, like we did last year.  

 

On MOTION by Mr. Colasinski seconded by Mr. McCarthy with 

all in favor the Fiscal Year 2023 meeting schedule as amended was 

approved.  
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Mr. Showe: That’s all that I have under my report. 

 

C. Lifestyle/Marketing Report 

Ms. Webb: Hello. We didn’t have a busy month, but it's also back-to-school month. We 

still have trivia going on every Wednesday. Last night was busy. We had two or three slow 

weeks, but now we are really busy. We also have singles night coming up this Saturday night. 

This is like the second round. We’ve actually made two connections. We have been advertising, 

based on what is going on with the golf course, the grand opening. We have that going on as 

well. The Farmer’s Market is slow because it's hot and people are out of town. We had 18 

vendors. It’s the slowest market ever. 

Mr. Carnesale: However, the individual people that ran those 18 booths, were very happy 

with their sales. 

Ms. Webb: We had our first ever produce vendor and she was amazing. 

Mr. Carnesale: That's a good start because if she was there now, we've got a good chance 

that she’ll be there going forward. 

Ms. Webb: She sold out of a lot of stuff and she said, "Now I know what to bring." She 

brought seafood and sold out of the seafood by Noon. That was amazing. We have gotten two 

more banners. I know a resident indicated that we pay for the banners. The cost of banners 

comes out of sponsorship money. We don't pay for the banners. The people who would sponsor 

the park pay for them. 

Mr. Dale: She missed the other line item that shows the income. 

Ms. Webb: Yeah. It’s been 12 months. September is our wedding anniversary at the 

Farmer’s Market, so we're going to try to have a big one. Also, I'm trying to do a Food Truck 

Saturday on the 17th of September. We actually had five food trucks wanting to participate. 

There was also music that afternoon while it was going on.  

Mr. Dale: Have we gotten in touch with Prince of Peace Church? 

Ms. Webb: Yes. They want October. 

Mr. Dale: October 29th, that Saturday. 

Ms. Webb: They want to do a Fall Festival weekend on Halloween weekend. 

Mr. Dale: Is that open to the public? 
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Ms. Webb: Yes, it's open to the public. They weren’t doing it as a private event 

Mr. Dale: Okay. Just so the Board is aware of what is going on. This is Prince of Peace 

Church right across from the park. These are the guys that allow us to use their parking and they 

have been great working with us. In return, what they've asked of us is to be able to utilize the 

park on October 29th for a Fall Festival. 

Ms. Webb: Yeah, a Fall Festival. They are going to have a bouncing house for the kids 

and everything. It’s for the community really. It's like when we did the Easter egg hunt. That's 

pretty much what the Church wants to do. 

Mr. Dale: Right. Actually, I guess I'm informing the Board, but I'm also asking the 

Board's permission. I don't think normally we let outside groups utilize the park for functions, 

but this is one that's a CDD member and letting us use their property. 

Mr. McCarthy: I think it's a great idea. Jason, do we have any problems even though it's a 

Church letting someone on our property for an event? 

Mr. Showe: No. I think we're okay. 

Mr. McCarthy: Okay. If Jason says we are okay, we are okay 

Mr. Showe: We're already hosting all of the other events there. As long as they're using it 

for the designated park space. It’s not a use that would be unnatural with that type of area. It 

should be fine. 

Mr. Dale: Right.  

Ms. Webb: I told them that I would help set up the design with them.  

Mr. Dale: Great. I think we have a real good partnership going with them. I'd like to be 

able to keep that going. 

Ms. Webb: So, we are going to start doing events, once this outside restaurant starts 

opening up. I know that Eddie has done some of the women's clinics. He’s had all six placements 

booked. We definitely have a good following. We have about right now on our mailing list for 

women's golf, about 40. Most of the ladies came in and met their husbands there too. So, it’s 

definitely making an impact. At the next one, we are having Eddie give a club demonstration for 

the women to let them know what clubs they are for.  

Mr. Colasinski: I believe they allow them to try them out.  
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Ms. Webb: It should be a good thing for them. We are starting to get very well-known. 

I've got people e-mailing me asking me about it because their friends heard about that. Some of 

them aren’t even in the CDD. 

Mr. Dale: Just again to inform the Board, I had a meeting with Eddie, Chris and Ines this 

week. One of the things that I asked Eddie to start getting together, at least get an outline 

together, of what potentially a corporate package would look like. What I asked of the Board, 

especially those of you with some experience, is if you would maybe just stop by and talk to 

Eddie and give him your two cents worth. Because we don't know exactly what we can throw 

into this thing, I told him Google is his friend and talk to people with expertise in the area. 

Mr. Dale: Thank you, Michelle. 

Mr. Colasinski: During the meeting, I received an email from Jason that had a Marketing 

Report. I'm going to say something here about it.  

Ms. Webb: My daughter was in the house on Sunday. 

Mr. Colasinski: We can't help you as a Board if we don't know about what’s going on. 

We'd like to have conversations about it. Normally, this information comes out last Friday for the 

agenda. If you can have it to us on the Friday when Brittney sends it out, then we have time to 

review it and then we can ask questions and have some informed dialogue. I understand that life 

happens, but we plan for these things. This is not my first request either. 

Ms. Webb: I thought this report that I generated was showing you the website numbers 

and things like that. 

Mr. Colasinski: What you just gave right now, I would expect in there so we can ask 

what's going on, the activities that are going on, any obstacles or issues that you have with those 

activities. Because we should be able to help you at this point, but if we don’t know, we can't 

have the conversation. 

Ms. Webb: I generated that report to show you the numbers on the website. 

Mr. Colasinski: Well, we're also raising our marketing budget for next year too, 

substantially. So, we have an understanding of what's going on. I don't think it's an unreasonable 

request. 

Ms. Webb: I'm just showing you the numbers on the website. 

Mr. Colasinski: Well, when we have the budget, we should be talking about the activity 

related to the budget in your report.  
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Ms. Webb: Okay. 

Mr. Colasinski: Because that tells us how we are spending our money. That's what it 

should be related to. 

Ms. Webb: Alright. I’m sorry. 

Mr. Colasinski: That's okay. You provided a very good budget. It's just a matter of if 

those things are in there to say what's going on, any obstacles or issues that you have, things that 

we might be able to help you with. Because we should be helping you rather than anything else. 

Mr. Dale: Also, this is an FYI for the Board. When is the last time Golf Now has sent 

anything out? 

Ms. Webb: It's all in that report. It was back in July.  

Mr. Colasinski: Of this year? 

Ms. Webb: Of this year. 

Mr. Colasinski: Okay. 

Ms. Webb: I put that in every single report about the last time we posted. They are not 

meeting the contract. I've had numerous conversations with Chelsea and she is aware of the lack 

of attention.  

Mr. Colasinski: They have a contract renewal next year, so that’s part of that discussion.  

Ms. Webb: I'm just going to start sending her the calendar to show everything that’s 

going on with the golf course and generate it from there. I've given her everything that I have. 

Mr. Colasinski: Right and it's just not coming out. 

Ms. Webb: Chris will tell you how easy it is. I send him the thing and he just posts it. 

Mr. Colasinski: Right. You're doing great work and there's no question about that. That's 

awesome. You can see what you're doing with the activities like last night at the Farmer’s 

Market and all the other activities. You’re doing great work and no one will question that. I'd like 

to see if there's a way we could help you in some way or another or if you have obstacles or 

issues that we can help you resolve. That’s all.  

Ms. Webb: I got it. 

Mr. McCarthy: I feel we all have a responsibility to the CDD residents and our customers 

are very important to us, all of our customers. I think we demonstrated it with the budget we 

presented today with our revenues. We did a good job. People will make their own mind up, but 

we did the best we could. 
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Mr. Dale: I've said for two years that I dreaded this meeting because I thought this would 

be the most difficult meeting, at least of our tenure.  

Mr. McCarthy: Speaking for me, I can't speak for David, but the bond was a little bit 

tough. 

Mr. Showe: Those are such contentious meetings. 

 

D. Restaurant Report 

Mr. Dale: Jeff, do you have anything that you want to add to the Restaurant Report? 

Mr. Spencer: Nothing in particular. So far we've looked good on our renovations and the 

schedule. Everything seems to be moving along right on plan. The outside bar is amazing. The 

excitement over it is more amazing. I get questioned every day on when we are opening the bar 

outside. They all want to sit at the bar outside, which we are very excited about and terrified 

about at the same time. 

Ms. Campos: We're opening the bar. 

Mr. Spencer: To backtrack a little bit, we added some seats, tables and chairs and things 

like that inside. It brings us to 93 seats inside with an additional, I think, 56 including the bar 

outside.  

Mr. Dale: Good. 

Mr. Spencer: It puts us at a really good capacity of around 140 to 145 people. It's going to 

give us amazing opportunities to do new things as we have two different dining spaces. It opens 

it up to where we can have groups, we can have different things happening on the golf course 

and we'll be able to do multiple things at the same time. It's just going to be great for both the 

restaurant, the golf course and the community. We're really excited about the November 12th 

grand reopening date, if that's the date we are honing in on, and hosting this great big event. I 

really would love to see us to be able to get 250 to 300 or more people to see the new space. I'm 

reaching out to our vendor for some freebies on both food and liquor. We're going to have some 

companies that are bringing some sponsorship over, we're going to have some swag bags with 

different things to make things really exciting to give that wow factor. I think one of the biggest 

things that we're looking at is we feel that we are going to have the best sunset view of any patio 

dining in the entire county and we can't wait for people to see that. It's just going to be amazing. 

Mr. Colasinski: We have to start with marketing that. 
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Mr. Spencer: Yeah. We're going to market that. I would like to thank everyone on the 

Board for all the support that we've gotten over the last several months because you guys have all 

just been absolutely amazing. 

Mr. Dale: We've talked about signature glasses. 

Mr. Bedwell: I have a logistics question. I'm familiar with the restaurant. If I walk in and 

sit down at the bar, how logistically is the waiter is going to know that I'm out there? How are 

they going to handle that? 

Mr. Spencer: This is a fantastic question. I have a plan for this as far as growing into it. 

What we're going to do is, in the time that we are closed inside, we're going to bring on more 

staff. Because from September 19th to when we close, is when we are expecting an increase in 

business, which means that we can also increase our labor pool a little bit. So, I'm going to hire 

two additional people and we are going to set a schedule for when the bar outside is going to be 

open. I’m during our prime times, Wednesday, Thursday, Friday, and Saturday, as well as 

Sunday morning. Because I think Sunday morning for breakfast over there is going to be 

phenomenal. We're immediately planning on doing those times. For the other times, we're going 

to bring in additional people to be able to service that area. The goal is to always have someone. 

Mr. Bedwell: Are you going to assign a waiter to the patio?  

Mr. Spencer: Yeah, that is the goal. With that caveat, we will have to grow into Monday, 

Tuesday, and Wednesday during the day because they are our lowest revenue days. So, we still 

need to make sure that our current people are able to make money. 

Mr. Bedwell: Do they share tips? 

Mr. Spencer: Yes. 

Mr. Bedwell: Do they make tips from individual tables? 

Mr. Spencer: We have a tip pool. 

Mr. Bedwell: Okay. 

Mr. Spencer: It's important that our folks still make money, otherwise, we can't retain 

employees and the employees are a little hard to come by. Those days are a balance of making 

sure that we're taking care of our customers, making sure that we're taking care of our 

employees, while also making sure that we're able to grow the business, especially in our peak 

times. Because guaranteed, Wednesday, Thursday, Friday, Saturday, and Sunday morning, 

people are going to want to go out there, especially once it starts raining. 
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Mr. Bedwell: Well, if it gets busy like I thought you would say, you're going to have to 

assign a waiter to the patio. 

Mr. Spencer: Yeah. 

Mr. Bedwell: There's no other way to do it. 

Mr. Spencer: No, there's no other way to do it. One other thing is that we would not be 

able to do it without the support of the Board and everybody as far as upgrading our POS system. 

We would never be able to do it. Those technological advancements that we've done with our 

system, have created a world of ease, not to mention we're able to do a lot more with a lot less 

people. Now we're going to be able to do that whole patio and be able to make it work. It would 

have been extremely difficult to do that without that. The new POS system has paid off. 

Mr. Colasinski: Real quick, put the wireless repeater up in the attic to cover the patio for 

the handheld devices. 

Mr. Bedwell: I think it's going to be very crowded. We should have a waiter out there 

dedicated to the patio. 

Mr. Carnesale: You can have one out there with the POS system that can key in all of the 

orders and the kitchen gets it. He doesn't have to run back and forth. 

Mr. Dale: I think probably what we'll have to do is post a sign out there saying they 

should feel free to sit on the patio, but it's not being manned right now. 

Mr. Spencer: Even when someone comes out, we've always handled it now, but Dave, 

you made a phenomenal point of when someone sits out there, they have to let the wait staff 

know. 

Ms. Webb: Dave, they do have those chimes where you walk by them and it rings 

somewhere. We use them in some of our rooms at school. 

Mr. Dale: Perhaps we could get another air raid siren. 

Ms. Webb: They're not that expensive and they're not very loud.  

Mr. Spencer: Some things that Steve and I have been talking about too, is as we're 

offering curbside pickup and the dining outside, is to be able to have a monitor system inside the 

restaurant and cameras out in those areas so you can see. 

Mr. Colasinski: When someone pulls up for their order. 
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Mr. Spencer: When someone pulls up for their order or when someone is on the patio, 

you can get a glimpse of that without having to be right there. Stuff like that it's pretty 

inexpensive now to be able to offer the best service ever. 

Mr. Dale: That is a good concern. Maybe on the short interim, it might require letting 

waitstaff know you're here or something like that. 

Mr. Bedwell: Do you see the point if you keep growing someday that you might have to 

have a bartender? 

Mr. Spencer: It’s possible. Well, I can tell you on Thursday nights where, generally 

speaking, it’s so busy, we've changed the way that we service things. We have a dedicated 

bartender on Thursday.  

Mr. Bedwell: I would think so. 

Mr. Spencer: What we will end up moving to on our prime times is a system where we 

have, of course, the guys in the back and then we have a bartender, servers and most likely a 

food runner. As the business grows, we have to be agile enough into our systems in order to 

make everything work. Also, we need to understand that there's certain times that we're not going 

to be realistic. I'm certain that the same week next summer on a Monday, we're not going to be 

packed to the gills with people so you have to be able to make it small and make it big. We do a 

good job with that. 

Ms. Webb: To go back to open day, I was going to send special invitations out to the City 

of Melbourne’s Mayor to announce our grand opening and invite celebrities that live in Brevard 

County. So, if you guys know of anybody or have someone special you want a special invitation 

for, please let me know. 

Mr. Colasinski: I'd like to thank Jeff for his fiscal responsibilities. It's amazing because 

all of the old chairs and bar stools, which we bought for $400 and used for 10 months, Jeff 

managed to sell them for $500. That's Jeff. 

Mr. Carnesale: But you got to remember that Jeff and his people basically did repairs to 

those. 

Mr. Colasinski: They did, but the thing is that he can make money into something that 

was already used. That just shows you how Jeff is. 

Mr. Dale: Michelle, when again is the grand re-opening? 

Ms. Webb: On November 12th. 
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Mr. Dale: Which day is that? 

Ms. Webb: Saturday. 

Mr. Spencer: The plan is that we will do an afternoon through evening. We're still 

working out all of the details on that. We are going to do an afternoon through evening event. It's 

not just about the restaurant. We want to encompass the golf side and bring in vendors. Just have 

a family-friendly fun event. 

Mr. Colasinski: We wanted you to do things on the driving range and Tim says it's maybe 

about 10 weeks away. He said that its going to be pretty close, with regards to getting that new 

grass and having it ready. 

Mr. Bedwell: It'll be nice. 

Mr. Colasinski: It'll be beautiful. I think you can pack a lunch for people to get to the 

front of range. To walk out there, you need a lush to it. 

Mr. McCarthy: It didn't smell really good today. 

Mr. Colasinski: Well, that was Jim putting the compost down. I wanted to entertain the 

idea, we have a period coming up here in 2 to 3 weeks, potentially, with the restaurant, with the 

indoors being shut down and moving to the outdoors. Now, in doing that, we're not sure what 

kind of business we're going to get, because we're only offering outdoor service. One of the 

things that we had in the bond was when we had a category known as lost revenue. We've closed 

that out, but I would like for Jason to maybe consider for the people on Jeff’s staff, to try to make 

sure that we can get them a decent wage for that time-frame, that interval, so that you don't lose 

any of these people.  

Mr. Dale: Yeah. 

Mr. Colasinski: We did that once before, but I would like to make sure that we don't lose 

any of those people for the two-year period. 

Mr. Carnesale: That should be doable, if they're doing shared things, basically. Because 

you can see how much they wind up with tips and whether or not we might have to supplement 

that. 

Mr. Spencer: Correct. What we had done in the past, which is much easier to do now, 

because of our new POS system, we can track all of the cash and credit tips that they make and 

combine it with their wage. If they make less than $20, because generally speaking, they make 
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more than $20 an hour when you take all their compensation into account, we will bring them up 

to that wage. We don't know how much we're going to lose. 

Mr. Carnesale: We just don't know. 

Mr. Spencer: We just don't know. We're going to take the seating and cut it almost in 

half. 

Mr. Colasinski: We’re still going to have the same events, right? 

Mr. Spencer: We're still going to have the same events, however it’s going to be outside 

and the weather's going to be hot. I don't see that the weather's going to break in the next couple 

of weeks. So, we may take a little bit of loss in revenue and at the same time, we're also trying to 

bring people on in order to be ready for the opening. We are anticipating that when we open, it's 

going to also open our floodgates, so we got to make sure that we have full staff going on at the 

same time. I don't anticipate these girls taking that much of a loss for those couple of weeks, 

however, a safety net would be a very good thing because they are all nervous about it. 

Mr. Dale: But this really only pertains to the wait staff, not the cooks. 

Mr. Spencer: It has nothing to do with cooks. It only has to do with the four people on 

wait staff. 

Mr. Dale: What you're saying is to bring them up to ensure that they receive $20 per 

hour. 

Mr. Bedwell: How is he we going to do that? 

Mr. Dale: He takes their blended rate.  

Mr. Showe: I think between Jeff and Steve, they have sufficient authority from the Board 

to make those adjustments as needed. 

Mr. Colasinski: Alright. 

Mr. Showe: But you are the managers of those specific things. 

Mr. Colasinski: Do we need a motion to approve that action? 

Mr. Showe: I don't think so. He's the restaurant manager. 

Mr. Colasinski: That's fine. 

Mr. Jeff: It will be temporary from September 19th to the time that we move back into the 

building. 

Mr. Colasinski: There will be so many people coming there to check things out. 

Mr. Spencer: Yeah, and it would be as it's extremely easy to audit. 
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Mr. Dale: I don't have a problem with that. 

 

NINTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Treasurer’s Report – Consideration of 

Financial Statements 

A. Approval of Check Register 

Mr. Colasinski: Do you need approval of the Check Register? 

Mr. Dale: Yeah.  

Mr. Showe: Those were presented as part of your agenda package and we can take a 

motion to approve. 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Colasinski seconded by Mr. Carnesale with 

all in favor the Check Register for July 21, 2022 through August 

19, 2022 in the amount of $581,898.46 was approved.  

 

B. Balance Sheet and Income Statement 

Mr. Showe: The Board has the Balance Sheet and Income Statement. I will point out that 

we have hit 100 % assessment collections. So, we're in great shape there. 

Mr. Dale: I’m not going to rest until we hit 102% again 

Mr. Showe: We might. It happens. 

Mr. Colasinski: Its interesting when you reach over 100%. 

 

TENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Supervisor’s Requests 

Mr. Dale: Pete, we're going to start with you. Do you have any Supervisor’s request? 

Mr. Carnesale: No, I'm fine. 

Mr. Dale: Thank you.  

Mr. Bedwell: If I understand it, the single person this year before tax prepaid $32.25. In 

2023, if they are a senior, are they going to pay the same as they did in 2022, which is $32.25? 

Mr. Dale: The way that I understand it, they are paying the 2022 rate. 

Mr. Colasinski: The $32.25 was the single rate, not the CDD resident rate. It would be 

$3,100. It is going to stay the same Monday to Thursday for anyone who is 60 and over to pay 

$3,100. 

Mr. Bedwell: If they're not a senior, then it goes to $38.75. 

Mr. Colasinski: It'll be a 25% increase. 
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Mr. Bedwell: Family is gone. If they paid $5,000 this year, next year, if they decide to 

join the Gold Membership, it would go from $5,000 to $6,450. That's the Gold senior rate. 

Mr. Bedwell: I asked Jason and Chris to get together because I'm going to get asked. 

Mr. McCarthy: So am I. 

Multiple Voices Speaking. 

Mr. Dale: Jason, as soon as you can get something because they're right. 

Mr. Showe: Yeah. 

Mr. Bedwell: I don't have anything else.  

Mr. McCarthy: I don’t either. Thank you. 

Mr. Showe: I think Dave, if you let them know that obviously there were changes made 

at the meeting tonight and we're still putting all of that documentation together, we'll distribute it 

as soon as we have it. If we had it set before we came in, we would have it already in writing, but 

we made some changes tonight, so we're good. 

Mr. Dale: I was accosted in the restaurant a couple of times. 

Mr. Colasinski: I just wanted to clarify the closure on Thanksgiving of the golf course, 

that we're good. Is everyone good on that? 

Mr. Dale: Yeah. 

Mr. Colasinski: Okay.  

Mr. Dale: Christmas too. 

Mr. Colasinski: We've always closed on Christmas. If we want to give the employees a 

heads up for planning purposes. 

Mr. Carnesale: The employees won't be there. People will just go out with their own golf 

carts and golf by themselves. 

Mr. Dale: I have nothing. So, at this point, I will entertain a motion to adjourn. 

 

ELEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Adjournment 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Carnesale seconded by Mr. McCarthy with 

all in favor the meeting was adjourned. 
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SECTION A 
  









SECTION VI 
  



SECTION A 
  



Viera East CDD Action Items
9/22/2022

Updated 9/15/22

Item # Action Item Assigned To: Status Date Added Estimated Start Estimated Completion Comments/Estimated Completion

1 Fire Breaks Melloh/Dale COMPLETED 12/17/20 March 2022 June 2022 Complete for 2022

2 Fountains Showe/Melloh ON HOLD 1/28/21
On Hold Pending Sign Process, staff working on 
connections for electric

3 Cart Path Extensions Showe/Melloh ON HOLD 3/25/21
Staff attempting to get bids - holding to after 
irrigation project/Dog Park

4 Irrigation Project Showe/Melloh Ongoing 10/28/21



SECTION VII 
  



SECTION B 
  



SECTION 1 
  



Date Req	# Payee Description Amount
8/31/22 124 Lanirr	Inc Pay	Application	#6 140,436.00$							

TOTAL	REQUISITIONS	TO	BE	PAID 140,436.00$						

Viera	East	CDD
Series	2020	Acquisition	and	Construction

Requisition	Summary	



REQUISITION NO. 124 

$7,685,000 
Viera East Community Development District 

(Brevard County, Florida) 
Special Revenue Assessment Bonds, Series 2020 

 
 

The undersigned, an Authorized Officer of Viera East Community Development District 
(the "District") hereby submits the following requisition for disbursement, under and pursuant to 
the terms of the Amended and Restated General Special Revenue Assessment Bond Resolution of 
the District adopted by the District on January 25, 2012, as amended and supplemented from time 
to time, and particularly as supplemented by the Second Supplemental Resolution (collectively, 
the "Resolution") adopted by the District's Board of Supervisors on November 21, 2019 (all 
capitalized terms used herein shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in the Resolution): 

 

(A) Requisition Number: 124 
(B) Name of Payee: Landirr, Inc  
(C) Address of Payee: 202 North Laurel Avenue, Sanford, FL 32771 

(D) Amount Payable: $140,436 
 

The Undersigned hereby certifies that this requisition is for reimbursement of Pay 
application #6 from the Construction and Acquisition Fund that have not previously been paid. 

 
Attached hereto are originals of the invoice(s) from the vendor of the services rendered 

with respect to which disbursement is hereby requested. 
 

VIERA EAST COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT 
D I S T R I C T  

 
 

By:    
Authorized Officer 
 
  



REQUISITION NO. 124 

$7,685,000 
Viera East Community Development District 

(Brevard County, Florida) 
Special Revenue Assessment Bonds, Series 2020 

 
 

 
CONSULTING ENGINEER'S APPROVAL OF 2020 PROJECT COSTS 

The undersigned Consulting Engineer hereby certifies that this disbursement is for a Cost of the 2020 
Project and is consistent with: (i) the applicable acquisition or construction contract; (ii) the plans and 
specifications for the portion of the 2020 Project with respect to which such disbursement is being made; and, 
(ii) the report of the Consulting Engineer for the 2020 Project, as such report shall have been amended or 
modified on the date hereof.  The undersigned further certifies that (a) the 2020 Project improvements to be 
acquired have been completed in accordance with the plans and specifications therefore; (b) the 2020 Project 
improvements are constructed in a sound workmanlike manner and in accordance with industry standards; 
(c) the purchase price to be paid by the District for the 2020 Project improvements is no more than the lesser 
of (i) the fair market value of such improvements and (ii) the actual cost of construction of such improvements; 
(d) the plans and specifications for such portion of the 2020 Project improvements have been approved by all 
regulatory bodies required to approve them; (e) all currently required approvals and permits for the acquisition, 
construction, reconstruction, installation and/or equipping of the portion of the 2020 Project for which 
disbursement is made have been obtained from all applicable regulatory bodies; and (f) for that portion of the 
2020 Project being acquired, the seller has paid all contractors, subcontractors, and materialmen that have 
provided services or materials in connection with the portion of the 2020 Project for which disbursement is 
made hereby. 

[CONSULTING ENGINEER] 

  
 

Title:   

 







Date Req	# Payee Description Amount
9/15/22 125 Lanirr	Inc Invoice	930274-	Tee	Box	Renovation 109,680.60$							

TOTAL	REQUISITIONS	TO	BE	PAID 109,680.60$						

Viera	East	CDD
Series	2020	Acquisition	and	Construction

Requisition	Summary	



REQUISITION NO. 125 

$7,685,000 
Viera East Community Development District 

(Brevard County, Florida) 
Special Revenue Assessment Bonds, Series 2020 

 
 

The undersigned, an Authorized Officer of Viera East Community Development District 
(the "District") hereby submits the following requisition for disbursement, under and pursuant to 
the terms of the Amended and Restated General Special Revenue Assessment Bond Resolution of 
the District adopted by the District on January 25, 2012, as amended and supplemented from time 
to time, and particularly as supplemented by the Second Supplemental Resolution (collectively, 
the "Resolution") adopted by the District's Board of Supervisors on November 21, 2019 (all 
capitalized terms used herein shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in the Resolution): 

 

(A) Requisition Number: 125 
(B) Name of Payee: Landirr, Inc  
(C) Address of Payee: 202 North Laurel Avenue, Sanford, FL 32771 

(D) Amount Payable: $109,680.60 
 

The Undersigned hereby certifies that this requisition is for Driving range tee box 
renovation from the Construction and Acquisition Fund that have not previously been paid. 

 
Attached hereto are originals of the invoice(s) from the vendor of the services rendered 

with respect to which disbursement is hereby requested. 
 

VIERA EAST COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT 
D I S T R I C T  

 
 

By:    
Authorized Officer 
 
  



REQUISITION NO. 125 

$7,685,000 
Viera East Community Development District 

(Brevard County, Florida) 
Special Revenue Assessment Bonds, Series 2020 

 
 

 
CONSULTING ENGINEER'S APPROVAL OF 2020 PROJECT COSTS 

The undersigned Consulting Engineer hereby certifies that this disbursement is for a Cost of the 2020 
Project and is consistent with: (i) the applicable acquisition or construction contract; (ii) the plans and 
specifications for the portion of the 2020 Project with respect to which such disbursement is being made; and, 
(ii) the report of the Consulting Engineer for the 2020 Project, as such report shall have been amended or 
modified on the date hereof.  The undersigned further certifies that (a) the 2020 Project improvements to be 
acquired have been completed in accordance with the plans and specifications therefore; (b) the 2020 Project 
improvements are constructed in a sound workmanlike manner and in accordance with industry standards; 
(c) the purchase price to be paid by the District for the 2020 Project improvements is no more than the lesser 
of (i) the fair market value of such improvements and (ii) the actual cost of construction of such improvements; 
(d) the plans and specifications for such portion of the 2020 Project improvements have been approved by all 
regulatory bodies required to approve them; (e) all currently required approvals and permits for the acquisition, 
construction, reconstruction, installation and/or equipping of the portion of the 2020 Project for which 
disbursement is made have been obtained from all applicable regulatory bodies; and (f) for that portion of the 
2020 Project being acquired, the seller has paid all contractors, subcontractors, and materialmen that have 
provided services or materials in connection with the portion of the 2020 Project for which disbursement is 
made hereby. 

[CONSULTING ENGINEER] 

  
 

Title:   

 



Inv Date 8/31/2022

Date Due

VIERA EAST COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

Comments: Driving range Tee Box Renovation

930274

2300 CLUBHOUSE DRIVE

VIE123

Driving Range Tee Box RenovationDescription:

Invoice #

Landirr, Incorporated

202 North Laurel Avenue

Sanford, FL  32771

(407) 330-2892

Customer 

ROCKLEDGE FL 32955

Order#
Phone:

PO #

State Tax: $0.00

County Tax $0.00

SUBTOTAL: $109,680.60

AMOUNT DUE $109,680.60

City Tax $0.00

Qty Description Unit Cost Net Price

48,012.00 Driving Range Tee Box Renovation $2.55 $122,430.60

1.00 CredIt  5000 sq ft at @2.55/ sq ft ($12,750.00) ($12,750.00)



Date Req	# Payee Description Amount
9/15/22 126 Viera	East	CDD Bar	Display-	Balance	of	Order	224659 23,274.47$									
9/15/22 127 Viera	East	CDD Sun	Kraft-	Irrigation 1,517.28$											
9/15/22 128 Viera	East	CDD Sun	Kraft-	Irrigation 3,423.00$											
9/15/22 129 Viera	East	CDD Stuart	Borton-	3	door	freezer	&	2	door	cooler 5,000.00$											
9/15/22 130 Viera	East	CDD Black	Hole	Makers-	Dell	Server 4,850.00$											
9/15/22 131 Viera	East	CDD WebstaurantStore-	Chairs,	Tables,	Ice	Machine 11,032.01$									
9/15/22 132 Viera	East	CDD Thor	Guard-	Storm	Warning	System 30,190.00$									

TOTAL	REQUISITIONS	TO	BE	PAID 79,286.76$								

Viera	East	CDD
Series	2020	Acquisition	and	Construction

Requisition	Summary	



REQUISITION NO. 126 

$7,685,000 
Viera East Community Development District 

(Brevard County, Florida) 
Special Revenue Assessment Bonds, Series 2020 

 
 

The undersigned, an Authorized Officer of Viera East Community Development District 
(the "District") hereby submits the following requisition for disbursement, under and pursuant to 
the terms of the Amended and Restated General Special Revenue Assessment Bond Resolution of 
the District adopted by the District on January 25, 2012, as amended and supplemented from time 
to time, and particularly as supplemented by the Second Supplemental Resolution (collectively, 
the "Resolution") adopted by the District's Board of Supervisors on November 21, 2019 (all 
capitalized terms used herein shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in the Resolution): 

 

(A) Requisition Number: 126 
(B) Name of Payee: Viera East CDD  
(C) Address of Payee: 2300 Clubhouse Dr, Viera, FL 32955 

(D) Amount Payable: $23,274.47 
 

The Undersigned hereby certifies that this requisition is for reimbursement of Bar Display 
order from the Construction and Acquisition Fund that have not previously been paid. 

 
Attached hereto are originals of the invoice(s) from the vendor of the services rendered 

with respect to which disbursement is hereby requested. 
 

VIERA EAST COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT 
D I S T R I C T  

 
 

By:    
Authorized Officer 
 
  



REQUISITION NO. 126 

$7,685,000 
Viera East Community Development District 

(Brevard County, Florida) 
Special Revenue Assessment Bonds, Series 2020 

 
 

 
CONSULTING ENGINEER'S APPROVAL OF 2020 PROJECT COSTS 

The undersigned Consulting Engineer hereby certifies that this disbursement is for a Cost of the 2020 
Project and is consistent with: (i) the applicable acquisition or construction contract; (ii) the plans and 
specifications for the portion of the 2020 Project with respect to which such disbursement is being made; and, 
(ii) the report of the Consulting Engineer for the 2020 Project, as such report shall have been amended or 
modified on the date hereof.  The undersigned further certifies that (a) the 2020 Project improvements to be 
acquired have been completed in accordance with the plans and specifications therefore; (b) the 2020 Project 
improvements are constructed in a sound workmanlike manner and in accordance with industry standards; 
(c) the purchase price to be paid by the District for the 2020 Project improvements is no more than the lesser 
of (i) the fair market value of such improvements and (ii) the actual cost of construction of such improvements; 
(d) the plans and specifications for such portion of the 2020 Project improvements have been approved by all 
regulatory bodies required to approve them; (e) all currently required approvals and permits for the acquisition, 
construction, reconstruction, installation and/or equipping of the portion of the 2020 Project for which 
disbursement is made have been obtained from all applicable regulatory bodies; and (f) for that portion of the 
2020 Project being acquired, the seller has paid all contractors, subcontractors, and materialmen that have 
provided services or materials in connection with the portion of the 2020 Project for which disbursement is 
made hereby. 

[CONSULTING ENGINEER] 

  
 

Title:   

 



BARR DISPLAY INVOICE
3033 Mercy Drive
Orlando, FL  32808
Phone (407) 298-2277   Fax (407) 297-0494

DATE: August 30, 2022
INVOICE # 1495

Bill To: Viera East Golf Club Ship To: Same
2300 Clubhouse Dr
Rockledge, FL  32955

Comments or Special Instructions:

SALESPERSON P.O. NUMBER SHIP DATE SHIP VIA F.O.B. POINT TERMS

Alayne TBD Orlando Due on receipt

QUANTITY DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE AMOUNT

1 23,274.47$          23,274.47$           

SUBTOTAL  23,274.47$           

-                       

TOTAL  23,274.47$           

Make all checks payable to BARR DISPLAY
If you have any questions concerning this invoice, contact Alayne Lewis at alaynel@barrdisplay.com 

Balance due for Order #224659

THANK YOU FOR YOUR BUSINESS!



REQUISITION NO. 127 

$7,685,000 
Viera East Community Development District 

(Brevard County, Florida) 
Special Revenue Assessment Bonds, Series 2020 

 
 

The undersigned, an Authorized Officer of Viera East Community Development District 
(the "District") hereby submits the following requisition for disbursement, under and pursuant to 
the terms of the Amended and Restated General Special Revenue Assessment Bond Resolution of 
the District adopted by the District on January 25, 2012, as amended and supplemented from time 
to time, and particularly as supplemented by the Second Supplemental Resolution (collectively, 
the "Resolution") adopted by the District's Board of Supervisors on November 21, 2019 (all 
capitalized terms used herein shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in the Resolution): 

 

(A) Requisition Number: 127 
(B) Name of Payee: Viera East CDD  
(C) Address of Payee: 2300 Clubhouse Dr, Viera, FL 32955 

(D) Amount Payable: $1,517.28 
 

The Undersigned hereby certifies that this requisition is for reimbursement of Sun Kraft 
Electric Irrigation work from the Construction and Acquisition Fund that have not previously been 
paid. 

 
Attached hereto are originals of the invoice(s) from the vendor of the services rendered 

with respect to which disbursement is hereby requested. 
 

VIERA EAST COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT 
D I S T R I C T  

 
 

By:    
Authorized Officer 
 
  



REQUISITION NO. 127 

$7,685,000 
Viera East Community Development District 

(Brevard County, Florida) 
Special Revenue Assessment Bonds, Series 2020 

 
 

 
CONSULTING ENGINEER'S APPROVAL OF 2020 PROJECT COSTS 

The undersigned Consulting Engineer hereby certifies that this disbursement is for a Cost of the 2020 
Project and is consistent with: (i) the applicable acquisition or construction contract; (ii) the plans and 
specifications for the portion of the 2020 Project with respect to which such disbursement is being made; and, 
(ii) the report of the Consulting Engineer for the 2020 Project, as such report shall have been amended or 
modified on the date hereof.  The undersigned further certifies that (a) the 2020 Project improvements to be 
acquired have been completed in accordance with the plans and specifications therefore; (b) the 2020 Project 
improvements are constructed in a sound workmanlike manner and in accordance with industry standards; 
(c) the purchase price to be paid by the District for the 2020 Project improvements is no more than the lesser 
of (i) the fair market value of such improvements and (ii) the actual cost of construction of such improvements; 
(d) the plans and specifications for such portion of the 2020 Project improvements have been approved by all 
regulatory bodies required to approve them; (e) all currently required approvals and permits for the acquisition, 
construction, reconstruction, installation and/or equipping of the portion of the 2020 Project for which 
disbursement is made have been obtained from all applicable regulatory bodies; and (f) for that portion of the 
2020 Project being acquired, the seller has paid all contractors, subcontractors, and materialmen that have 
provided services or materials in connection with the portion of the 2020 Project for which disbursement is 
made hereby. 

[CONSULTING ENGINEER] 

  
 

Title:   

 





REQUISITION NO. 128 

$7,685,000 
Viera East Community Development District 

(Brevard County, Florida) 
Special Revenue Assessment Bonds, Series 2020 

 
 

The undersigned, an Authorized Officer of Viera East Community Development District 
(the "District") hereby submits the following requisition for disbursement, under and pursuant to 
the terms of the Amended and Restated General Special Revenue Assessment Bond Resolution of 
the District adopted by the District on January 25, 2012, as amended and supplemented from time 
to time, and particularly as supplemented by the Second Supplemental Resolution (collectively, 
the "Resolution") adopted by the District's Board of Supervisors on November 21, 2019 (all 
capitalized terms used herein shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in the Resolution): 

 

(A) Requisition Number: 128 
(B) Name of Payee: Viera East CDD  
(C) Address of Payee: 2300 Clubhouse Dr, Viera, FL 32955 

(D) Amount Payable: $3,423 
 

The Undersigned hereby certifies that this requisition is for reimbursement of Sun Kraft 
Electric Irrigation work from the Construction and Acquisition Fund that have not previously been 
paid. 

 
Attached hereto are originals of the invoice(s) from the vendor of the services rendered 

with respect to which disbursement is hereby requested. 
 

VIERA EAST COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT 
D I S T R I C T  

 
 

By:    
Authorized Officer 
 
  



REQUISITION NO. 128 

$7,685,000 
Viera East Community Development District 

(Brevard County, Florida) 
Special Revenue Assessment Bonds, Series 2020 

 
 

 
CONSULTING ENGINEER'S APPROVAL OF 2020 PROJECT COSTS 

The undersigned Consulting Engineer hereby certifies that this disbursement is for a Cost of the 2020 
Project and is consistent with: (i) the applicable acquisition or construction contract; (ii) the plans and 
specifications for the portion of the 2020 Project with respect to which such disbursement is being made; and, 
(ii) the report of the Consulting Engineer for the 2020 Project, as such report shall have been amended or 
modified on the date hereof.  The undersigned further certifies that (a) the 2020 Project improvements to be 
acquired have been completed in accordance with the plans and specifications therefore; (b) the 2020 Project 
improvements are constructed in a sound workmanlike manner and in accordance with industry standards; 
(c) the purchase price to be paid by the District for the 2020 Project improvements is no more than the lesser 
of (i) the fair market value of such improvements and (ii) the actual cost of construction of such improvements; 
(d) the plans and specifications for such portion of the 2020 Project improvements have been approved by all 
regulatory bodies required to approve them; (e) all currently required approvals and permits for the acquisition, 
construction, reconstruction, installation and/or equipping of the portion of the 2020 Project for which 
disbursement is made have been obtained from all applicable regulatory bodies; and (f) for that portion of the 
2020 Project being acquired, the seller has paid all contractors, subcontractors, and materialmen that have 
provided services or materials in connection with the portion of the 2020 Project for which disbursement is 
made hereby. 

[CONSULTING ENGINEER] 

  
 

Title:   

 





REQUISITION NO. 129 

$7,685,000 
Viera East Community Development District 

(Brevard County, Florida) 
Special Revenue Assessment Bonds, Series 2020 

 
 

The undersigned, an Authorized Officer of Viera East Community Development District 
(the "District") hereby submits the following requisition for disbursement, under and pursuant to 
the terms of the Amended and Restated General Special Revenue Assessment Bond Resolution of 
the District adopted by the District on January 25, 2012, as amended and supplemented from time 
to time, and particularly as supplemented by the Second Supplemental Resolution (collectively, 
the "Resolution") adopted by the District's Board of Supervisors on November 21, 2019 (all 
capitalized terms used herein shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in the Resolution): 

 

(A) Requisition Number: 129 
(B) Name of Payee: Viera East CDD  
(C) Address of Payee: 2300 Clubhouse Dr, Viera, FL 32955 

(D) Amount Payable: $5,000 
 

The Undersigned hereby certifies that this requisition is for reimbursement of 3 door 
freezer and 2 door cooler  from the Construction and Acquisition Fund that have not previously 
been paid. 

 
Attached hereto are originals of the invoice(s) from the vendor of the services rendered 

with respect to which disbursement is hereby requested. 
 

VIERA EAST COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT 
D I S T R I C T  

 
 

By:    
Authorized Officer 
 
  



REQUISITION NO. 129 

$7,685,000 
Viera East Community Development District 

(Brevard County, Florida) 
Special Revenue Assessment Bonds, Series 2020 

 
 

 
CONSULTING ENGINEER'S APPROVAL OF 2020 PROJECT COSTS 

The undersigned Consulting Engineer hereby certifies that this disbursement is for a Cost of the 2020 
Project and is consistent with: (i) the applicable acquisition or construction contract; (ii) the plans and 
specifications for the portion of the 2020 Project with respect to which such disbursement is being made; and, 
(ii) the report of the Consulting Engineer for the 2020 Project, as such report shall have been amended or 
modified on the date hereof.  The undersigned further certifies that (a) the 2020 Project improvements to be 
acquired have been completed in accordance with the plans and specifications therefore; (b) the 2020 Project 
improvements are constructed in a sound workmanlike manner and in accordance with industry standards; 
(c) the purchase price to be paid by the District for the 2020 Project improvements is no more than the lesser 
of (i) the fair market value of such improvements and (ii) the actual cost of construction of such improvements; 
(d) the plans and specifications for such portion of the 2020 Project improvements have been approved by all 
regulatory bodies required to approve them; (e) all currently required approvals and permits for the acquisition, 
construction, reconstruction, installation and/or equipping of the portion of the 2020 Project for which 
disbursement is made have been obtained from all applicable regulatory bodies; and (f) for that portion of the 
2020 Project being acquired, the seller has paid all contractors, subcontractors, and materialmen that have 
provided services or materials in connection with the portion of the 2020 Project for which disbursement is 
made hereby. 

[CONSULTING ENGINEER] 

  
 

Title:   

 



From: I Campos icampos@vieraeastcdd.com
Subject: Check request

Date: September 1, 2022 at 3:07 PM
To: Ines Campos icampos@vieraeastcdd.com, HANNAH HENRY hhenry@gms-tampa.com

Received this message from Rob and Steve regarding a purchase.  Let me know when we can have this check (sooner
than later)   FROM BOND MONIES,

We need a $5000 check made out to Stuart Borton for 3 door freezer and 2 door cooler. We got both valued at 10k. Only
4 hrs old. Should get another decade out of them.

Sent from my Metro By T-Mobile 4G LTE Android Device
Get Outlook for Android

mailto:Camposicampos@vieraeastcdd.com
mailto:Camposicampos@vieraeastcdd.com
mailto:Camposicampos@vieraeastcdd.com
mailto:Camposicampos@vieraeastcdd.com
mailto:HENRYhhenry@gms-tampa.com
mailto:HENRYhhenry@gms-tampa.com
https://aka.ms/AAb9ysg


REQUISITION NO. 130 

$7,685,000 
Viera East Community Development District 

(Brevard County, Florida) 
Special Revenue Assessment Bonds, Series 2020 

 
 

The undersigned, an Authorized Officer of Viera East Community Development District 
(the "District") hereby submits the following requisition for disbursement, under and pursuant to 
the terms of the Amended and Restated General Special Revenue Assessment Bond Resolution of 
the District adopted by the District on January 25, 2012, as amended and supplemented from time 
to time, and particularly as supplemented by the Second Supplemental Resolution (collectively, 
the "Resolution") adopted by the District's Board of Supervisors on November 21, 2019 (all 
capitalized terms used herein shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in the Resolution): 

 

(A) Requisition Number: 130 
(B) Name of Payee: Viera East CDD  
(C) Address of Payee: 2300 Clubhouse Dr, Viera, FL 32955 

(D) Amount Payable: $4,850 
 

The Undersigned hereby certifies that this requisition is for reimbursement of Dell server 
from the Construction and Acquisition Fund that have not previously been paid. 

 
Attached hereto are originals of the invoice(s) from the vendor of the services rendered 

with respect to which disbursement is hereby requested. 
 

VIERA EAST COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT 
D I S T R I C T  

 
 

By:    
Authorized Officer 
 
  



REQUISITION NO. 130 

$7,685,000 
Viera East Community Development District 

(Brevard County, Florida) 
Special Revenue Assessment Bonds, Series 2020 

 
 

 
CONSULTING ENGINEER'S APPROVAL OF 2020 PROJECT COSTS 

The undersigned Consulting Engineer hereby certifies that this disbursement is for a Cost of the 2020 
Project and is consistent with: (i) the applicable acquisition or construction contract; (ii) the plans and 
specifications for the portion of the 2020 Project with respect to which such disbursement is being made; and, 
(ii) the report of the Consulting Engineer for the 2020 Project, as such report shall have been amended or 
modified on the date hereof.  The undersigned further certifies that (a) the 2020 Project improvements to be 
acquired have been completed in accordance with the plans and specifications therefore; (b) the 2020 Project 
improvements are constructed in a sound workmanlike manner and in accordance with industry standards; 
(c) the purchase price to be paid by the District for the 2020 Project improvements is no more than the lesser 
of (i) the fair market value of such improvements and (ii) the actual cost of construction of such improvements; 
(d) the plans and specifications for such portion of the 2020 Project improvements have been approved by all 
regulatory bodies required to approve them; (e) all currently required approvals and permits for the acquisition, 
construction, reconstruction, installation and/or equipping of the portion of the 2020 Project for which 
disbursement is made have been obtained from all applicable regulatory bodies; and (f) for that portion of the 
2020 Project being acquired, the seller has paid all contractors, subcontractors, and materialmen that have 
provided services or materials in connection with the portion of the 2020 Project for which disbursement is 
made hereby. 

[CONSULTING ENGINEER] 

  
 

Title:   

 





REQUISITION NO. 131 

$7,685,000 
Viera East Community Development District 

(Brevard County, Florida) 
Special Revenue Assessment Bonds, Series 2020 

 
 

The undersigned, an Authorized Officer of Viera East Community Development District 
(the "District") hereby submits the following requisition for disbursement, under and pursuant to 
the terms of the Amended and Restated General Special Revenue Assessment Bond Resolution of 
the District adopted by the District on January 25, 2012, as amended and supplemented from time 
to time, and particularly as supplemented by the Second Supplemental Resolution (collectively, 
the "Resolution") adopted by the District's Board of Supervisors on November 21, 2019 (all 
capitalized terms used herein shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in the Resolution): 

 

(A) Requisition Number: 131 
(B) Name of Payee: Viera East CDD  
(C) Address of Payee: 2300 Clubhouse Dr, Viera, FL 32955 

(D) Amount Payable: $11,032.01 
 

The Undersigned hereby certifies that this requisition is for reimbursement of chairs, 
tables, and ice machine from the Construction and Acquisition Fund that have not previously been 
paid. 

 
Attached hereto are originals of the invoice(s) from the vendor of the services rendered 

with respect to which disbursement is hereby requested. 
 

VIERA EAST COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT 
D I S T R I C T  

 
 

By:    
Authorized Officer 
 
  



REQUISITION NO. 131 

$7,685,000 
Viera East Community Development District 

(Brevard County, Florida) 
Special Revenue Assessment Bonds, Series 2020 

 
 

 
CONSULTING ENGINEER'S APPROVAL OF 2020 PROJECT COSTS 

The undersigned Consulting Engineer hereby certifies that this disbursement is for a Cost of the 2020 
Project and is consistent with: (i) the applicable acquisition or construction contract; (ii) the plans and 
specifications for the portion of the 2020 Project with respect to which such disbursement is being made; and, 
(ii) the report of the Consulting Engineer for the 2020 Project, as such report shall have been amended or 
modified on the date hereof.  The undersigned further certifies that (a) the 2020 Project improvements to be 
acquired have been completed in accordance with the plans and specifications therefore; (b) the 2020 Project 
improvements are constructed in a sound workmanlike manner and in accordance with industry standards; 
(c) the purchase price to be paid by the District for the 2020 Project improvements is no more than the lesser 
of (i) the fair market value of such improvements and (ii) the actual cost of construction of such improvements; 
(d) the plans and specifications for such portion of the 2020 Project improvements have been approved by all 
regulatory bodies required to approve them; (e) all currently required approvals and permits for the acquisition, 
construction, reconstruction, installation and/or equipping of the portion of the 2020 Project for which 
disbursement is made have been obtained from all applicable regulatory bodies; and (f) for that portion of the 
2020 Project being acquired, the seller has paid all contractors, subcontractors, and materialmen that have 
provided services or materials in connection with the portion of the 2020 Project for which disbursement is 
made hereby. 

[CONSULTING ENGINEER] 

  
 

Title:   

 













REQUISITION NO. 132 

$7,685,000 
Viera East Community Development District 

(Brevard County, Florida) 
Special Revenue Assessment Bonds, Series 2020 

 
 

The undersigned, an Authorized Officer of Viera East Community Development District 
(the "District") hereby submits the following requisition for disbursement, under and pursuant to 
the terms of the Amended and Restated General Special Revenue Assessment Bond Resolution of 
the District adopted by the District on January 25, 2012, as amended and supplemented from time 
to time, and particularly as supplemented by the Second Supplemental Resolution (collectively, 
the "Resolution") adopted by the District's Board of Supervisors on November 21, 2019 (all 
capitalized terms used herein shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in the Resolution): 

 

(A) Requisition Number: 132 
(B) Name of Payee: Viera East CDD  
(C) Address of Payee: 2300 Clubhouse Dr, Viera, FL 32955 

(D) Amount Payable: $30,190 
 

The Undersigned hereby certifies that this requisition is for reimbursement of storm 
warning system from the Construction and Acquisition Fund that have not previously been paid. 

 
Attached hereto are originals of the invoice(s) from the vendor of the services rendered 

with respect to which disbursement is hereby requested. 
 

VIERA EAST COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT 
D I S T R I C T  

 
 

By:    
Authorized Officer 
 
  



REQUISITION NO. 132 

$7,685,000 
Viera East Community Development District 

(Brevard County, Florida) 
Special Revenue Assessment Bonds, Series 2020 

 
 

 
CONSULTING ENGINEER'S APPROVAL OF 2020 PROJECT COSTS 

The undersigned Consulting Engineer hereby certifies that this disbursement is for a Cost of the 2020 
Project and is consistent with: (i) the applicable acquisition or construction contract; (ii) the plans and 
specifications for the portion of the 2020 Project with respect to which such disbursement is being made; and, 
(ii) the report of the Consulting Engineer for the 2020 Project, as such report shall have been amended or 
modified on the date hereof.  The undersigned further certifies that (a) the 2020 Project improvements to be 
acquired have been completed in accordance with the plans and specifications therefore; (b) the 2020 Project 
improvements are constructed in a sound workmanlike manner and in accordance with industry standards; 
(c) the purchase price to be paid by the District for the 2020 Project improvements is no more than the lesser 
of (i) the fair market value of such improvements and (ii) the actual cost of construction of such improvements; 
(d) the plans and specifications for such portion of the 2020 Project improvements have been approved by all 
regulatory bodies required to approve them; (e) all currently required approvals and permits for the acquisition, 
construction, reconstruction, installation and/or equipping of the portion of the 2020 Project for which 
disbursement is made have been obtained from all applicable regulatory bodies; and (f) for that portion of the 
2020 Project being acquired, the seller has paid all contractors, subcontractors, and materialmen that have 
provided services or materials in connection with the portion of the 2020 Project for which disbursement is 
made hereby. 

[CONSULTING ENGINEER] 

  
 

Title:   

 



Thor Guard, Inc.

1193 Sawgrass Corporate Parkway

Sunrise, FL 33323

United States

954.835.0900

  Quote

Viera East Golf Club

8/11/2022

Proposed Equipment Qty Unit price Total price
Thor Guard Model TG360 1 $16,400.00 $16,400.00
   Lightning Prediction, Severe Storm & Warning System
ThorPCX Software Suite 1 $1,500.00 $1,500.00
Voice of Thor Base Horn Driver 360 Upgrade

5 Watt 1 $800.00 $800.00
IO Board Relay 1 $500.00 $500.00

Voice of Thor Remote Upgrade
Receiver 3 $800.00 $2,400.00
IO Board Relay 3 $500.00 $1,500.00

Antennas FM 4 $125.00 $500.00
Horn Assembly (Back 9) 1 $800.00 $800.00

L75 Buy Back Credit 1 -$1,000.00 -$1,000.00

OPTIONAL EQUIPMENT & INSTALLATION
Installation Fee 1 $4,895.00 $4,895.00

Hardware 1 $1,895.00 $1,895.00
Shipping Estimate (Corey will Pick Up Equipment) $800.00 $0.00

Notes: Subtotal $30,190.00
Thor Guard Software Package is an annual license service that will 

be $1500/yr. 
ALL PRICES ABOVE EXCLUDE APPLICABLE STATE OR LOCAL 

TAXES
FREIGHT :  FOB Sunrise, FL.  (Prepaid and invoiced to customer)

Customer Info: Chris Game Thor Guard Info
cgame@vieraeastcdd.com Corey LaTulippe 561-268-4561

clatulippe@thorguard.com

Customer Signature:

Date:

Quote valid 90 days - May not include applicable local/state taxes - Freight charges may not be included

mailto:clatulippe@thorguard.com


SECTION VIII 
  



SECTION A 
  



Fund Date Check	#'s Amount

General	Fund
8/25/22 4512-4517 17,286.55$																	
8/31/22 4518-4521 792.35$																							
9/8/22 4522-4528 15,494.54$																	
9/15/22 1-5	(1) 14,979.71$																	
9/15/22 4528-4530 1,063.81$																				

Sub-Total 49,616.96$																	

Capital	Reserve
8/30/22 153 23,274.47$																	
9/6/22 154-155 35,190.00$																	
9/15/22 156-157 9,790.28$																				

Sub-Total 68,254.75$																	
Golf	Course

8/25/22 29956-29975 36,119.80$																	
8/31/22 29976-29986 9,057.98$																				
9/8/22 29987-30009 15,376.65$																	
9/13/22 30010 83.33$																									
9/15/22 30011-30032 19,710.20$																	

Sub-Total 80,347.96$																	

Total 198,219.67$															

(1)	The	system	generated	an	error	in	the	sequence	of	checks,	the	error	has	been
corrected.	This	will	not	create	a	problem	during	payment.

Viera	East
Community	Development	Districy

Check	Register	Summary
August	20,	2022	through	September	15,	2022



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN  9/15/22          PAGE   1
*** CHECK DATES 08/20/2022 - 09/15/2022 ***       VIERA EAST-GENERAL FUND

BANK A VIERA EAST-GF

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

 9/15/22 00006 8/30/22 7-866-99 202208 310-51300-34000                                     *               36.71
POSTAGE

FEDEX                                                              36.71 000001
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/15/22 00126 9/01/22 433      202209 310-51300-34000                                     *            8,621.17

MANAGEMENT FEES SEPT22
9/01/22 433      202209 310-51300-35100                                     *              354.17

INFORMATION TECH SEPT22
9/01/22 433      202209 310-51300-31700                                     *               83.33

DISSEMINATION SVC SEPT22
9/01/22 433      202209 310-51300-51000                                     *               10.00

OFFICE SUPPLIES
9/01/22 433      202209 310-51300-42500                                     *              454.95

COPIES
GOVERNMENTAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES                                9,523.62 000002

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/15/22 00190 9/08/22 2761     202209 340-53800-46000                                     *               49.70

CLUTCH PILOT
NAPA AUTO PARTS                                                    49.70 000003

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/15/22 00626 9/13/22 1682329  202208 310-51300-31500                                     *            5,222.23

ATTORNEY FEES
SHUTTS & BOWEN LLP                                              5,222.23 000004

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/15/22 00257 9/12/22 09122022 202209 340-53800-47300                                     *               19.99

REIMBURSE GARBAGE BAGS
9/13/22 09132022 202209 340-53800-47300                                     *               77.21

REIMB WASTE BASKET
9/13/22 9132022  202209 340-53800-47300                                     *               50.25

REIMBURSE LOCK
STEVE COLASINSKI                                                  147.45 000005

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 8/25/22 00222 8/16/22 176088   202208 330-53800-47100                                     *               72.00

REPLACEMENT BANNERS
ALLEGRA-ROCKLEDGE                                                  72.00 004512

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 8/25/22 00034 8/08/22 112086 J 202207 340-53800-43500                                     *              183.27

1705 CRANE CREEK BLVD
CITY OF COCOA                                                     183.27 004513

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 8/25/22 00006 8/16/22 7-852-71 202208 310-51300-42000                                     *               57.84

POSTAGE
FEDEX                                                              57.84 004514

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 8/25/22 00626 8/22/22 1678116  202207 310-51300-31500                                     *            4,685.50

ATTORNEY FEES
SHUTTS & BOWEN LLP                                              4,685.50 004515

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

VIER --VIERA EAST-- HSMITH    



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN  9/15/22          PAGE   2
*** CHECK DATES 08/20/2022 - 09/15/2022 ***       VIERA EAST-GENERAL FUND

BANK A VIERA EAST-GF

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

 8/25/22 00212 8/15/22 9092882  202208 340-53800-47400                                     *            2,298.44
RAINBIRD

TIAA COMMERCIAL FINANCE, INC.                                   2,298.44 004516
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 8/25/22 00226 8/23/22 082322-1 202208 330-53800-47000                                     *            9,989.50

CANAL MAINTENANCE FY21/22
VIERA STEWARDSHIP DISTRICT                                      9,989.50 004517

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 8/31/22 00220 8/26/22 7465766  202208 320-53800-34100                                     *              359.85

PEST CONTROL
ECOLAB                                                            359.85 004518

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 8/31/22 00612 7/28/22 5344928  202207 310-51300-48000                                     *              176.67

PUBLIC HEARING
FLORIDA TODAY PAYMENT CENTER                                      176.67 004519

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 8/31/22 00078 8/24/22 168344   202208 340-53800-46100                                     *               19.99

OIL GALLON
ROCKLEDGE MOWER & SERVICE                                          19.99 004520

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 8/31/22 00188 8/04/22 920 1431 202208 340-53800-54100                                     *               56.67

UNIFORMS 8/4/22
8/11/22 920 1433 202208 340-53800-54100                                     *               56.67

UNIFORMS 8/11/22
8/18/22 920 1435 202208 340-53800-54100                                     *               61.25

UNIFORMS 8/18/22
8/25/22 920 1437 202208 340-53800-54100                                     *               61.25

UNIFORMS 8/25/22
UNIFIRST CORPORATION                                              235.84 004521

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/08/22 00222 8/25/22 176143   202208 330-53800-47100                                     *              429.77

LETTERHEAD
8/25/22 176144   202208 330-53800-47100                                     *              946.00

ENVELOPE GOLF GLUB
ALLEGRA-ROCKLEDGE                                               1,375.77 004522

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/08/22 00267 8/24/22 22-08-16 202208 340-53800-47900                                     *              325.00

30 YARD ROLLOFF
BERRY DISPOSAL                                                    325.00 004523

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/08/22 00189 9/04/22 2582897  202209 340-53800-41000                                     *              606.04

TELEPHONE
BLUELINE TELECOM GROUP, LLC                                       606.04 004524

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/08/22 00081 8/04/22 428164   202208 330-53800-47200                                     *              736.44

AWC MONTHLY

VIER --VIERA EAST-- HSMITH    



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN  9/15/22          PAGE   3
*** CHECK DATES 08/20/2022 - 09/15/2022 ***       VIERA EAST-GENERAL FUND

BANK A VIERA EAST-GF

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

8/08/22 426699   202208 330-53800-47200                                     *              200.00
AWC

8/26/22 428162   202208 330-53800-47200                                     *            3,777.06
AWC

8/26/22 428163   202208 330-53800-47200                                     *            3,654.15
AWC

ECOR INDUSTRIAL HYDRAULICS, INC                                 8,367.65 004525
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/08/22 00257 8/31/22 08312022 202208 340-53800-51100                                     *              765.03

REIMBURSE
9/06/22 09062022 202209 340-53800-47300                                     *               14.42

REIMBURSE
8/31/22 08312022 202209 340-53800-51100                                     V              765.03-

REIMBURSE
9/06/22 09062022 202209 340-53800-47300                                     V               14.42-

REIMBURSE
STEVE COLASINSKI                                                     .00 004526

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/08/22 00131 8/29/22 6643446  202208 310-51300-31900                                     *            4,040.63

SR 2020 TRUSTEE FEES
U.S. BANK                                                       4,040.63 004527

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/08/22 00257 8/31/22 08312022 202208 340-53800-51100                                     *              765.03

REIMBURSE
9/06/22 09062022 202209 340-53800-47300                                     *               14.42

REIMBURSE
STEVE COLASINSKI                                                  779.45 004528

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/15/22 00169 9/06/22 WO21640  202209 340-53800-46000                                     *              436.30

OIL CHANGES
FLORIDA COAST EQUIPMENT INC                                       436.30 004528

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/15/22 00246 8/29/22 20051820 202209 340-53800-54500                                     *              511.54

FIRE & BURGLARY ALARMS
MARLIN BUSINESS BANK                                              511.54 004529

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/15/22 00196 8/23/22 17PC8036 202208 340-53800-46000                                     *              115.97

WIPER, BLADE, OUTER ELEME
RING POWER CORPORATION                                            115.97 004530

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

TOTAL FOR BANK A                 49,616.96

TOTAL FOR REGISTER               49,616.96

VIER --VIERA EAST-- HSMITH    



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN  9/15/22          PAGE   1
*** CHECK DATES 08/20/2022 - 09/15/2022 ***       VIERA EAST-SBA FUND

BANK C CAPITAL RESERVES

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

 8/30/22 00072 8/30/22 1495     202208 300-13100-10200                                     *           23,274.47
BALANCE DUE

BARR DISPLAY                                                   23,274.47 000153
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/06/22 00077 9/01/22 09012022 202209 300-13100-10200                                     *            5,000.00

3DR FREEZER & 2DR COOLER
STUART BORTON                                                   5,000.00 000154

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/06/22 00078 8/11/22 08112022 202209 300-13100-10200                                     *           30,190.00

THOR GUARD MODEL TH360
THOR GUARD INC                                                 30,190.00 000155

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/15/22 00079 9/13/22 1708     202209 300-13100-10200                                     *            4,850.00

DELL SERVER EXTENDED
BLACK HOLE MAKERS                                               4,850.00 000156

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/15/22 00080 8/29/22 35208    202208 300-13100-10200                                     *            3,423.00

REPLACED 150A METER
8/29/22 35209    202208 300-13100-10200                                     *            1,517.28

REMOVED FREE WIRE
SUN KRAFT ELECTRICAL CONTRACTORS,                               4,940.28 000157

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

TOTAL FOR BANK C                 68,254.75

TOTAL FOR REGISTER               68,254.75

VIER --VIERA EAST-- HSMITH    



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN  9/15/22          PAGE   1
*** CHECK DATES 08/20/2022 - 09/15/2022 ***       VIERA EAST- GOLF COURSE

BANK B VIERA EAST-GOLF

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

 8/25/22 01485 8/17/22 91398919 202208 300-14200-10000                                     *               61.18
GOLF SHOES

ACUSHNET COMPANY                                                   61.18 029956
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 8/25/22 01380 8/22/22 1700     202208 320-57200-54500                                     *              145.00

PROSHOP MOVE
BLACK HOLE MAKERS LLC                                             145.00 029957

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 8/25/22 01370 8/12/22 838356   202208 390-57200-47500                                     *            1,920.00

FOLIAR PAK GROW IN
BRONSONS TURF & HORTICULTURE                                    1,920.00 029958

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 8/25/22 01550 8/08/22 038243   202208 300-14100-10000                                     *               95.50

BREAD
8/16/22 038242   202208 300-14100-10000                                     *               59.10

BREAD
CHUCK INDEPENDENT BREAD DIST, LLC                                 154.60 029959

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 8/25/22 00024 8/10/22 70192 JU 202207 390-57200-43000                                     *              461.86

5600 MURRELL RD
CITY OF COCOA UTILITIES                                           461.86 029960

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 8/25/22 01394 8/12/22 62713308 202208 330-57200-54600                                     *               29.00

MPPA CHARGES
ECOLAB                                                             29.00 029961

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 8/25/22 00237 8/25/22 240317   202208 320-57200-54000                                     *              430.00

MEMBERSHIP
GCSAA                                                             430.00 029962

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 8/25/22 00587 8/10/22 676142   202208 390-57200-46100                                     *            1,675.80

90 NON ETHANOL
8/10/22 676142   202208 300-13100-10000                                     *              825.39

90 NON ETHANOL
GLOVER OIL COMPANY INC                                          2,501.19 029963

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 8/25/22 00272 8/09/22 94056708 202208 390-57200-51100                                     *               89.76

TOW STRAP
GRAINGER INC                                                       89.76 029964

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 8/25/22 01509 8/10/22 24292972 202208 390-57200-47500                                     *              673.20

DENSICOR
8/10/22 24292973 202208 390-57200-47500                                     *            1,045.00

INJECTOR
HELENA AGRI-ENT., LLC                                           1,718.20 029965

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

VIER --VIERA EAST-- HSMITH    



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN  9/15/22          PAGE   2
*** CHECK DATES 08/20/2022 - 09/15/2022 ***       VIERA EAST- GOLF COURSE

BANK B VIERA EAST-GOLF

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

 8/25/22 01538 8/24/22 2731-R   202208 320-57200-48000                                     *              795.00
SCL FALL ISSUE 2022

INDIAN RIVER MEDIA GROUP                                          795.00 029966
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 8/25/22 01524 8/04/22 08042022 202208 300-14100-10000                                     *               11.46

REIMB FOOD
8/06/22 08062022 202208 300-14100-10000                                     *               31.26

REIMB FOOD
8/06/22 08062022 202208 300-14100-10000                                     *               13.76

REIMB FOOD
8/07/22 08072022 202208 300-14100-10200                                     *                9.16

REIMB BEV
8/07/22 08072022 202208 300-14100-10000                                     *               77.22

REIMB FOOD
8/07/22 08072022 202208 300-14100-10000                                     *               13.27

REIMB FOOD
8/11/22 08112022 202208 300-14100-10000                                     *               37.13

REIMB FOOD
8/11/22 08112022 202208 300-14100-10000                                     *               31.30

REIMB FOOD
8/13/22 08132022 202208 330-57200-51100                                     *                7.64

REIMBURSE
8/18/22 08182022 202208 330-57200-51100                                     *               11.22

REIMB SUPPLIES
8/18/22 08182022 202208 300-14100-10000                                     *                2.14

REIMB FOOD
8/19/22 08192022 202208 300-14100-10200                                     *               33.06

REIMB BEV.
8/19/22 08192022 202208 300-14100-10001                                     *              118.23

REIMB SNACK
8/19/22 08192022 202208 300-14100-10200                                     *               35.52

REIMB BEV
JEFFREY SPENCER                                                   432.37 029968

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 8/25/22 01581 8/16/22 224      202208 390-57200-47500                                     *              200.00

GROW WATER
MADDEN AERATION                                                   200.00 029969

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 8/25/22 01324 8/16/22 08162022 202208 320-57200-34100                                     *               15.13

AMAZON PRIME PURCHASE
8/16/22 08162022 202208 320-57200-41000                                     *              194.00

CRICKET WIRELESS
8/16/22 08162022 202208 300-14200-10000                                     *               51.36

HOLE IN ONE PLAQUE
8/16/22 08162022 202208 300-13100-10000                                     *              184.47

TRACTOR SUPPLIES

VIER --VIERA EAST-- HSMITH    



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN  9/15/22          PAGE   3
*** CHECK DATES 08/20/2022 - 09/15/2022 ***       VIERA EAST- GOLF COURSE

BANK B VIERA EAST-GOLF

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

8/16/22 08162022 202208 390-57200-51100                                     *              195.20
CHARGERS & TUMBLERS

8/16/22 08162022 202208 300-13100-10000                                     *              332.50
STAMPS

8/16/22 08162022 202208 320-57200-51000                                     *              413.78
PRINTER & INK

8/16/22 08162022 202208 300-13100-10700                                     *           11,032.01
H&E TABLES,CHAIRS, ICE MA

REGIONS BANK                                                   12,418.45 029970
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 8/25/22 01334 8/05/22 12214736 202208 390-57200-47100                                     *               45.62

PVC TEE, PVC CAP
SITEONE LANDSCAPE SUPPLY, LLC                                      45.62 029971

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 8/25/22 01210 8/13/22 35152517 202208 320-57200-51000                                     *              135.94

SUPPLIES
8/20/22 35157739 202208 320-57200-51000                                     *               57.49

SUPPLIES
STAPLES ADVANTAGE                                                 193.43 029972

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 8/25/22 01512 8/14/22 7864650  202208 390-57200-54600                                     *              248.00

2019 CUSHMAN HAULER
8/14/22 7864650  202208 350-57200-46100                                     *            6,552.90

2020 EZGO RXV
8/14/22 7864650  202208 390-57200-54600                                     *            6,541.14

TORO TURF EQUIPMENT
8/14/22 7864650  202208 350-57200-46100                                     *              355.00

2021 CUSHMAN REFRESHER
THE HUNTINGTON NATIONAL BANK                                   13,697.04 029973

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 8/25/22 00807 8/18/22 920 1435 202208 390-57200-54100                                     *              174.64

UNIFORMS 8/18/22
UNIFIRST CORPORATION                                              174.64 029974

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 8/25/22 01558 8/13/22 50213916 202208 390-57200-54600                                     *              652.46

TRACTOR RENTAL
WELLS FARGO FINANCIAL LEASING, INC.                               652.46 029975

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 8/31/22 00782 8/29/22 95992    202208 340-57200-51100                                     *               89.44

MATS
8/29/22 95992    202208 320-57200-51100                                     *               25.50

MATS
A LINEN CONNECTION                                                114.94 029976

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 8/31/22 01485 5/09/22 91323787 202205 300-14200-10000                                     *              210.00

TOWELS

VIER --VIERA EAST-- HSMITH    



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN  9/15/22          PAGE   4
*** CHECK DATES 08/20/2022 - 09/15/2022 ***       VIERA EAST- GOLF COURSE

BANK B VIERA EAST-GOLF

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

6/10/22 91349317 202206 300-14200-10000                                     *              192.00
GOLF BALLS

8/15/22 91396770 202208 300-14200-10000                                     *              276.00
BAGS

8/16/22 91397546 202208 300-14200-10000                                     *              471.29
GOLF BALLS

8/23/22 91401746 202208 300-14200-10000                                     *              645.60
GOLF BALLS

ACUSHNET COMPANY                                                1,794.89 029977
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 8/31/22 00430 6/14/22 06142022 202206 390-57200-49800                                     *               59.45-

CREDIT
8/25/22 12208253 202208 390-57200-49800                                     *               61.80

SUPPLIES
8/25/22 12208253 202208 390-57200-49800                                     *               32.60

SUPPLIES
8/25/22 12208253 202208 390-57200-49800                                     *              138.80

SUPPLIES
AMERICAN SAFETY & FIRST AID, INC.                                 173.75 029978

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 8/31/22 01550 8/20/22 038244   202208 300-14100-10000                                     *               32.50

BREAD
8/23/22 038245   202208 300-14100-10000                                     *              104.80

BREAD
8/27/22 038246   202208 300-14100-10000                                     *              108.25

BREAD
CHUCK INDEPENDENT BREAD DIST, LLC                                 245.55 029979

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 8/31/22 00024 8/12/22 141774 J 202207 320-57200-43000                                     *               55.28

4563 BRAYWICK
CITY OF COCOA UTILITIES                                            55.28 029980

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 8/31/22 01388 8/22/22 AR812359 202208 390-57200-54600                                     *              155.90

COPIER LEASE
DEX IMAGING                                                       155.90 029981

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 8/31/22 01394 8/26/22 7465771  202208 390-57200-46500                                     *              103.76

PEST CONTROL
8/26/22 7465771  202208 340-57200-46400                                     *               95.11

PEST CONTROL
8/26/22 7465771  202208 330-57200-46400                                     *               95.11

PEST CONTROL
ECOLAB                                                            293.98 029982

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 8/31/22 01532 9/01/22 2-207448 202208 300-15500-10000                                     *              950.00

CLEANING SVC SEPT22
JANI-KING OF ORLANDO                                              950.00 029983

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

VIER --VIERA EAST-- HSMITH    



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN  9/15/22          PAGE   5
*** CHECK DATES 08/20/2022 - 09/15/2022 ***       VIERA EAST- GOLF COURSE

BANK B VIERA EAST-GOLF

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

 8/31/22 01582 8/30/22 08302022 202208 300-14100-10000                                     *                9.68
REIMBURSE

8/30/22 08302022 202208 300-14100-10000                                     *               29.94
REIMBURSE

8/30/22 08302022 202208 330-57200-51100                                     *               42.39
REIMBURSE

LILLIAN CASSIDY                                                    82.01 029984
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 8/31/22 01569 8/24/22 08242022 202208 330-57200-46000                                     *               75.72

REIMBURSE
STEVE COLASINSKI                                                   75.72 029985

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 8/31/22 01512 8/19/22 7871248  202208 390-57200-54600                                     *            5,115.96

TORO TURF PACKAGE
THE HUNTINGTON NATIONAL BANK                                    5,115.96 029986

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/08/22 01485 8/30/22 91406037 202208 300-14200-10000                                     *              138.00

BAGS
8/31/22 91406799 202208 300-14200-10000                                     *               52.50

HEADWEAR
ACUSHNET COMPANY                                                  190.50 029987

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/08/22 00430 8/25/22 I2208253 202208 390-57200-49800                                     *              138.80

SUPPLIES
AMERICAN SAFETY & FIRST AID, INC.                                 138.80 029988

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/08/22 01560 8/31/22 00091892 202208 330-57200-43100                                     *              191.70

CYLINDER RENTAL
ARC3 GASES, INC                                                   191.70 029989

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/08/22 01380 9/06/22 1704     202209 320-57200-54500                                     *              245.00

BATTERY BACK UP
BLACK HOLE MAKERS LLC                                             245.00 029990

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/08/22 01516 8/23/22 27216    202208 320-57200-48000                                     *              380.00

1/4 PAGE AD SEPT22
8/23/22 27217    202208 320-57200-48000                                     *              433.50

1/4 PAGE AD SEPT22
BLUEWATER CREATIVE GROUP, INC                                     813.50 029991

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/08/22 01370 8/22/22 838383   202208 390-57200-47500                                     *            1,500.00

50LB BAGS
BRONSONS TURF & HORTICULTURE                                    1,500.00 029992

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/08/22 01550 9/01/22 038247   202209 300-14100-10000                                     *              103.80

BREAD

VIER --VIERA EAST-- HSMITH    
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*** CHECK DATES 08/20/2022 - 09/15/2022 ***       VIERA EAST- GOLF COURSE

BANK B VIERA EAST-GOLF

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

9/03/22 038250   202208 300-14100-10000                                     *               68.50
BREAD

9/06/22 038249   202208 300-14100-10000                                     *               81.05
BREAD

CHUCK INDEPENDENT BREAD DIST, LLC                                 253.35 029993
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/08/22 01583 9/02/22 09022022 202209 300-20300-10000                                     *              228.96

REIMBURSE MEMBERSHIP
DALE HOPPER                                                       228.96 029994

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/08/22 01564 9/07/22 WO-11286 202209 320-57200-46000                                     *              349.00

HVAC MAINTENANCE
DIAL DURON SERVICE COMPANY                                        349.00 029995

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/08/22 00194 8/19/22 PINV0120 202208 390-57200-47500                                     *            2,206.00

SULFENCORE
GOLF VENTURES INC                                               2,206.00 029996

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/08/22 01524 9/10/22 0023     202209 330-57200-12005                                     *            2,708.33

TAVERN MANAGEMENT
JEFFREY SPENCER                                                 2,708.33 029997

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/08/22 00483 8/25/22 08252022 202208 390-57200-51100                                     *               58.02

911279
8/25/22 08252022 202208 340-57200-51100                                     *              239.04

901053
8/25/22 08252022 202208 300-13100-10000                                     *               69.33

902455
8/25/22 08252022 202208 390-57200-47100                                     *               56.68

911407
8/25/22 08252022 202208 390-57200-51100                                     *                4.73

911407
8/25/22 08252022 202208 300-13100-10700                                     *              394.64

901095
8/25/22 08252022 202208 300-13100-10700                                     *               35.59

902565
LOWE'S                                                            858.03 029998

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/08/22 01324 8/25/22 08252022 202208 330-57200-51100                                     *              258.38

LOWES
8/25/22 08252022 202208 300-14100-10200                                     *              100.13

COSTCO
8/25/22 08252022 202208 330-57200-51100                                     *               12.99

COSTCO
8/25/22 08252022 202208 300-14100-10000                                     *               45.58

COSTCO
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*** CHECK DATES 08/20/2022 - 09/15/2022 ***       VIERA EAST- GOLF COURSE

BANK B VIERA EAST-GOLF

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

8/25/22 08252022 202208 330-57200-51100                                     *                5.35
DOLLAR TREE

8/25/22 08252022 202208 300-14100-10000                                     *               12.28
WINN-DIXIE

8/25/22 08252022 202208 300-14100-10000                                     *               17.46
WINN-DIXIE

8/25/22 08252022 202208 300-14100-10000                                     *               10.48
WINN-DIXIE

REGIONS BANK                                                      462.65 029999
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/08/22 00603 8/24/22 168343   202208 390-57200-46000                                     *               15.90

AIR FILTER
ROCKLEDGE MOWER & SERVICE                                          15.90 030000

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/08/22 01554 9/09/22 09092022 202209 330-57200-56000                                     *              300.00

ENTERTAINMENT 9/9/22
ROCKSTAR KARAOKE ENTERTAINMENT LLC                                300.00 030001

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/08/22 01554 9/16/22 09162022 202209 330-57200-56000                                     *              300.00

ENTERTAINMENT 9/16/22
ROCKSTAR KARAOKE ENTERTAINMENT LLC                                300.00 030002

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/08/22 01554 9/23/22 09232022 202209 330-57200-56000                                     *              300.00

ENTERTAINMENT 9/23/22
ROCKSTAR KARAOKE ENTERTAINMENT LLC                                300.00 030003

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/08/22 01554 9/30/22 09302022 202209 330-57200-56000                                     *              300.00

ENTERTAINMENT 9/30/22
ROCKSTAR KARAOKE ENTERTAINMENT LLC                                300.00 030004

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/08/22 01334 8/17/22 12250592 202208 390-57200-47500                                     *            1,480.13

HERBICIDE
SITEONE LANDSCAPE SUPPLY, LLC                                   1,480.13 030005

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/08/22 01512 8/29/22 7885125  202209 390-57200-54600                                     *            1,065.98

TORO REELMASTER
THE HUNTINGTON NATIONAL BANK                                    1,065.98 030006

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/08/22 00807 8/25/22 920 1437 202208 390-57200-54100                                     *              169.34

UNIFIRST 8/25/2022
9/01/22 920 1439 202209 390-57200-54100                                     *              376.19

UNIFORMS 9/1/22
UNIFIRST CORPORATION                                              545.53 030007

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/08/22 00068 8/25/22 9189895- 202209 390-57200-54100                                     *              552.47

6 YARD DUMPSTER
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*** CHECK DATES 08/20/2022 - 09/15/2022 ***       VIERA EAST- GOLF COURSE

BANK B VIERA EAST-GOLF

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

8/25/22 9190249- 202209 390-57200-47900                                     *              206.82
6 YARD DUMPSTER

WASTE MANAGEMENT                                                  759.29 030008
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/08/22 01397 8/29/22 784730   202208 350-57200-46100                                     *              164.00

1 YU1AS GOLF CAR
YAMAHA MOTOR FINANCE CORP, USA                                    164.00 030009

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/13/22 01071 9/01/22 434      202209 310-57200-31700                                     *               83.33

DISSEMINATION AGENT SEP22
GOVERNMENTAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES                                   83.33 030010

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/15/22 01485 9/08/22 14117293 202209 300-14200-10000                                     *              122.35

MEN SHIRTS
ACUSHNET COMPANY                                                  122.35 030011

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/15/22 01371 9/02/22 09022022 202209 320-57200-51100                                     *              209.20

SECURITY SVC
ADT SECURITY SERVICES                                             209.20 030012

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/15/22 01380 9/12/22 1707     202209 320-57200-54500                                     *            4,180.00

REWIRE
BLACK HOLE MAKERS LLC                                           4,180.00 030013

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/15/22 01564 9/09/22 WO-11297 202209 320-57200-46000                                     *              486.00

REPLACE FUSE
DIAL DURON SERVICE COMPANY                                        486.00 030014

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/15/22 01438 7/11/22 52883    202207 320-57200-54000                                     *              405.00

ADULT HANDICAP SVC
FLORIDA STATE GOLF ASSOCIATION                                    405.00 030015

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/15/22 00587 8/31/22 677463   202208 390-57200-46110                                     *            1,827.95

ULTRA LOW SULFER
8/31/22 677463   202208 300-13100-10000                                     *              900.34

ULTRA LOW SULFER
8/31/22 677464   202208 390-57200-46110                                     *            1,148.54

90 NON ETHANOL
8/31/22 677464   202208 300-13100-10000                                     *              565.70

90 NON ETHANOL
GLOVER OIL COMPANY INC                                          4,442.53 030016

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/15/22 00194 8/26/22 PINV0120 202208 390-57200-47300                                     *              375.00

COMPOST SEPT
8/26/22 PINV0120 202208 300-15500-10000                                     *            1,500.00

COMPOST OCT-JAN
GOLF VENTURES INC                                               1,875.00 030017

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
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*** CHECK DATES 08/20/2022 - 09/15/2022 ***       VIERA EAST- GOLF COURSE

BANK B VIERA EAST-GOLF

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

 9/15/22 01372 9/02/22 32356155 202209 320-57200-34100                                     *              120.31
INSURANCE

9/02/22 32356155 202209 300-13100-10000                                     *              120.32
INSURANCE

GREAT AMERICA FINANCIAL SVCS                                      240.63 030018
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/15/22 00180 8/31/22 2750     202208 390-57200-46000                                     *               92.52

BEARING
8/31/22 276      202208 390-57200-46000                                     *              198.61

BEARING
9/08/22 276195   202209 390-57200-46000                                     *              179.20

AIR HOSE
NAPA AUTO PARTS                                                   470.33 030019

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/15/22 01358 8/31/22 00102101 202208 390-57200-54200                                     *               34.18

CYLINDER RENTAL
NEXAIR, LLC                                                        34.18 030020

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/15/22 01514 8/31/22 0239880- 202208 390-57200-47500                                     *              511.80

FERTILZATION SEPT
8/31/22 0239880- 202208 300-15500-10000                                     *            2,047.20

FERTILZATION OCT-JAN
NOBLE TURF, LLC                                                 2,559.00 030021

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/15/22 00694 7/15/22 644038   202207 390-57200-46000                                     *              354.62

TEE TOWEL
7/15/22 644038   202207 390-57200-51100                                     *              214.51

FUEL TANK
PRECISION SMALL ENGINE CO., INC.                                  569.13 030022

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/15/22 00315 9/12/22 713718   202209 390-57200-51100                                     *              179.65

GAL GREEN IGLOO WATER
PRESTIGE FLAG INC                                                 179.65 030023

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/15/22 01512 9/07/22 7900762  202209 390-57200-54600                                     *               45.50

CUSHMAN HAULER
THE HUNTINGTON NATIONAL BANK                                       45.50 030024

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/15/22 01207 9/09/22 256211   202209 390-57200-47500                                     *              629.00

CHEMICALS SEPT
9/09/22 256211   202209 300-15500-10000                                     *            2,516.00

CHEMICALS OCT-JAN
TRIGON TURF SCIENCES, LLC                                       3,145.00 030025

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/15/22 00807 9/08/22 920 1441 202209 390-57200-54100                                     *              155.73

UNIFORMS 9/8/22
UNIFIRST CORPORATION                                              155.73 030026

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
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*** CHECK DATES 08/20/2022 - 09/15/2022 ***       VIERA EAST- GOLF COURSE

BANK B VIERA EAST-GOLF

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

 9/15/22 01553 9/02/22 09489760 202209 330-57200-41000                                     *              259.34
SEPT TV VOICE INTERNET

CHARTER COMMUNICATIONS                                            259.34 030027
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/15/22 01550 9/08/22 886301   202209 300-14200-10000                                     *               49.60

BREAD DELIVERY 9.8.22
CHUCK INDEPENDENT BREAD DIST, LLC                                  49.60 030028

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/15/22 01524 9/05/22 0905REIM 202209 300-14100-10000                                     *               16.39

REIMB SAMS CLUB 9.5
9/05/22 0905REIM 202209 300-14100-10000                                     *              112.33

REIMB SAMS CLUB 9.5
JEFFREY SPENCER                                                   128.72 030029

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/15/22 01584 9/01/22 REIMB090 202209 300-14100-10000                                     *               20.86

REIMB WINN DIXIE 9.1.22
NICOLE HICKS                                                       20.86 030030

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/15/22 01569 9/10/22 REIMB091 202209 320-57200-46000                                     *               17.10

REIMBURSEMENT LOWES
9/12/22 REMIB091 202209 320-57200-46000                                     *                7.23

REIMBURSEMENT- LOWES
9/12/22 REMIB091 202209 320-57200-46000                                     *                8.12

REIMBURSEMENT- LOWES
STEVE COLASINSKI                                                   32.45 030031

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 9/15/22 01421 8/31/22 0822-TR7 202209 300-13100-10000                                     *               41.66

WW GF ADMIN & MAINT
8/31/22 0822-TR7 202209 390-57200-22000                                     *               58.34

WW GC MAINT
WAGEWORKS, INC.                                                   100.00 030032

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

TOTAL FOR BANK B                 80,347.96

TOTAL FOR REGISTER               80,347.96
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General	 Capital	Reserve Debt	Service Capital	Projects
	Golf	

Course/Recreation	
	Totals												

(memorandum	only)	
Assets
Operating	Account $338,342 $203,076 ---- ---- $790,434 $1,331,851
Accounts	Receivable ---- ---- ---- ---- $247 $247
Due	From	General	Fund ---- ---- ---- ---- $32,117 $32,117
Due	from	Other ---- ---- ---- ---- $5,590 $5,590
Due	from	Capital	Projects ---- $528,597 ---- ---- $11,462 $540,060
Inventory	-	Pro	Shop ---- ---- ---- ---- $42,378 $42,378
Inventory	-	Hook	and	Eagle ---- ---- ---- ---- $20,638 $20,638
Investments:

State	Board ---- $122,402 ---- ---- ---- $122,402
Benefit	Assessment-	Series	2012 ---- ---- ---- ---- $4,127 $4,127
Reserve	-	Series	2012 ---- ---- ---- ---- $280,139 $280,139
Bond	Service-	Series	2012 ---- ---- ---- ---- $7 $7
Reserve-	Series	2020 ---- ---- $234,615 ---- ---- $234,615
Temporary	Interest	Series	2020 ---- ---- $90,335 ---- ---- $90,335
Project-	Series	2020 ---- ---- ---- $2,758,632 ---- $2,758,632

Improvements	(Net	of	Depreciation) ---- ---- ---- ---- $1,089,032 $1,089,032
Prepaid	Expenses-	Debt ---- ---- ---- ---- $45,917 $45,917
Prepaid	Expenses-	Operations $1,011 ---- ---- ---- $24,118 $25,129

Total	Assets $339,353 $854,075 $324,950 $2,758,632 $2,346,206 $6,623,215

Liabilities
Accounts	Payable $21,154 $4,940 ---- ---- $18,530 $44,623
Accrued	Expenses $512 ---- ---- ---- $4,400 $4,912
Deferred	Revenue-	Season	Advance ---- ---- ---- ---- $56,737 $56,737
Deferred	Revenue-	Special	Assessments	O&M ---- ---- ---- ---- $1,519 $1,519
Deferred	Revenue-	Special	Assessments	Debt ---- ---- ---- ---- $77,319 $77,319
Deposit-Divots	Grill ---- ---- ---- ---- $1,814 $1,814
Due	to	General	Fund ---- ---- ---- ---- ---- $0
Accrued	Interest	Payable ---- ---- ---- ---- $65,408 $65,408
Sales	Tax	Payable ---- ---- ---- ---- $32,830 $32,830
Event	Deposits ---- ---- ---- ---- ($9,004) ($9,004)
Due	to	Golf	Course $32,117 $11,462 ---- ---- ---- $43,580
Due	to	Capital	Reserve ---- ---- ---- $528,597 ---- $528,597
Accrued	Payroll	Payable $16,989 ---- ---- ---- $41,766 $58,755
Bonds	Payable	-	Series	2012 ---- ---- ---- ---- $2,470,000 $2,470,000
Bond	Discount	 ---- ---- ---- ---- ($13,414) ($13,414)
Deferred	Loss ---- ---- ---- ---- ($130,973) ($130,973)	
Fund	Equity 		
Net	Assets ---- ---- ---- ---- ($270,726) ($270,726)
Fund	Balances

Assigned	-	First	Quarter	 $176,000 ---- ---- ---- ---- $176,000
Nonspendable	-	Prepaid	Expense $1,011 ---- ---- ---- ---- $1,011
Unassigned $91,570 ---- ---- ---- ---- $91,570
Assigned-	Capital	Reserve	Fund ---- $837,672 ---- ---- ---- $837,672
Restricted	for	Capital	Projects ---- ---- ---- $2,230,034 ---- $2,230,034
Restricted	for	Debt	Service ---- ---- $324,950 ---- ---- $324,950

Total	Liabilities,	Fund	Equity,	Other $339,353 $854,075 $324,950 $2,758,632 $2,346,206 $6,623,215

Governmental	Fund	Types

August	31,	2022
Combined	Balance	Sheet

Community	Development	District
Viera	East
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Adopted Prorated	Budget Actual
Budget 8/31/22 8/31/22 Variance

Revenues 	 	
	
Maintenance	Assessments $808,157 $808,157 $808,157 $0
Golf	Course	Administrative	Services $56,280 $51,590 $51,590 $0
Donations	for	Park	Material $0 $0 $5,975 $5,975
Miscellaneous	Income-	Farmers	Market $0 $0 $13,871 $13,871
Interest	Income $100 $92 $55 ($37)

Total	Revenues $864,536 $859,838 $879,647 $19,809
	 	 	

Administrative	Expenditures 	

Supervisors	Fees $30,496 $27,955 $24,693 $3,262
Engineering	Fees $5,000 $4,583 $3,430 $1,153
Attorney's	Fees $5,000 $4,583 $19,436 ($14,852)
Dissemination $1,000 $917 $917 $0
Trustee	Fees $5,600 $5,133 $4,041 $1,093
Annual	Audit $6,500 $6,500 $7,500 ($1,000)
Collection	Agent $2,500 $2,292 $2,292 $0
Management	Fees $103,454 $94,833 $94,833 ($0)
Postage $1,500 $1,375 $2,101 ($726)
Printing	&	Binding $2,500 $2,292 $4,825 ($2,533)
Insurance-	Liability $8,040 $7,370 $6,413 $957
Legal	Advertising $1,500 $1,375 $973 $402
Other	Current	Charges $1,500 $1,375 $259 $1,116
Office	Supplies $1,500 $1,375 $190 $1,185
Dues	&	Licenses $175 $175 $175 $0
Information	Technology $4,250 $3,896 $3,896 ($0)

Total	Administrative $180,515 $166,028 $175,973 ($9,945)

Viera	East
Community	Development	District

General	Fund
Statement	of	Revenues	&	Expenditures
For	Period	Ending	August	31,	2022
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Adopted Prorated	Budget Actual
Budget 8/31/22 8/31/22 Variance

Operating	Expenditures 	
	

Salaries $147,487 $135,196 $142,705 ($7,508)
Administration	Fee $1,388 $1,272 $1,019 $253
FICA	Expense $11,283 $10,343 $10,239 $103
Health	Insurance $17,410 $15,959 $15,979 ($20)
Workers	Compensation $2,891 $2,650 $2,271 $379
Unemployment $842 $772 $681 $91
Other	Contractual $7,500 $6,875 $12,883 ($6,008)
Marketing-	Lifestyle/Amenities $18,000 $16,500 $15,899 $601
Training $500 $458 $0 $458
Uniforms $500 $458 $0 $458

Total	Operating $207,801 $190,484 $201,678 ($11,193)

Maintenance	Expenditures

Canal	Maintenance $14,000 $12,833 $9,990 $2,844
Lake	Bank	Restoration $30,000 $24,000 $24,000 $0
Environmental	Services $20,000 $18,333 $2,857 $15,477
Water	Management	System $99,000 $90,750 $104,129 ($13,379)
Midge	Control $15,000 $13,750 $0 $13,750
Contingencies $2,000 $1,833 $3,157 ($1,324)
Fire	Line	Maintenance $2,000 $2,000 $2,000 $0
Basin	Repair $3,000 $2,750 $117 $2,633

	 	
Total	Maintenance $185,000 $166,250 $146,250 $20,000

	

Viera	East
Community	Development	District

General	Fund
Statement	of	Revenues	&	Expenditures
For	Period	Ending	August	31,	2022
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Adopted Prorated	Budget Actual
Budget 8/31/22 8/31/22 Variance

Grounds	Maintenance	Expenditures

Salaries $166,108 $152,266 $123,062 $29,204
Administrative	Fees $3,446 $3,159 $2,038 $1,121
FICA $12,707 $11,648 $9,009 $2,639
Health	Insurance $28,182 $25,834 $16,858 $8,976
Workers	Compensation	 $3,256 $2,985 $2,010 $975
Unemployment $2,506 $2,297 $897 $1,400
Telephone $6,250 $5,729 $6,680 ($951)
Utilities $7,200 $6,600 $8,376 ($1,776)
Property	Appraiser $1,990 $1,824 $1,989 ($164)
Insurance-	Property $2,197 $2,014 $2,415 ($401)
Repairs $15,000 $13,750 $21,687 ($7,937)
Fuel	 $10,000 $9,167 $20,010 ($10,843)
Park	Maintenance $7,500 $6,875 $11,664 ($4,789)
Sidewalk	Repair $10,000 $9,167 $0 $9,167
Chemicals $4,000 $3,667 $3,309 $358
Contingencies $4,000 $3,667 $3,092 $575
Refuse $6,000 $5,500 $6,170 ($670)
Office	Supplies $750 $688 $0 $688
Uniforms $3,000 $2,750 $3,072 ($322)
Fire	Alarm	System $7,500 $6,875 $5,627 $1,248
Rain	Bird	Pump	System $27,576 $25,278 $25,743 ($465)
Park	Materials $0 $0 $2,773 ($2,773)

Total	Grounds	Maintenance $329,168 $301,737 $276,480 $25,258

Total	Expenditures $902,484 $824,500 $800,381 $24,119
	 	 	

Operating	Income	(Loss) ($37,948) $35,338 $79,266 $43,928

Non	Operating		Revenues/(Expenditures)
Reserve	Funding-	Transfer	Out	(Capital	Reserve) ($5,000) ($5,000) ($5,000) $0
Reserve	Funding-	Transfer	Out	(Excess) $0 $0 $0 $0

Total	Non	Operating		Revenues/(Expenditures) ($5,000) ($5,000) ($5,000) $0

Excess	Revenue/(Expenditures) ($42,948) $30,338 $74,266 $43,928

Beginning	Fund	Balance $42,948 $194,315

Ending	Fund	Balance $0 $268,581

Viera	East
Community	Development	District

General	Fund
Statement	of	Revenues	&	Expenditures
For	Period	Ending	August	31,	2022
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Adopted Prorated	Budget Actual
Budget 8/31/22 8/31/22 Variance

Revenues
	

Interest	Income $1,000 $917 $743 ($174)
Reserve	Funding	-	Transfer	In	(General) $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 $0
Reserve	Funding	-	Transfer	In	(Golf) $6,694 $6,694 $6,694 $0
Reserve	Funding	-	Transfer	In	(PY	Excess) $0 $0 $450,000 $450,000
Interfund	Transfer	In-	Water	Management	Bonds $0 $0 $68,842 $68,842

Total	Revenues $12,694 $12,611 $531,278 $518,668

Expenditures

Capital	Outlay $100,000 $0 $0 $0
Truck	Maintenance $25,000 $0 $0 $0
Transfer	Out $0 $0 $0 $0
	
Total	Expenditures $125,000 $0 $0 $0

Excess	Revenues/(Expenditures) ($112,306) $531,278
	 	
Beginning	Fund	Balance $315,696 $306,394

Ending	Fund	Balance $203,390 $837,672

Viera	East
Community	Development	District

Capital	Reserve	Fund
Statement	of	Revenues	&	Expenditures
For	Period	Ending	August	31,	2022
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Check	Date Vendor Detail Amount

Capital	Outlay

FY2022

Total -$																											

Viera	East

For	Period	Ending	August	31,	2022
Capital	Outlay	Check	Register	Detail

Capital	Reserve	Fund
Community	Development	District
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Adopted Prorated	Budget Actual
Budget 8/31/22 8/31/22 Variance

Revenues
	
Special	Assessments $2,089,942 $2,089,942 $2,005,735 ($84,207)
Interest	Income $100 $92 $41 ($51)

Total	Revenues $2,090,042 $2,090,034 $2,005,776 ($84,258)

Expenditures

Interfund	Transfer	Out-	Capital	Reserve $0 $0 $68,842 ($68,842)

Series	2006
Interest-11/1	 $65,119 $65,119 $65,119 $0
Interest-5/1 $65,119 $65,119 $65,119 $0
Principal-5/1 $2,265,000 $2,265,000 $2,265,000 $0

Total	Expenditures $2,395,238 $2,395,238 $2,464,079 $0

	 	
Excess	Revenues/(Expenditures) ($305,196) ($458,303)
	 	
Beginning	Fund	Balance $458,327 $458,303

Ending	Fund	Balance $153,131 $0

	

Viera	East
Community	Development	District

Debt	Service	Fund	Series	2006
Statement	of	Revenues	&	Expenditures
For	Period	Ending	August	31,	2022
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Adopted Prorated	Budget Actual
Budget 8/31/22 8/31/22 Variance

Revenues
	
Interest	Income $500 $458 $19 ($440)

Total	Revenues $500 $458 $19 ($440)

Expenditures

Series	2020
Interest-11/1	 $90,308 $90,308 $90,308 $0
Interest-5/1 $90,308 $90,308 $90,308 $0

Total	Expenditures $180,615 $180,615 $180,615 $0

	 	
Excess	Revenues/(Expenditures) ($180,115) ($180,596)
	 	
Beginning	Fund	Balance $270,953 $505,547

Ending	Fund	Balance $90,838 $324,950

Viera	East
Community	Development	District

Debt	Service	Fund	Series	2020
Statement	of	Revenues	&	Expenditures
For	Period	Ending	August	31,	2022
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Actual
8/31/22

Revenues
	
Interest	Income $205

Total	Revenues $205

Expenditures

Capital	Outlay $2,554,377
Cost	of	Issuance $0

Total	Expenditures $2,554,377

	
Excess	Revenues/(Expenditures) ($2,554,172)
	
Beginning	Fund	Balance $4,784,207

Ending	Fund	Balance $2,230,034

	

Viera	East

For	Period	Ending	August	31,	2022
Statement	of	Revenues	&	Expenditures
Capital	Projects	Fund	Series	2020

Community	Development	District
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Adopted
Budget Actuals Budget Variance Actuals Budget Variance

	
Number	of		Rounds

Paid	Rounds 35,250											 2,765 2,503														 262															 41,096														 33,470													 7,626															
Member	Rounds 10,000											 661 710																	 (49)																 8,631																 9,495															 (864)																	
Comp	Rounds 3,000													 101 213																	 (112)														 1,787																 2,849															 (1,062)														
EZ	Links 3,000													 0 213																	 (213)														 -																				 2,782															 (2,782)														
GolfNow 2,000													 322 142																	 180															 2,877																 1,899															 978																		
Total	Memberships 60																			 0 -																		 -																 59																						 60																					 (1)																					
Revenue	per	Round
Paid	Rounds $40 $36 $34 $2 $40 $40 ($0)

Revenues

Greens	Fees $1,426,357 $98,996 $85,581 $13,415 $1,652,314 $1,351,473 $300,841
Gift	Cards-	Sales $25,000 $3,475 $1,500 $1,975 $11,450 $23,688 ($12,237)
Gift	Cards-	Usage ($25,000) ($710) ($1,500) $790 ($15,722) ($23,688) $7,966
Season	Advance/Trail	Fees $210,000 $19,292 $12,600 $6,692 $248,020 $198,975 $49,045
Associate	Memberships $42,000 $869 $2,520 ($1,651) $26,788 $39,795 ($13,007)
Driving	Range $80,000 $800 $4,800 ($4,000) $92,219 $75,800 $16,419
Golf	Lessons $2,100 $265 $126 $139 $3,505 $1,990 $1,515
Merchandise	Sales $115,000 $7,932 $6,900 $1,032 $115,715 $108,963 $6,752
Assessments	-Recreation	Operating $18,239 $1,519 $1,521 ($2) $16,712 $16,718 ($5)
Miscellaneous	Income $15,000 $3,844 $1,251 $2,593 $13,258 $13,749 ($491)

Total	Revenues $1,908,696 $136,281 $115,300 $20,982 $2,164,259 $1,807,462 $356,796

Golf	Course	Expenditures

Other	Contractual	Services $15,000 $1,271 $1,251 ($20) $13,785 $13,749 ($36)
Telephone $2,500 $194 $209 $15 $1,565 $2,292 $726
Postage $2,000 $0 $167 $167 $0 $1,833 $1,833
Printing	&	Binding $1,000 $0 $83 $83 $0 $917 $917
Utilities $15,900 $55 $1,326 $1,271 $3,740 $14,574 $10,834
Repairs	&	Maintenance $8,000 $206 $667 $461 $15,278 $7,333 ($7,945)
Marketing-	Golf	Marketing $39,000 $1,759 $3,253 $1,494 $18,120 $35,747 $17,627
Bank	Charges $35,000 $7,126 $2,919 ($4,207) $40,920 $32,081 ($8,839)
Office	Supplies $4,000 $702 $334 ($369) $3,746 $3,666 ($79)
Operating	Supplies $5,000 $204 $417 $213 $3,076 $4,583 $1,507
Dues,	Licenses	&	Subscriptions $8,000 $630 $667 $37 $10,228 $7,333 ($2,895)
Drug	Testing-	All	departments $500 $0 $42 $42 $0 $458 $458
Training,	Education	&	Employee	Relations $3,000 $0 $250 $250 $1,153 $2,750 $1,597
Contractual	Security $3,000 $0 $250 $250 $3,328 $2,750 ($578)
IT	Services $3,000 $1,258 $250 ($1,008) $5,307 $2,750 ($2,557)

Total	Golf	Course	Expenditures $144,900 $13,406 $12,085 ($1,321) $120,247 $132,815 $12,569

Viera	East	

Current	Month Year-to-Date

For	Period	Ending	August	31,	2022
Statement	of	Revenues	&	Expenditures
Golf	Course/Recreation	Fund	-	Operations

Community	Development	District
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Adopted
Budget Actuals Budget Variance Actuals Budget Variance

	

Viera	East	

Current	Month Year-to-Date

For	Period	Ending	August	31,	2022
Statement	of	Revenues	&	Expenditures
Golf	Course/Recreation	Fund	-	Operations

Community	Development	District

Golf	Operation	Expenditures

Salaries $239,595 $19,714 $19,965 $252 $214,160 $219,620 $5,460
Administrative	Fee $19,039 $1,181 $1,587 $406 $14,619 $17,452 $2,833
FICA	Expense $18,329 $1,433 $1,527 $94 $16,002 $16,801 $799
Health	Insurance $739 $1,258 $62 ($1,196) $10,158 $677 ($9,480)
Workers	Compensation $4,696 $311 $391 $80 $3,484 $4,304 $820
Unemployment $12,835 	 $368 $1,070 $701 $5,146 $11,765 $6,619
Golf	Printing $2,200 $0 $183 $183 $1,574 $2,017 $443
Utilities $22,500 $1,500 $1,875 $375 $19,293 $20,625 $1,332
Repairs $250 $0 $21 $21 $1,647 $229 ($1,418)
Pest	Control $1,200 $95 $100 $5 $1,072 $1,100 $28
Supplies $10,000 $742 $833 $92 $10,249 $9,167 ($1,082)
Uniforms $1,500 $0 $125 $125 $0 $1,375 $1,375
Training,	Education	&	Employee	Relations $2,000 $0 $167 $167 $0 $1,833 $1,833
Fuel $500 $0 $42 $42 $0 $458 $458
Cart	Lease $87,763 $7,072 $7,314 $242 $78,761 $80,449 $1,689
Cart	Maintenance $4,000 $0 $333 $333 $6,114 $3,667 ($2,447)
Driving	Range $10,000 $0 $833 $833 $8,028 $9,167 $1,138

	 	
Total	Golf	Operation	Expenditures $437,146 $33,674 $36,428 $2,754 $390,308 $400,706 $10,399

Merchandise	Sales

Cost	of	Goods	Sold $77,000 $4,222 $6,417 $2,195 $69,437 $70,583 $1,146

Total	Merchandise	Sales $77,000 $4,222 $6,417 $2,195 $69,437 $70,583 $1,146
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Adopted
Budget Actuals Budget Variance Actuals Budget Variance

	

Viera	East	

Current	Month Year-to-Date

For	Period	Ending	August	31,	2022
Statement	of	Revenues	&	Expenditures
Golf	Course/Recreation	Fund	-	Operations

Community	Development	District

Golf	Course	Maintenance

Salaries $420,047 $34,354 $35,004 $650 $385,121 $385,043 ($78)
Administrative	Fees $9,595 $623 $800 $177 $7,038 $8,795 $1,758
FICA	Expense $32,134 $2,577 $2,678 $100 $28,847 $29,456 $610
Employee	Insurance $43,225 $2,242 $3,602 $1,360 $29,357 $39,623 $10,266
Workers	Compensation $9,341 $536 $778 $243 $6,105 $8,563 $2,457
Unemployment $7,165 $275 $597 $322 $4,067 $6,568 $2,501
Fire	Alarm	System $4,000 $0 $333 $333 $0 $3,667 $3,667
Utilities/Water $26,200 $2,462 $2,183 ($279) $24,846 $24,017 ($830)
Repairs $48,000 $2,268 $4,000 $1,732 $33,155 $44,000 $10,845
Fuel	&	Oil	 $40,000 $4,652 $3,333 ($1,319) $41,084 $36,667 ($4,418)
Pest	Control $1,000 $104 $83 ($20) $1,129 $917 ($212)
Irrigation/Drainage $30,000 $102 $2,500 $2,398 $9,544 $27,500 $17,956
Sand	and	Topsoil $26,500 $1,194 $2,208 $1,015 $14,246 $24,292 $10,046
Flower/Mulch $7,000 $0 $583 $583 $4,531 $6,417 $1,885
Fertilizer $139,000 $12,080 $11,583 ($497) $159,360 $127,417 ($31,943)
Seed/Sod $16,500 $0 $1,375 $1,375 $0 $15,125 $15,125
Trash	Removal $2,000 $207 $167 ($40) $2,311 $1,833 ($477)
Contingency $6,000 $0 $500 $500 $11,271 $11,271 $0
First	Aid $800 $313 $67 ($246) $779 $733 ($46)
Office	Supplies $1,000 $0 $83 $83 $310 $917 $607
Operating	Supplies $15,000 $1,298 $1,250 ($48) $12,320 $13,750 $1,430
Training $1,000 $482 $83 ($399) $2,871 $917 ($1,954)
Janitorial	Supplies $1,000 $0 $83 $83 $56 $917 $861
Janitorial	Services $20,000 $950 $1,667 $717 $10,422 $18,333 $7,912
Soil	&	Water	Testing $1,000 $0 $83 $83 $1,663 $917 ($747)
Uniforms $8,500 $720 $708 ($11) $9,306 $7,792 ($1,515)
Equipment	Rental $2,000 $34 $167 $132 $370 $1,833 $1,464
Equipment	Lease $177,975 $13,553 $14,831 $1,279 $150,121 $163,144 $13,023
Small	Tools $500 $0 $42 $42 $0 $458 $458

Total	Golf	Course	Maintenance $1,096,482 $81,025 $91,374 $10,348 $950,229 $1,010,880 $60,650
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Adopted
Budget Actuals Budget Variance Actuals Budget Variance

	

Viera	East	

Current	Month Year-to-Date

For	Period	Ending	August	31,	2022
Statement	of	Revenues	&	Expenditures
Golf	Course/Recreation	Fund	-	Operations

Community	Development	District

Administrative	Expenditures

Legal	Fees $1,500 $0 $125 $125 $5,886 $1,375 ($4,511)
Engineering $0 $0 $0 $0 $6,590 $0 ($6,590)
Arbitrage $600 $450 $50 ($400) $900 $550 ($350)
Dissemination $1,000 $83 $83 $0 $917 $917 $0
Trustee	Fees $4,100 $0 $342 $342 $8,178 $3,758 ($4,420)
Annual	Audit $1,500 $1,500 $1,500 $0 $1,500 $1,500 $0
Golf	Course	Administrative	Services $56,280 $4,690 $4,690 $0 $51,590 $51,590 $0
Insurance $85,019 $7,531 $7,085 ($446) $84,593 $77,934 ($6,659)
Property	Taxes $10,000 $740 $833 $93 $12,202 $9,167 ($3,035)

Total	Administrative	Expenditures $159,999 $14,995 $14,708 ($287) $172,356 $146,791 ($25,565)

Total	Revenues $1,908,696 $136,281 $115,300 $20,982 $2,164,259 $1,807,462 $356,796

Total	Expenditures $1,915,527 $147,322 $161,011 $13,689 $1,702,577 $1,761,776 $59,199

Operating	Income	(Loss) ($6,831) ($11,041) ($45,711) $34,671 $461,682 $45,687 $415,995

Non	Operating		Revenues/(Expenditures)

Special	Assessments	 $560,250 $77,318 $46,688 $30,631 $605,459 $513,563 $91,897
Interest	Income $1,000 $1 $83 ($82) $14 $917 ($902)
Reserve	Funding-	Transfer	Out	(Capital	Reserve) ($6,694) $0 ($558) ($558) ($6,694) ($6,694) $0
Reserve	Funding-	Transfer	Out	(PY	Excess) $0 $0 $0 $0 ($450,000) $0 ($450,000)
Interfund	Transfer	In-	Restaurant $17,700 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Gain	on	Sale	of	Asset $0 $0 $0 $0 $300 $0 $300
Interest	Expense	 ($140,425) ($11,702) ($11,702) $0 ($128,723) ($128,723) $0
Principal	Expense	 ($425,000) ($45,917) ($35,417) ($10,500) ($399,083) ($389,583) ($9,500)
Total	Non	Operating		Revenues/(Expenditures) $6,831 $19,701 ($906) $19,491 ($378,727) ($10,521) ($368,206)

Change	in	Net	Assets $0 $8,660 ($46,617) $54,161 $82,955 $35,166 $47,790

Beginning	Net	Assets $0 ---- ---- ---- ($328,497) ---- ----

Ending	Net	Assets $0 ---- ---- ---- ($245,541) ---- ----
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Adopted Prorated	Budget Actual
Budget 8/31/22 8/31/22 Variance

Revenues 	 	
	
Food	Sales $9,200 $7,667 $229,852 $222,186
Snack	Sales $0 $0 $781 $781
Wine	Sales $400 $333 $9,059 $8,726
Beer	Sales $6,400 $5,333 $132,344 $127,011
Beverage	Sales $1,600 $1,333 $35,219 $33,885
Liquor	Sales $2,400 $2,000 $73,749 $71,749
Gift	Card	Sales $0 $0 $8,829 $8,829
Gift	Cards	Usage $0 $0 $0 $0

Total	Revenues $20,000 $16,667 $489,833 $473,166
	 	 	

Restaurant	Expenditures 	

Restaurant	Manager	Contract $0 $0 $59,583 ($59,583)
Salaries $0 $0 $127,908 ($127,908)
Administrative	Fee $0 $0 $5,836 ($5,836)
FICA	Expense $0 $0 $14,214 ($14,214)
Health	Insurance $0 $0 $13,339 ($13,339)
Workers	Compensation $0 $0 $1,981 ($1,981)
Unemployment $0 $0 $4,566 ($4,566)
Telephone $0 $0 $2,968 ($2,968)
Utilities $0 $0 $10,026 ($10,026)
Pest	Control $1,200 $1,000 $1,069 ($69)
Equipment	Lease $1,100 $917 $1,244 ($328)
Repairs $0 $0 $7,016 ($7,016)
Kitchen	Equipment/Supplies $0 $0 $6,844 ($6,844)
Paper	&	Plastic	Supplies $0 $0 $8,399 ($8,399)
Operating	Supplies $0 $0 $25,522 ($25,522)
Food	Cost $0 $0 $95,012 ($95,012)
Snack	Cost $0 $0 $7,631 ($7,631)
Beer	Cost $0 $0 $57,744 ($57,744)
Beverage	Cost $0 $0 $18,182 ($18,182)
Wine	Cost $0 $0 $3,923 ($3,923)
Liquor	Cost $0 $0 $20,385 ($20,385)
First	Aid $0 $0 $206 ($206)
Entertainment $0 $0 $12,905 ($12,905)
Delivery/Gas $0 $0 $3,291 ($3,291)
Uniforms $0 $0 $474 ($474)
Dues	&	License $0 $0 $4,750 ($4,750)

Total	Restaurant	Expenditures $2,300 $1,917 $515,018 ($513,101)

Operating	Income	(Loss) $17,700 $14,750 ($25,185) ($39,935)

Non	Operating		Revenues/(Expenditures)
Interfund	Transfer	Out-	Golf	Course ($17,700) $0 $0 $0

Total	Non	Operating		Revenues/(Expenditures) ($17,700) $0 $0 $0

Excess	Revenue/(Expenditures) $0 $14,750 ($25,185) ($39,935)

Beginning	Fund	Balance $0 $0

Ending	Fund	Balance $0 ($25,185)

Viera	East
Community	Development	District

Restaurant-	Hook	&	Eagle
Statement	of	Revenues	&	Expenditures
For	Period	Ending	August	31,	2022
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Viera	East	General	Fund
Month	to	Month

	
October November December January February March April May June July August September Total	

Revenues 	 	
	
Maintenance	Assessments $0 $231,577 $488,701 $10,364 $16,052 $5,215 $28,893 $27,354 $0 $0 $0 $0 $808,157
Golf	Course	Administrative	Services $4,690 $4,690 $4,690 $4,690 $4,690 $4,690 $4,690 $4,690 $4,690 $4,690 $4,690 $0 $51,590
Donations	for	Park	Material $1,250 $1,200 $0 $1,200 $0 $0 $625 $500 $1,200 $0 $0 $0 $5,975
Miscellaneous	Income-	Farmers	Market $745 $777 $863 $2,896 $715 $5,194 $1,003 $228 $1,148 $304 $0 $0 $13,871
Interest	Income $52 $0 $0 $1 $1 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $55

	 	
Total	Revenues $6,737 $238,244 $494,253 $19,151 $21,458 $15,099 $35,211 $32,772 $7,038 $4,994 $4,690 $0 $879,647

	 	
Administrative	Expenditures 	

Supervisors	Fees $1,343 $2,247 $2,473 $1,341 $2,471 $2,367 $2,243 $2,018 $2,243 $2,243 $3,703 $0 $24,693
Engineering	Fees $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,025 $0 ($150) $0 $0 $2,555 $0 $3,430
Attorney's	Fees $0 $3,289 $2,879 $1,096 $1,538 $0 $597 $0 $130 $4,686 $5,222 $0 $19,436
Dissemination $83 $83 $83 $83 $83 $83 $83 $83 $83 $83 $83 $0 $917
Trustee	Fees $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $4,041 $0 $4,041
Annual	Audit $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $7,500 $0 $7,500
Collection	Agent $208 $208 $208 $208 $208 $208 $208 $208 $208 $208 $208 $0 $2,292
Management	Fees $8,621 $8,621 $8,621 $8,621 $8,621 $8,621 $8,621 $8,621 $8,621 $8,621 $8,621 $0 $94,833
Postage $3 $25 $790 $145 $0 ($129) $64 $41 $1 $632 $531 $0 $2,101
Printing	&	Binding $32 $83 $99 $111 $3 $3,565 $88 $86 $231 $357 $170 $0 $4,825
Insurance-	Liability $583 $583 $583 $583 $583 $583 $583 $583 $583 $583 $583 $0 $6,413
Legal	Advertising $0 $0 $623 $174 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $177 $0 $0 $973
Other	Current	Charges $82 $25 $23 $0 $0 $27 $20 $24 $20 $21 $17 $0 $259
Office	Supplies $0 $10 $10 $10 $0 $10 $10 $10 $10 $110 $10 $0 $190
Dues	&	Licenses $175 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $175
Information	Technology $354 $354 $354 $354 $354 $354 $354 $354 $354 $354 $354 $0 $3,896

	
Total	Administrative $11,485 $15,528 $16,747 $12,726 $13,862 $16,715 $12,872 $11,879 $12,484 $18,075 $33,599 $0 $175,973

Operating	Expenditures 	

Salaries $13,286 $12,015 $13,478 $12,571 $11,895 $12,260 $13,512 $12,973 $12,560 $15,067 $13,088 $0 $142,705
Administration	Fee $100 $91 $99 $88 $85 $88 $97 $94 $91 $91 $94 $0 $1,019
FICA	Expense $914 $805 $915 $993 $882 $909 $1,002 $966 $950 $931 $972 $0 $10,239
Health	Insurance $804 $812 $1,653 $1,718 $1,718 $1,718 $1,536 $1,176 $1,608 $1,608 $1,628 $0 $15,979
Workers	Compensation $239 $216 $243 $188 $188 $194 $213 $205 $198 $200 $187 $0 $2,271
Unemployment $0 $0 $86 $483 $89 $2 $6 $9 $6 $0 $0 $0 $681
Other	Contractual $1,008 $857 $933 $1,369 $1,658 $1,368 $1,374 $1,494 $1,232 $690 $901 $0 $12,883
Marketing-	Lifestyle/Amenities $2,400 $783 $1,437 $1,200 $1,200 $1,503 $2,400 $2,577 $2,400 $0 $0 $0 $15,899
Training $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Uniforms $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
Total	Operating $18,751 $15,579 $18,844 $18,610 $17,715 $18,042 $20,140 $19,495 $19,045 $18,587 $16,870 $0 $201,678
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Viera	East	General	Fund
Month	to	Month

October November December January February March April May June July August September Total	

Maintenance	Expenditures

Canal	Maintenance $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $9,990 $0 $9,990
Lake	Bank	Restoration $0 $0 $0 $24,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $24,000
Environmental	Services $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $720 $545 $144 $0 $0 $1,448 $0 $2,857
Water	Management	System $8,368 $10,218 $9,768 $9,343 $9,193 $10,903 $8,568 $10,718 $9,768 $8,918 $8,368 $0 $104,129
Midge	Control $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Contingencies $0 $0 $0 $1,200 $0 $0 $1,957 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $3,157
Fire	Line	Maintenance $2,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,000
Basin	Repair $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $117 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $117

	 	
Total	Maintenance $10,368 $10,218 $9,768 $34,543 $9,193 $11,623 $11,188 $10,862 $9,768 $8,918 $19,805 $0 $146,250

Grounds	Maintenance	Expenditures

Salaries $12,209 $10,821 $12,528 $9,815 $10,162 $10,763 $11,512 $11,522 $11,101 $11,140 $11,489 $0 $123,062
Administrative	Fees $200 $182 $163 $212 $171 $176 $194 $188 $182 $182 $188 $0 $2,038
FICA $894 $792 $922 $710 $742 $776 $840 $847 $830 $816 $841 $0 $9,009
Health	Insurance $1,079 $1,630 $1,376 $1,721 $1,721 $1,721 $1,516 $1,179 $1,638 $1,638 $1,638 $0 $16,858
Workers	Compensation	 $220 $195 $215 $155 $161 $168 $182 $182 $175 $176 $182 $0 $2,010
Unemployment $0 $0 $172 $178 $307 $138 $35 $34 $29 $3 $0 $0 $897
Telephone $557 $611 $555 $545 $545 $586 $584 $584 $847 $606 $660 $0 $6,680
Utilities $904 $830 $684 $879 $779 $675 $637 $633 $782 $802 $773 $0 $8,376
Property	Appraiser $0 $0 $1,989 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,989
Insurance-	Property $220 $220 $220 $220 $220 $220 $220 $220 $220 $220 $220 $0 $2,415
Repairs $1,095 $5,140 $454 $47 $1,332 $3,765 $86 $1,306 $26 $6,463 $1,975 $0 $21,687
Fuel	 $2,254 $450 $1,330 $1,497 $1,387 $1,101 $3,127 $2,064 $2,632 $1,857 $2,311 $0 $20,010
Park	Maintenance $0 $0 $146 $803 $2,232 $589 $1,881 $1,268 $91 $4,654 $0 $0 $11,664
Sidewalk	Repair $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Chemicals $0 $459 $663 $0 $0 $746 $0 $924 $516 $0 $0 $0 $3,309
Contingencies $0 $800 $0 $926 $0 $1,100 $0 $0 $146 $0 $120 $0 $3,092
Refuse $240 $480 $240 $480 $480 $720 $0 $0 $0 $2,400 $1,130 $0 $6,170
Office	Supplies $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Uniforms $215 $161 $350 $259 $259 $641 $215 $227 $283 $227 $236 $0 $3,072
Fire	Alarm	System $512 $512 $512 $512 $512 $512 $512 $512 $512 $512 $512 $0 $5,627
Rain	Bird	Pump	System $2,298 $2,298 $2,528 $2,298 $2,298 $2,298 $2,298 $2,528 $2,298 $2,298 $2,298 $0 $25,743
Park	Materials $0 $1,748 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,025 $0 $0 $2,773

Total	Grounds	Maintenance $22,896 $27,328 $25,045 $21,257 $23,306 $26,693 $23,838 $24,219 $22,307 $35,017 $24,573 $0 $276,480

Total	Expenditures $63,499 $68,652 $70,403 $87,137 $64,076 $73,073 $68,038 $66,454 $63,604 $80,597 $94,847 $0 $800,381

Operating	Income	(Loss) ($56,762) $169,592 $423,850 ($67,986) ($42,618) ($57,974) ($32,827) ($33,682) ($56,567) ($75,603) ($90,157) $0 $79,266
	 	

Non	Operating		Revenues/(Expenditures)
Reserve	Funding-	Transfer	Out	(Capital	Reserve) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 ($5,000) $0 $0 $0 ($5,000)
Reserve	Funding-	Transfer	Out	(Excess) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Total	Non	Operating	Revenues/Expenditures $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 ($5,000) $0 $0 $0 ($5,000)

Excess	Revenue/(Expenditures) ($56,762) $169,592 $423,850 ($67,986) ($42,618) ($57,974) ($32,827) ($33,682) ($61,567) ($75,603) ($90,157) $0 $74,266
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Viera	East	Golf	Course

Month	to	Month

October November December January February March April May June July August September Total
	
Number	of		Rounds
Paid	Rounds 3,263 3,227 3,817 3,732 4,526 4,934 4,648 3,948 3,124 3,112 2,765 0 41,096																					
Member	Rounds 701 814 784 794 870 1,054 864 717 705 667 661 0 8,631																								
Comp	Rounds 214 329 156 234 142 157 137 120 93 104 101 0 1,787																								
EZ	Links 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -																														
GolfNow 308 71 293 178 246 287 276 292 284 320 322 0 2,877																								
Revenue	per	Round
Paid	Rounds $40 $40 $40 $46 $46 $47 $40 $33 $35 $34 $36 $0 $436

Revenues:
Greens	Fees $129,023 $129,054 $153,395 $170,075 $207,689 $234,291 $185,022 $130,722 $108,051 $105,996 $98,996 $0 $1,652,314
Gift	Cards	-	Sales $349 $397 $3,300 $219 $706 $680 $665 $359 $702 $601 $3,475 $0 $11,450
Gift	Cards	-	Usage ($1,925) ($281) ($1,538) ($2,627) ($2,218) ($1,556) ($1,335) ($1,391) ($914) ($1,226) ($710) $0 ($15,722)
Season	Advance/Trail	Fees $20,573 $22,472 $21,895 $24,159 $26,317 $26,856 $24,956 $21,006 $20,730 $19,765 $19,292 $0 $248,020
Associate	Memberships $1,738 $2,565 $3,555 $4,582 $3,792 $4,078 $2,212 $1,106 $1,106 $1,185 $869 $0 $26,788
Driving	Range $7,266 $7,328 $10,607 $7,590 $9,971 $11,312 $10,812 $10,225 $8,765 $7,542 $800 $0 $92,219
Golf	Lessons $175 $175 $175 $175 $175 $335 $335 $405 $355 $935 $265 $0 $3,505
Merchandise	Sales $12,204 $7,720 $10,220 $8,083 $10,009 $12,199 $14,745 $14,223 $8,644 $9,737 $7,932 $0 $115,715
Special	Assessments	-	Operations $1,519 $1,519 $1,519 $1,519 $1,519 $1,519 $1,519 $1,519 $1,519 $1,519 $1,519 $0 $16,712
Miscellaneous	Income $574 $253 $404 $417 $486 $1,291 $797 $4,677 $471 $43 $3,844 $0 $13,258

Total	Revenues $171,495 $171,201 $203,533 $214,192 $258,445 $291,004 $239,730 $182,851 $149,428 $146,098 $136,281 $0 $2,164,259

Golf	Course	Expenditures:
Other	Contractual	Services $1,246 $1,763 $609 $1,232 $1,281 $1,268 $1,269 $1,426 $1,149 $1,271 $1,271 $0 $13,785
Telephone/Internet $0 $106 $106 $106 $106 $171 $194 $194 $194 $194 $194 $0 $1,565
Postage $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Printing	&	Binding $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Utilities $342 $393 $671 $338 $356 $402 $335 $342 $158 $348 $55 $0 $3,740
Repairs	&	Maintenance $2,527 $2,610 $1,886 $2,006 $2,910 $818 $1,020 $158 $537 $601 $206 $0 $15,278
Advertising $1,735 $1,748 $2,434 $1,739 $1,329 $1,814 $974 $1,454 $1,058 $2,078 $1,759 $0 $18,120
Bank	Charges $2,979 $4,423 $4,390 $6,157 $5,709 $4,145 $249 $351 $5,064 $327 $7,126 $0 $40,920
Office	Supplies $636 $129 $340 $238 $230 $640 $292 $226 $68 $244 $702 $0 $3,746
Operating	Supplies $157 $164 $516 $434 $179 $125 $332 $179 $564 $222 $204 $0 $3,076
Dues,	Licenses	&	Subscriptions $180 $0 $388 $0 $7,140 $573 $0 $772 $140 $405 $630 $0 $10,228
Drug	Testing	-	All	Departments $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Training,	Education	&	Employee	Relations $0 $91 $234 $73 $0 $0 $0 $124 $38 $593 $0 $0 $1,153
Contractual	Security $0 $0 $268 $151 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,910 $0 $0 $0 $3,328
IT	Services $810 $0 $575 $1,230 $0 $332 $0 $477 $0 $625 $1,258 $0 $5,307

Total	Golf	Course	Expenditures $10,613 $11,426 $12,416 $13,704 $19,240 $10,288 $4,664 $5,703 $11,879 $6,908 $13,406 $0 $120,247
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Viera	East	Golf	Course
Month	to	Month

October November December January February March April May June July August September Total

Golf	Operations: 	
Salaries $19,463 $16,253 $17,856 $16,580 $17,980 $20,943 $22,417 $22,302 $20,698 $19,955 $19,714 $0 $214,160
Administrative	Fee $1,427 $1,298 $1,510 $1,216 $1,334 $1,353 $1,435 $1,378 $1,271 $1,216 $1,181 $0 $14,619
FICA	Expense $1,475 $1,231 $1,352 $1,256 $1,363 $1,590 $1,693 $1,631 $1,544 $1,434 $1,433 $0 $16,002
Health	Insurance $521 $596 $663 $631 $689 $631 $1,660 $1,051 $1,199 $1,258 $1,258 $0 $10,158
Workers	Compensation $350 $293 $308 $262 $284 $331 $354 $352 $327 $311 $311 $0 $3,484
Unemployment $401 $266 $403 $591 $642 $331 $672 $572 $478 $422 $368 $0 $5,146
Golf	Printing $0 $0 $0 $1,574 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,574
Utilities $342 $2,726 $1,459 $903 $3,212 $2,031 $1,905 $1,795 $1,696 $1,725 $1,500 $0 $19,293
Repairs $50 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,396 $0 $0 $201 $0 $0 $0 $1,647
Pest	Control $122 $95 $99 $95 $95 $95 $95 $95 $93 $93 $95 $0 $1,072
Supplies $508 $1,371 $1,697 $1,906 $910 $423 $282 $1,058 $484 $869 $742 $0 $10,249
Uniforms $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Training,	Education	&	Employee	Relations $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Fuel $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Cart	Lease $7,363 $7,072 $6,908 $7,169 $7,333 $7,363 $7,072 $6,908 $7,169 $7,333 $7,072 $0 $78,761
Cart	Maintenance $1,148 $33 $0 $0 $0 $1,260 $0 $1,640 $944 $1,090 $0 $0 $6,114
Driving	Range $0 $3,000 $1,015 $365 $250 $404 $809 $809 $1,376 $0 $0 $0 $8,028

Total	Golf	Operation	Expenditures $33,170 $34,233 $33,270 $32,547 $34,092 $38,151 $38,394 $39,591 $37,481 $35,705 $33,674 $0 $390,308

Merchandise	Sales:

Cost	of	Goods	Sold $5,774 $4,835 $9,352 $3,250 $9,910 $8,328 $6,520 $6,990 $2,274 $7,983 $4,222 $0 $69,437

Total	Merchandise	Sales $5,774 $4,835 $9,352 $3,250 $9,910 $8,328 $6,520 $6,990 $2,274 $7,983 $4,222 $0 $69,437
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Viera	East	Golf	Course
Month	to	Month

October November December January February March April May June July August September Total

Golf	Course	Maintenance:
Salaries $38,081 $36,410 $40,894 $34,707 $31,197 $31,610 $34,364 $34,885 $34,431 $34,188 $34,354 $0 $385,121
Administrative	Fees $701 $674 $743 $644 $603 $574 $632 $652 $602 $591 $623 $0 $7,038
FICA	Expense $2,851 $2,732 $3,065 $2,588 $2,324 $2,359 $2,563 $2,613 $2,607 $2,568 $2,577 $0 $28,847
Employee	Insurance $2,315 $2,739 $2,978 $3,912 $2,877 $2,992 $2,592 $2,073 $2,265 $2,373 $2,242 $0 $29,357
Workers	Compensation $685 $654 $703 $548 $493 $499 $543 $550 $543 $351 $536 $0 $6,105
Unemployment $71 $94 $577 $1,158 $824 $466 $161 $176 $150 $114 $275 $0 $4,067
Fire	Alarm	System $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Utilities/Water $1,886 $1,987 $1,957 $1,464 $2,526 $2,357 $2,544 $2,784 $2,018 $2,861 $2,462 $0 $24,846
Repairs $2,736 $2,093 $3,012 $3,159 $4,577 $1,861 $1,611 $5,666 $2,384 $3,787 $2,268 $0 $33,155
Fuel	&	Oil	 $4,791 $1,084 $2,917 $3,039 $2,577 $2,235 $6,350 $4,190 $5,363 $3,885 $4,652 $0 $41,084
Pest	Control $112 $99 $95 $99 $99 $99 $104 $104 $108 $108 $104 $0 $1,129
Irrigation/Drainage $1,231 $581 $926 $1,039 $1,908 $1,398 $1,138 $738 $301 $183 $102 $0 $9,544
Sand	and	Topsoil $990 $1,031 $489 $2,858 $1,444 $341 $341 $3,248 $943 $1,368 $1,194 $0 $14,246
Flower/Mulch $497 $973 $1,508 $973 $497 $83 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $4,531
Fertilizer $32,201 $4,395 $11,196 $12,630 $13,609 $15,770 $19,638 $17,319 $11,394 $9,128 $12,080 $0 $159,360
Seed/Sod $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Trash	Removal $207 $414 $0 $243 $207 $207 $207 $207 $207 $207 $207 $0 $2,311
Contingency $3,950 $0 $113 $0 $45 $4,200 $0 $2,850 $113 $0 $0 $0 $11,271
First	Aid $129 $22 $0 $0 $141 $0 $0 $176 $0 $0 $313 $0 $779
Office	Supplies $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $310 $0 $0 $0 $0 $310
Operating	Supplies $3,147 $1,116 $1,579 $935 $377 $1,407 $1,023 $785 $0 $653 $1,298 $0 $12,320
Training $0 $886 $0 $45 $78 $145 $275 $960 $0 $0 $482 $0 $2,871
Janitorial	Supplies $0 $30 $0 $0 $10 $0 $0 $0 $0 $15 $0 $0 $56
Janitorial	Services $922 $950 $950 $950 $950 $950 $950 $950 $950 $950 $950 $0 $10,422
Soil	&	Water	Testing $707 $707 $250 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,663
Uniforms $669 $797 $1,645 $663 $620 $854 $819 $1,107 $773 $639 $720 $0 $9,306
Equipment	Rental $34 $33 $34 $34 $31 $34 $33 $34 $33 $34 $34 $0 $370
Equipment	Lease $8,520 $13,473 $12,789 $14,276 $11,517 $12,180 $15,699 $15,302 $13,919 $18,895 $13,553 $0 $150,121
Small	Tools $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Total	Golf	Course	Maintenance $107,431 $73,972 $88,421 $85,966 $79,527 $82,622 $91,585 $97,678 $79,103 $82,900 $81,025 $0 $950,229

Administrative	Expenditures:
Legal	Fees $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $5,886 $0 $0 $0 $0 $5,886
Engineering $210 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $770 $0 $5,610 $0 $0 $6,590
Arbitrage $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $450 $0 $0 $0 $450 $0 $900
Dissemination $83 $83 $83 $83 $83 $83 $83 $83 $83 $83 $83 $0 $917
Trustee	Fees $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $8,178 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $8,178
Annual	Audit $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,500 $0 $1,500
Golf	Course	Administrative	Services $4,690 $4,690 $4,690 $4,690 $4,690 $4,690 $4,690 $4,690 $4,690 $4,690 $4,690 $0 $51,590
Insurance $7,531 $7,531 $7,531 $7,531 $7,531 $9,066 $7,745 $7,531 $7,531 $7,531 $7,531 $0 $84,593
Property	Taxes $0 $870 $740 $5,322 $740 $740 $740 $740 $740 $827 $740 $0 $12,202

Total	Administrative	Expenditures $12,515 $13,174 $13,045 $17,626 $13,045 $14,580 $21,887 $19,701 $13,045 $18,742 $14,995 $0 $172,356

Total	Revenues $171,495 $171,201 $203,533 $214,192 $258,445 $291,004 $239,730 $182,851 $149,428 $146,098 $136,281 $0 $2,164,259
	
Total	Expenditures $169,502 $137,641 $156,504 $153,094 $155,814 $153,968 $163,050 $169,663 $143,781 $152,238 $147,322 $0 $1,702,577

Operating	Income	(Loss) $1,993 $33,560 $47,029 $61,098 $102,631 $137,037 $76,680 $13,188 $5,647 ($6,140) ($11,041) $0 $461,682
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Viera	East	Golf	Course
Month	to	Month

October November December January February March April May June July August September Total
Non	Operating		Revenues/(Expenditures):
Special	Assessments	-	Debt	Service $46,688 $46,688 $46,688 $46,688 $46,688 $46,688 $46,688 $46,688 $77,318 $77,318 $77,318 $0 $605,459
Interest	Income $1 $1 $1 $1 $1 $1 $1 $2 $1 $2 $1 $0 $14
Reserve	Funding-	Transfer	Out	(Capital	Reserve) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 ($6,694) $0 $0 $0 ($6,694)
Reserve	Funding-	Transfer	Out	(PY	Excess) $0 $0 ($450,000) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 ($450,000)
Interfund	Transfer	In-	Restaurant $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Gain	on	Sale	of	Asset $0 $0 $300 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $300
Interest	Expense	 ($11,702) ($11,702) ($11,702) ($11,702) ($11,702) ($11,702) ($11,702) ($11,702) ($11,702) ($11,702) ($11,702) $0 ($128,723)
Principal	Expense	 ($34,417) ($35,417) ($35,417) ($35,417) ($35,417) ($35,417) ($35,417) ($35,417) ($35,417) ($35,417) ($45,917) $0 ($399,083)

Total	Non	Operating		Revenues/(Expenditures) $571 ($429) ($450,130) ($429) ($429) ($430) ($429) ($429) $23,507 $30,201 $19,701 $0 ($378,727)

Net	Non	Operating	Income	/	(Loss) $2,564 $33,131 ($403,100) $60,669 $102,201 $136,607 $76,250 $12,759 $29,154 $24,061 $8,660 $0 $82,955



Page 20

	
Viera	East	Restaurant
Month	to	Month

October November December January February March April May June July August September Total
	
Revenues:
Food	Sales $10,435 $11,776 $15,252 $20,215 $18,898 $24,805 $30,379 $27,348 $24,507 $24,714 $21,523 $0 $229,852
Snack	Sales $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $524 $257 $0 $781
Wine	Sales $466 $835 $780 $1,100 $876 $1,114 $1,235 $945 $960 $401 $347 $0 $9,059
Beer	Sales $8,602 $8,427 $11,356 $9,879 $13,116 $13,492 $15,837 $14,121 $12,007 $13,803 $11,702 $0 $132,344
Beverage	Sales $1,752 $2,322 $2,933 $2,492 $3,159 $3,642 $4,091 $3,945 $4,093 $3,480 $3,310 $0 $35,219
Liquor	Sales $2,248 $3,991 $6,126 $6,571 $8,673 $7,436 $8,102 $7,855 $6,651 $8,698 $7,398 $0 $73,749
Gift	Card	Sales $349 $1,368 $3,782 $219 $706 $680 $665 $359 $702 $0 $0 $0 $8,829
Gift	Cards	Usage $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Total	Revenues $23,852 $28,719 $40,230 $40,476 $45,428 $51,169 $60,310 $54,573 $48,920 $51,620 $44,538 $0 $489,833

Restaurant	Expenditures:
	
Restaurant	Manager	Contract $5,417 $5,417 $5,417 $5,417 $5,417 $5,417 $5,417 $5,417 $5,417 $5,417 $5,417 $0 $59,583
Salaries $9,259 $13,375 $18,409 $9,833 $10,427 $7,608 $13,588 $12,482 $11,373 $11,984 $9,570 $0 $127,908
Administrative	Fee $422 $421 $656 $569 $427 $492 $746 $532 $540 $550 $480 $0 $5,836
FICA	Expense $801 $1,176 $1,736 $1,200 $1,150 $1,178 $1,523 $1,491 $1,324 $1,322 $1,313 $0 $14,214
Health	Insurance $0 $80 $0 $1,848 $1,639 $1,639 $1,489 $1,212 $2,398 $1,452 $1,581 $0 $13,339
Workers	Compensation $140 $211 $290 $162 $154 $156 $194 $184 $171 $168 $152 $0 $1,981
Unemployment $459 $434 $711 $565 $538 $642 $375 $376 $277 $123 $67 $0 $4,566
Telephone $349 $246 $246 $246 $246 $340 $259 $259 $259 $259 $259 $0 $2,968
Utilities $713 $547 $963 $186 $1,490 $1,117 $949 $1,077 $957 $1,126 $900 $0 $10,026
Pest	Control $122 $95 $95 $95 $95 $95 $95 $95 $93 $93 $95 $0 $1,069
Equipment	Lease $101 $100 $101 $100 $100 $101 $101 $101 $101 $202 $136 $0 $1,244
Repairs $1,776 $4,168 $0 $0 $427 $0 $125 $294 $150 $0 $76 $0 $7,016
Kitchen	Equipment/Supplies $1,037 $270 $0 $0 $0 $0 $93 $0 $5,443 $0 $0 $0 $6,844
Paper	&	Plastic	Supplies $867 $511 $686 $1,028 $473 $977 $697 $1,351 $444 $659 $706 $0 $8,399
Operating	Supplies $10,181 $1,846 $2,638 $1,107 $979 $1,822 $1,546 $399 $1,064 $2,619 $1,322 $0 $25,522
Food	Cost $2,158 $6,474 $8,355 $7,324 $6,633 $9,708 $9,425 $8,678 $16,534 $9,466 $10,257 $0 $95,012
Snack	Cost $717 $2,152 $192 $86 ($1,143) $2,013 $264 $477 $2,242 $250 $381 $0 $7,631
Beer	Cost $1,967 $5,900 $4,876 $4,057 $4,696 $7,127 $3,152 $9,091 $6,431 $5,279 $5,168 $0 $57,744
Beverage	Cost $743 $2,229 $917 $3,040 $434 $2,016 $1,381 $1,003 $1,711 $2,294 $2,414 $0 $18,182
Wine	Cost $190 $570 $304 $720 ($79) $587 $25 $481 $495 $150 $478 $0 $3,923
Liquor	Cost $616 $1,848 $2,509 $2,320 $2,154 $974 $1,132 $2,824 $1,557 $1,381 $3,070 $0 $20,385
First	Aid $171 $0 $0 $0 $17 $0 $0 $18 $0 $0 $0 $0 $206
Entertainment $300 $0 $800 $750 $650 $1,350 $1,950 $1,850 $2,405 $1,500 $1,350 $0 $12,905
Delivery/Gas $0 $0 $37 $0 $788 $509 $544 $298 $495 $355 $265 $0 $3,291
Uniforms $0 $474 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $474
Dues	&	License $455 $599 $959 $49 $1,869 $49 $49 $49 $49 $574 $49 $0 $4,750

Total	Restaurant	Expenditures $38,961 $49,141 $50,895 $40,703 $39,582 $45,918 $45,120 $50,041 $61,929 $47,222 $45,505 $0 $515,018

Operating	Income	(Loss) ($15,109) ($20,423) ($10,665) ($226) $5,846 $5,250 $15,189 $4,532 ($13,009) $4,397 ($968) $0 ($25,185)

Non	Operating		Revenues/(Expenditures):
Interfund	Transfer	out-	Golf	Course $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Total	Non	Operating		Revenues/(Expenditures) $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Net	Non	Operating	Income	/	(Loss) ($15,109) ($20,423) ($10,665) ($226) $5,846 $5,250 $15,189 $4,532 ($13,009) $4,397 ($968) $0 ($25,185)
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October November December January February March April May June July August September Total

Revenues

Merchandise	Sales $12,204 $7,720 $10,220 $8,083 $10,009 $12,199 $14,745 $14,223 $8,644 $9,737 $7,932 $0 $115,715

Total	Revenues $12,204 $7,720 $10,220 $8,083 $10,009 $12,199 $14,745 $14,223 $8,644 $9,737 $7,932 $0 $115,715

Expenditures

Cost	of	Goods	Sold $5,774 $4,835 $9,352 $3,250 $9,910 $8,328 $6,520 $6,990 $2,274 $7,983 $4,222 $0 $69,437

Total	Expenditures $5,774 $4,835 $9,352 $3,250 $9,910 $8,328 $6,520 $6,990 $2,274 $7,983 $4,222 $0 $69,437

Operating	Income	(Loss) $6,430 $2,885 $868 $4,832 $98 $3,871 $8,225 $7,233 $6,370 $1,754 $3,710 $0 $46,277

Viera	East	
Community	Development	District

ProShop
Statement	of	Revenues	&	Expenditures
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Interest	Rate: 5.750%
Maturity	Date: 5/1/2022
Reserve	Fund	Definition: 10%	Max	Annual	Dept
Reserve	Fund	Requirement: $239,334
Reserve	Fund	Balance	(1): $239,334

Bonds	outstanding	-	9/30/2016 $11,855,000
Less:		May	1,	2017	Principal ($1,710,000)
Less:		May	1,	2018	Principal ($1,810,000)
Less:		May	1,	2019	Principal ($1,910,000)
Less:		May	1,	2020	Principal ($2,020,000)
Less:		May	1,	2021	Principal ($2,140,000)
Less:		May	1,	2022	Principal ($2,265,000)

Current	Bonds	Outstanding $0

(1)	This	value	is	covered	by	the	Debt	Service	Reserve	Fund	Surety	Bond	and	is	not	a	cash	balance
on	the	District's	balance	sheet.	

Interest	Rate: 2.5%	to	5%
Maturity	Date: 5/1/2026
Reserve	Fund	Definition: 50%	Max	Annual	Dept
Reserve	Fund	Requirement: $279,239
Reserve	Fund	Balance: $280,139

Bonds	outstanding	-	9/30/2016 $4,445,000
Less:		May	1,	2017	Principal ($365,000)
Less:		May	1,	2018	Principal ($380,000)
Less:		May	1,	2019	Principal ($395,000)
Less:		May	1,	2020	Principal ($410,000)
Less:		May	1,	2021	Principal ($425,000)
Less:		May	1,	2022	Principal ($445,000)

Current	Bonds	Outstanding $2,025,000

Interest	Rate: 2%	to	2.75%
Maturity	Date: 5/1/1938
Reserve	Fund	Definition: 50%	Max	Annual	Dept
Reserve	Fund	Requirement: $234,591
Reserve	Fund	Balance: $234,615

Bonds	outstanding	-	7/10/20 $7,685,000

Current	Bonds	Outstanding $7,685,000

Series	2020	Special	Assessment	Revenue	Bonds

Viera	East
Community	Development	District

Long	Term	Debt	Report

Series	2012	Special	Assessment	Revenue	Bonds

Series	2006	Water	Management	Refunding	Bonds



Viera	East
Community	Development	District
Special	Assessment	Receipts	-	FY2022

Date Net Gen	Fund Debt	Svc	2006 Rec	Fund Total
11/10/21 66,396$																	 15,434$														 39,914$																		 11,048$																 66,396$												
11/23/21 929,820$															 216,143$												 558,959$																 154,718$														 929,820$									
12/9/21 1,960,557$												 455,745$												 1,178,584$													 326,228$														 1,960,557$						
12/21/21 141,771$															 32,956$														 85,225$																		 23,590$																 141,771$									
1/11/22 44,584$																	 10,364$														 26,801$																		 7,419$																		 44,584$												
2/9/22 69,052$																	 16,052$														 41,511$																		 11,490$																 69,052$												
3/9/22 22,435$																	 18,702$														 -$																								 3,733$																		 22,435$												
4/7/22 124,331$															 28,902$														 74,741$																		 20,688$																 124,331$									
5/10/22 111,494$															 13,860$														 -$																								 97,634$																 111,494$									
6/14/22 8,724$																			 -$																					 -$																								 8,724$																		 8,724$														
6/16/22 13,033$																	 -$																					 -$																								 13,033$																 13,033$												

3,492,198$												 808,157$												 2,005,735$													 678,306$														 3,492,198$						

Net Assessments Assessments Balance	to
Assessed Percentage Collected Transferred Transfer

Debt	Service	Fund 2,089,942$												 60.11% 2,005,735$													 (2,005,735)$									 -$																		
General	Fund 808,157$															 23.25% 808,157$																 (808,157)$												 -$																		
Recreation	Fund 578,489$															 16.64% 678,306$																 (678,306)$												 -$																		

3,476,588$												 100.00% 3,492,198$													 (3,492,198)$									 -$																		

Percentage	Collected 100.45%



Actuals	 Actuals Year	to	Date Year	to	Date
8/31/21 8/31/22 Variance 8/31/21 8/31/22 Variance

Revenues:
Greens	Fees 104,475$						 98,996$													 (5,479)$														 1,505,439$						 1,652,314$						 146,875$												
Gift	Cards	-	Sales 369$																 3,475$																 3,106$																 10,079$													 11,450$													 1,371$																		
Gift	Cards	-	Usage (1,131)$										 (710)$																		 420$																				 (18,322)$											 (15,722)$											 2,600$																		
Season	Advance/Trail	Fees 17,467$									 19,292$													 1,825$																 215,505$										 248,020$										 32,515$															
Associate	Memberships 869$																 869$																				 -$																					 38,236$													 26,788$													 (11,448)$													
Driving	Range 5,117$												 800$																				 (4,317)$														 83,039$													 92,219$													 9,180$																		
Golf	Lessons 175$																 265$																				 90$																							 1,925$																 3,505$																 1,580$																		
Merchandise	Sales 7,406$												 7,932$																 526$																				 111,911$										 115,715$										 3,804$																		
Special	Assessments	-	Operations 1,519$												 1,519$																 -$																					 16,712$													 16,712$													 -$																								
Miscellaneous	Income 568$																 3,844$																 3,276$																 5,532$																 13,258$													 7,726$																		
Total	Revenues 136,835$						 136,281$										 (553)$																		 1,970,057$						 2,164,259$						 194,202$												

Expenditures:
Golf	Course	Expenditures 12,191$									 13,406$													 (1,215)$														 129,763$										 120,247$										 9,516$																		
Golf	Operations 29,056$									 33,674$													 (4,618)$														 352,321$										 390,308$										 (37,986)$													
Merchandise	Sales 6,794$												 4,222$																 2,572$																 75,093$													 69,437$													 5,656$																		
Golf	Course	Maintenance 82,016$									 81,025$													 991$																				 809,550$										 950,229$										 (140,680)$										
Administrative	 14,386$									 14,995$													 (609)$																		 151,869$										 172,356$										 (20,487)$													
Total	Expenditures 144,443$						 147,322$										 (2,879)$														 1,518,595$						 1,702,577$						 (183,981)$										

Operating	Income/(Loss) (7,608)$										 (11,041)$											 (3,432)$														 451,462$										 461,682$										 10,220$															

Prior	Month/Year	Comparison
Golf	Course/Recreation	Fund-	Operations
Community	Development	District

Viera	East



Viera East Cash Flow Analysis  FY 2022

I. Cash Flows: Projections

October November December January February March April May June July August September Totals
Starting Funds

Carry Forward 116,311$     103,195$     116,333$      152,696$      213,568$   322,045$   464,332$   556,201$   573,920$   566,558$   564,816$     552,808$    
Revenues

Golf Course 195,348$     199,919$     243,763$      254,668$      303,873$   342,173$   300,039$   237,423$   198,348$   197,717$   180,819$     97,999$    2,752,090$      
Course Operations 171,495$    171,201$    203,533$     214,192$     258,445$  291,004$  239,730$  182,851$  149,428$  146,098$  136,281$    96,579$    2,260,838$     

Restaurant 23,852$    28,719$    40,230$   40,476$   45,428$    51,169$    60,310$    54,573$    48,920$    51,620$    44,538$      1,420$    491,253$    

Total All Cash 311,658$    303,115$    360,096$     407,365$     517,441$  664,218$  764,371$  793,624$  772,269$  764,276$  745,635$    650,806$    2,752,090$     

Expenses
Golf Course 208,463$     186,782$     207,399$      193,796$      195,396$   199,886$   208,170$   219,703$   205,710$   199,460$   192,827$     160,321$    2,377,916$      

Course Operations 169,502$    137,641$    156,504$     153,094$     155,814$  153,968$  163,050$  169,663$  143,781$  152,238$  147,322$    160,205$    1,862,782$     
Restaurant 38,961$    49,141$    50,895$   40,703$   39,582$    45,918$    45,120$    50,041$    61,929$    47,222$    45,505$      116$    515,134$    

Cash Less Expenses 103,195$    116,333$    152,696$     213,568$     322,045$  464,332$  556,201$  573,920$  566,558$  564,816$  552,808$    490,485$    

Projected Revenues FY 2022 2,752,090$      
Projected Expenses FY 2022 2,377,916$      
Projected Surplus(Deficit) FY 2022 374,175$     

Actuals
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From: Jason Showe jshowe@gmscfl.com
Subject: Re: Resignation

Date: September 7, 2022 at 11:01 AM
To: David Bedwell bedwelldb.db@gmail.com
Cc: Lauren Vanderveer lvanderveer@gmscfl.com, Brittany Brookes bbrookes@gmscfl.com

Thanks Dave, we will have a Form 1 F put in the pack to bring you as well. Best of luck on the move, and it has been great 
working with you. 

Jason Showe
District Manager
Governmental Management Services, Central Florida
219 E. Livingston St
Orlando, FL 32801
407-841-5524 X 105 - Office
407-839-1526 - Fax
407-470-8825 - Cell
jshowe@gmscfl.com

Under Florida law, e-mail addresses are public records. If you do not want your e-mail address released in response 
to a public records request, do not send electronic mail to this entity. Instead, contact this office by phone or in 
writing.

History.—s. 1, ch. 2006-232.

On Sep 7, 2022, at 10:59 AM, David Bedwell <bedwelldb.db@gmail.com> wrote:

I am moving outside of the Viera East CDD Sept 29, 2022.
Therefore, I resign from the board effective the above date.

David Bedwell

mailto:jshowe@govmgtsvc.com
mailto:bedwelldb.db@gmail.com
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RESOULTION 2022-04

A RESOLUTION ELECTING OFFICERS OF THE 
VIERA EAST COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT  

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors of the Viera East Community 
Development District at a regular business meeting held on September 22, 2022 desires to 
elect the below recited persons to the offices specified. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD 
OF SUPERVISORS OF VIERA EAST 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT: 

1. The following persons were elected to the offices shown, to wit:

Chairman 

Vice Chairman 

Treasurer Assistant 

Treasurer Secretary 

Assistant Secretary 

Assistant Secretary 

Assistant Secretary 

Assistant Secretary 

PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 22nd DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2022. 

Chairman / Vice Chairman 

Secretary / Assistant Secretary 
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